February 29, 2024

The Corporate Relationship Department The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
BSE Limited, 71 Lyons Range,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Kolkata- 700001

Mumbai- 400001 Scrip Code: 10013217

Scrip Code: 500089

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400051

Scrip Code: DICIND

Sub: Notice of the 76" Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2023

Ref: Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

Dear Madam/Sir,

We hereby inform you that Annual General Meeting (AGM) is scheduled to be held on Friday,
March 22, 2024 at 11:00 AM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM) in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA
Circulars to transact the Ordinary and Special Businesses, as set out in the Notice of the 76" AGM.

Please find enclosed the Notice convening the 76" AGM and the Annual Report of the Company
containing Directors’ Report, Management Discussion & Analysis Report, Corporate Governance
Report, Auditors Report, Financial Statements, and other information.

Further the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2023 is sent on February 29, 2024 to all the Members of the Company whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s).

The Notice of AGM and the Annual Report of the Company is also uploaded on the Company’s
website at https://www.dic.co.in/ and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Kindly acknowledge the receipt of the same.

Thanking You,
Yours Truly,
For DIC India Limited

RAGHAV i shonis
SHUKLA Tsis oo
Raghav Shukla

Corp. GM- Legal &

Company Secretary
M.No. F5252

DIC INDIA LIMITED
Fusion square, 5th Floor, Plot no. 5A & 5B, Sector-126, Noida — 201303
Tel: +033-48128955 | Fax: +91-20-6361443
CIN No. L24223WB1947PLC015202
Website: www.dic.co.in | Email id: investors@dic.co.in
Registered office: UB 03, Mani Tower, 31/41, Binova Bhave Road, Kolkata -700 034
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KEY EVENTS AND MILESTONES IN QUulSu(bylUAR I

1985
The Kolkata factory

1961 1963 1972 oo e

Factory with Metal Coating R&D modernization

modern production Department programme that

manufacturing commenced in inaugurated included installing

facility was set Mumbai in Kolkata highly efficient

up in Kolkata machines.
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1947 1962 1966 1977 1990
Incorporation of Sales Office Factory set up Company made its Liquid Ink
Coates of India set up in Delhi in Delhi for maiden public issue of Manufacturing
Private Limited- Blending equity share worth Rs, factory set up
Kolkata 3.2 million in Noida

I N D I A LAND OF COLORS WHERE THE
PAST MEETS THE FUTURE
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DIC India

Leading in Innovation
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Entire stake Opening News Opening of Opening of ~ Opening of
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Sun Chemical to Noida Plant in Technical Manufacturing
DIC Asia Pacific Bangalore Centra Facility in
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Board of Directors

As on February 22, 2024
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Independent Chairman) Independent Director) Independent Director)

Adnan Wajhat Ahmad Paul Koek Ji Xiang Jason Lee
(MNon- Executive (Mon-Executive (Mon - Executive Director)
Independent Director) Director)
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Ryohei Kohashi Manish Bhatia

[Mon-Executive Director) {Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer)
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Our Presence

As on February 22, 2024

Q Registered Office
9 Corporate Office
t Factory

0 warehouse

' Blend Centre

*Factory is under the process of closure
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DIC India in Brief

The Company started its journey in 1947 as Coates of India Private Limited. In early 2000, it came
under the umbrella of DIC Corporation, Japan through a Global Acquisition. DIC India prides itself
onbeing one of the largest Companiesin the printing, publishing, and packaging industry in India.

The Company has continuously surpassed its milestones over the years. It is setting new
benchmarks by becoming the supplier of choice for its esteemed custamers.

DIC India Research and Development centers at Noida and Bengaluru have been instrumental in
developing new products, processes, and applications whilst improving the existing technolegy to
benefitits clients.

Mission

We create enhanced value and utilize
innovation to introduce socially responsible
and sustainable products.

Vision

Color & Comfort by Chemistry

We improve the human condition by safely
kringing coler and cormfart into lives™

Core Values

Enterprising: Lead with a passion for
excellence that is evident in the solution-
focused actions taken each day to drive
value through innovation *

toclety

Integrity: Be honest, forthright, and ethical in
all dealings with customers, suppliers and
coworkers.*

Dedication & Loyalty: Take responsibility for performance in the office, laboratory and factory, by
demonstrating commitment to customers, suppliers and coworkers.*

Diversity: Respect other's viawpoint and work collabaratively while valuing collective goals over
personal interests to achieve excellence; foster communication and cooperation with people
from all backgrounds®

Sacial Responsibility: Go beyond compliance to promote products and activities that achieve
socially responsible and sustainable development that protect the environment.*

"=Annotation
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Our Portfolio

DIC India brings to market a range of high-performance inks for diverse printing and packaging
applications with unmatched celor repreduction at high speeds, suitable for a wide range of
substratesand industries,

: Adhesives Packaging Inks

09 Arrnual Report 2023
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Our Portlolio

DIC India offers complete solutions In the entire value chain for
food-safe & low-migration solutions for food, cosmetics, healthcars,
pharmaceutical, and tobacto packaging, to name a few, Sun
Chemical Low migration solution is onz of the best, with all
required compliances, Qur food-safe inks have a very low Impact

e

on the odour and taint of the foodstuff and a deficient formation of .-"
hexanol and other odorous by-products after being printed, It s _ﬁ“'ﬂ
Ideal for food packaging where the foodstuff is in indirect contact ;;:‘*
with the printing ink, and our Inks are mineral Qil-Free, Drier Free, _‘):'
and they do not dry by exidation. The only mandatory elemeant is "-"LL.;'

inline overprinting with Agqueous Coating, and DIC India's food-safe
inks have safe migration levels far below the Global Migration lirmit
[as per EFSA). We also have fountain solution additives for water
quality, press types, and IPA [alcohoal) levels, For achieving the best values regarding edour,
taint, and migration, selecting the suitable fountain solution additive Is vital. Regarding
fountain solution-related press performance, other parameaters, such as watar gualiny and
press conditions, must be cansidered.

Below are some food-safe and lew-migration ink brands from DIC India.

Toluene Free Solutions for Flexible Packaging

CIC India, being one of the biggest and oldest
manufacturers of printing inks and allied materials, V),
provides excellent quality liguid inks that have been AF)
formulated to meet the diverse needs of reverse
printing on treated BOPP, treated and plain Polyester
film, Nylon, and Cellophane. Our liguid inks like Smart
KF, Ultralam NT, TAFF, ModflexTM, etc, are known for
the richness of printing on food. beverage and ail
packets.

Presenting the Toluene-free range from DIC India:

Smart TF, Smart KF, Hikari HSTF, Ecovart ~
and AguaSmart

DIC India, the global leader in innovation and development
af the next generation of foad inks welcomes the BIS and
FSSAl ban on Toluene inks in food packaging Connect
with us to provide a healthy and eco-friendly experience to
Indian consumers.

ko
TOLUENE
i

ink Rasge
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Our Portiolio

Barrier Coatings & Adhesives

Barrier coatings are functional coatings that reduce or eliminate fluid flow, These
coatings contral the flow of il and grease, water, meisture, oxygen, and ather flulds,
Barrier coatings offéer various environmental benefits to help converters and
brand owners meet their sustainability targets,

] 1-Ply plus printakble Barrier Coating ¥ Barrier

I removal of one Barrier film layer and " =-Ccatings
one layer of adhesive = i

Ei Lighter Weight Packaging & Improved Recycling

; . Barrier
Excellent resistance to . :
Water, Grease & Oil j Coatings
% OPV-+
i My Easy Ink Layer- -
Recyclable EI.B'I:I l}lp?hlﬂ Paper __ |
Barrier” Paper Board et
i Resistant Coating g -3\..-
Direct Food Contact Y
Gertified Free from Harmful Extrusions

Pvdt | Chronie
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Publication Inks

News

Cur news inks such as Popular, Polar, Express, Colorman
Series, e, are enginesrad o minimize start-up wastage
and aptimize the entire printing process, Suitable for all
CO5M counts in commercial and news applications such as
glossy magazines, premium coffze table books,
nevyspapers, and academic applications, DIC India inks are
preferred for & range of economic advantages that
improve efficiency and reduce wastage for both standard
aswell asglazed newsprints.

Offset Commercial

BIC India's range of offsat
packaging imk provides good
gloss and robust lithographic
praperties for running in all
modern offset presses in
comimercial printing, The Inkis perfectly sulted for all types of
LWIC, GNP, and SMP for printing magazines and periodicals.
We offer Inks that reduce the cost of printing with high-
speead inks, thereby optimizing the cperational efficiency of
the printers and improving the business investment
Commercizl offset ink that is used far printings of books
both standard guality and high-end books, posters,
danglers, POP material, playibhg cards, magaziries, mavie
posters,

Aqueous Coatings

Ciur offering of food =afe and low migration agueous
coatings adhere to the Clobal Migration Limits as definad
by EFSA. We alsa offer aguenus coatings which are suitable
for all water gualities, press types and |PA{alcohel] levels,
Praviding the best migration metrics for printed
packaging of sensitive products like food, tobacco,
cosmetics and more, our aguesus caatings such as sun
Coat LMQ have excellent organcleptic properties with
migration ratewell betow OMLef 80mg per 1 KG,

Text Book Inks

Linear bucket for zero discharge with low penetration, low
mist & high strengthinks

L e
1

DIC Future Ready Inks

Innovations for Future

TF Series
Smart KF

It is both Tolueng and
ketonic solvent-free, This
makez the ink 3 sure
chaoice for packaging of
vanaus kinds of snack food, frozgen food, boil and retart
pauches,

SmartTF

The premium ink is the ideal choice for packaging liquid
socap refill ready to eat packs and detergent packs,

Hikari HSTF

H5TF is'a range of Toluene-Free ketone based low viscasity
high strength(LVHS) reverse [amination inks having high
bond strength, excellent printability and specifically
formulatad for high speed printing with & target of low ink
GS5M and suitabllity of this series on low cell depth
alectrometrical and laser eylinders, The low adour and low
solvent retention characteristics make it particularly
suitable for the packaging of food products. The unigue
features of HSTF has designed fo meet the stringent
requirerments of laminated packaging emplaying pelyester
and BOPP substrates with Excellent printability and tonal
reproduction, particularly at higher printing speeds

AquaSmart
Water-based gravure printing inks intended far printing
on treated films for subseguent |lamination. High
pigmentation, fine gravure printability, excellent ink
transfer anto the substrate, and strong adhesion te CCPET
BEBOPP.

Energy Saving
Adhesives

PVES & LIB Range of
Adhesives (For Solar
Celis & Lithium lon

Batteries)

Weather-protective outer layer:
Protects against environmental conditions and moisture
ingress

Polyester core: Provides electrical insulation

Adhesion-promoting inner layer: Bonds backsheet to PV
maodule encapsulant tolaminate far 25+ years,
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Packaging Inks

Flexible Packaging

Gravure

DIC India, being one of the biggest and oldest manufacturers of printing inks and allied materials, provides excallent
guality llguid Inks that have been formulated to meet the diverse needs of reverse printing on treated BOPP, and plain
Palyester film, Mylan, and Cellophane. Qur liguid inks like Smart KF, TAFF, ModflexTM, etc. are known for the richness of
printing onfood, beverage, and ol packets

Flexo

BIC India offers a complete range of water based, sclvent based, and UV
Flexe inks far the fast growing packaging and label industry, The portfalia
comprises flexographic inks such as GPL, Pinnacle series, SunEster inks, etc.
far high strength, high speed advantage with excellent high fidelity
reproductions.

Corrugated Box Packaging
Water Based Flaxo Inks far Secondary, Primary and House Hold Packagings,
Cood printability for both line and tone printing (dependent onthe type and
guality of the substrate getting printed). After fully dired, the print will bewater bleed resistant, deepfresze rasistant.
UV Packaging

«  High-5peed UV Inks for UY offset Presses 14000 [PH.

o Yield a Batter Ink Mileage on High Speed Inter-ducts
Print Units Toa.

»  Supericr & High Opacity White UV Inks,

= Secured fram Anti-Tack, Anti-Sleep, Low Odor &
Anti-Mist Challenges,

«  Delivers Excellent Color Reproduction an
All Suitable Substrates,

MO Free Inks

«  Erviranrnentally and Packaging Friendly MO Fres ks,
«  Compostable

«  Ensures High Quality Print
« HazardFree
UV Coatings

+ Gloss Coating -
1. Cnline & Offline Application on Met Pet & Board P
2. Cnline & Offline Application on Board % &_M
3 Gloss OPV low Odour /BP Fres
4. Transport Resistance UV Varnish
«  MattOPVon Beard or Met Pet

LMLO Inks

High performance, WY Curable Inks for sensitive packaging like food,
cosmetic, healthcare | pharmaceutical and tobacoo,

Breakfast
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DI India is one of the foremast and reliable lamination
adhesive manufacturers in India, With our state of an
dlobal lamination adhesive plant In Bengaluru we offer a
widerange of laminating adhesives for surface printed and
reverse printed flexible packaging Films, DIC India offers a
range of Lamination Adhesive that suits all types of flaxible
packaging applications, We hawe two broad categories of
adhasives that are solvent based and solvent fres
arhesives,

Solvent Based Adhesive Product Range

Cur range of solvent based adhesives like |¥ BOO, LX 7%H,
L¥ 811, and LX 8321 are suitable for high speed application
on metalized films & polvethylene films up o 1508, The
industries where these applications can be used are Foll
structures for retort, Aggressive fillings like perfumed oils,
Foll structures for hot-fill, aggressive filling like hair Byes,
noadles, snack food, Milk Powder, Wheat Flour, Noodies,
Detergent, Spices, Oil, Scap Wrappers, Stand up Pouches,
Frozen Foods, etc.

Solvent Free Adhesive Product Range

DIC India provides quality adhesives like NS 52104, HA
CZ0B, NS 45004, HA 4608 & NS 21004, HA S00B, etc, for
applications like snack food packaging, salt upto 1 kg pack,
flour packs. These adhesives are perfect for getting a faster
curing time, The ideal machine speed that can be achieved
with these products is up to 18O mpm with metalized
structures and 37S mpm in PE structures. The curing timae
is 14 hours indply laminates,

Our Portlolio

Speciality Inks

BIC India's range of specialty inks consists of a wide
selection of brand protection Inks that are available
application inscreen, gravure, UV flexo, offsset which can be
used to see tackle counterfeit with or without using UV
larmps. We also have a versatile range of metal deco inksfor
your requirement of print of metal cans for beverages,
pharma, paint industry, etc.

Ink for Brand Protection

DIC india hasa range of brand protectioninksfora range of
application like reducing countarfeit, metachromic Inks,
coin mark ink for promotional campaigns which can be
used with masking lacquer for better usability, so that the
unlacguered area is coin reactive. We alse have
Thermochromic Inks for brand protection which has both
features of reversible Ink in temperature -10° Cio 697 Cand
irreversible inks. In temperature &0° C 1o 1207 C. We alse
have tagged ink for brand protection using microsphers
technology fordetecting printsusing UV lights only,

Metal Deco Inks

DIC India offers a wide range of metal decaorating inks for
offsel process printing on general cans, beverage cans,
food cans and tubes for packaging of food, beverage,
cosmeticand pharmaceutical products.

The inks are fast drying, gives good gloss, good thermal
stability, excellent adhesion, high scratch resistance and
good printfinish.

RIC India also brings the complete range of Metal
Decarative Inks fram Sun Chemicals. These Inks are mads
with the meost advanced technology in Sun Chemical's
plarts in Eurcpeand cover the entire garmut of printing -
carventional UV, special effects and brand protection,
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Technical Centre Noida
As on February 22, 2024
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Manufacturing Facilities

As on February 22, 2024

Saykha Plant

Manufacturing facility for
Liguid Inks

Noida Plant
Manufacturing facility
for Liquid Inks &
MNews Colour Inks

Ahmedabad Plant

Manufacturing facility

for News Black Inks, Offset Aquatic Inks
& WE Flexo Inks

Bengaluru Plant
Manufacturing facility
for Adhesives & PU Resins

Noida
Manufacturing facility
far Flexo Inks

Manufacturing at Kolkata plant has stopped and factory is under the process of closure.




DIC Vision 2030

Our Vision

The danger to our planet posed by global climate
change has clarified our 10-year goals, There's
widespread consensus on achieving carbon
neutrality as a global selutien with a clock. Moreover,
the global COVID-19 pandemic has created a new
normal that we expect to slgnificantly accelerate the
transition to a digital society.

Considering this grand paradigm shift, the DIC
group must now balance maximizing our financial
profits with maximizing our social significance.
Given these new imperatives, we must share our
motivations with our stakeholders externally and
promote purpose-driven management internally.

DIC Vision 2030 Basic Policy & Goals

To realize our Vision, we have devised a new long-
terrn management plan, DIC Vision 2030, as our

iPasta

"]rall'mn )

DIC India

basic policy to deliver greater social benefits that
enhance stakeholder value and build long-term
corporate value,

Looking ahead to 2030, DIC must think long=term,
focusing on five priority business areas to establish
our business portfolio to achieve sustainable
prosperity, by contributing to the creation of a
society that is Green, Digital, and emphasizes
Quality of Life (QOL).

Securing Sustainable Prosperity

Leveraging DIC group diverse human resources and
global networks, we seek to further strengthen our
global management and promote the establishment
of a business portfolio that does not depend solely on
ink products, as well as carbon neutrality initiatives
unique to DIC, maturing as a "global Company
trusted by society.”

Barrier Coatings

| SunColorBox
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Our Sustainability Policy

Our Approach

At DIC India itisourresponsibility to raise awareness
about environmental issues that are part of our
industry, including issues raised by regulatory and
customer-driven forces. Given that responsibility, we
have a history of and continue to develop,
mythologies to assess our impact and to innovate
processes and products that are more sustainable
from both an economicand environmental dimension,

We have in place a rigorous development process
and analytical tools that guide cur choice of
materials and the safety of our products. We strive to
use manufacturing processes that demonstrate
environmental excellence through reduced waste
generation, lower energy, and water usage, and
strong safety performance as measured by several
key metrics - greenhouse gas emissions, energy and
water consumption, carbon footprint, and safety
record. We commit to meeting local regulatory

reguirements, and proactively work with government,
industry trade groups, and business partners in the
value chain to better define, measure, and promote
sustainability.

Product stewardship and risk management are also
Important compaonents of our sustainability policy.
We are committed leaders in this area and will
continue to take a responsible, analytical approach
to our efforts.

To ensure we understand our impact, we mesasure key

melrics - greenhouse gas emissions, energy and water
consurnption, carbon footprint, and safety track record.

The result of all our efforts is our ability to provide our
consumers with eco-efficiency and, inturn, enhance
the sustainability of their processed and end
products. Using our long-standing reputation far
quality, service, and innovation, our dedication to
improving sustainability influences both our daily
work and our strategic direction acrossthe globe.

Climate change.
Resource conservation.

@ iioma GOALS

Sustainable use of natural |

resources. ' Food, Safety and Health.

Social
issues

I
[TA ]
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Contain renewable raw
materials

Energy saving and thermal
insulation

Reduce weight

Primary
value

of our
products

Cope with marine plastics

9 tewenir e

® | st
co B

Recyclable

Reduce waste
Long life
Reduce volume

[ —

b 000HEETH
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* Health and comfort
+ Reduce food waste
* Low VOC and

food packaging safe




DIC India

Our People

The year 2023 marked major changes for aur arganization. We
adapted Technology, we warked on improving productivity and
we alsoworked onimproving capahbilities,

Company had to take a difficult decision of closing oldest
manufacturing facility in Kolkata. This was a major change.
Haowever, because of the strength of the culture, we were able to
manage this change as efficiantly as it could possibly have been,
all the workmen, employees of service providers and many
management employees had to be let off, Company provided all
the possible support within its means to help impacted people
manage thischange and transiticn out ofthe Company.

We embraced digitization in 2023 with the launch of Contractual
Labour Management System cowvering all manufacturing
locations. The systemn would help In proactively ensuring that
service providers are complying with all the key legal
reguirements of labour laws. We also launched FactocHR, a one
siop porial which has completely digitized one of the key retiral
benafit Le. Provident Fund.

Cne of the major focus areas for 2023 was Capability
Enhancement, Our learning & development initiatives focussed
on improving technical / functional abilities and on behavicurs,
Lot of e-learning programs on safety at workplace weare
conducted, Technical / Functional trainings included topics like
Liguid Ink Portfolio, Hikari HSTF Series - Costing Caloulator &
Refresher Training, UV Offset Training etc. Behaviour and other
trainings included topics like Design Thinking for Breakthrough
Solutions, Data Visualization using Power B|, Advanced MS Excal,
MIS Reporting & Dashboard Creation, Effective Feedback &
Coaching ete.

To strengthen employee morale, we launched an initiative called
“Employee Connect; Building Bridges and Fostering Growth”
through which Business Leadership Team connects with the
Junior Management Team to develop rapport and understand /
address morale and motivation drivers. We continued our ritual
of celebrating varicus festivals across locations through
employes events wherein our employees participated with full
enthusiasm.

In 2024, we will continue to work on emploves capability &
productivity and will continue to ensure "Employee Safety” &
"Employee well-being", As on ZT7 December 2023, the Company
had 257 employees working with us.
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We are pleased to present our Report on Health,
Safety, and Environment, highlighting our
unwavering commitment ta the well-being of ocur
employess, the safety of our operations, and our
dedication to environmental sustainability. These
pillars form the foundation of our corporate values
and guide our daily activities. At DIC India, we believe
that Safety is License to operate.

Compliance with health, safety, and environmental
regulations remains a top priority for our
organization. We are proud to report that wae have
successfully adhered to all relevant regulations, and
our commitment to meeting and exceeding
industry standards |s unwavering. DIC India has
developed and implemented an internal regulatory
compliance portal named “Sankalp” to identify/
map/maonitor the compliances across India.

Ovar the past year, we have achieved significant
milestones in ensuring the health and safety of our
warkforce, Our proactive initiatives have resulted in
Zero reportable incident and fire incident,
showecasing cur commitment to creating a secure
working environment. Furthermore, our
environmental efforts have led to substantial
achievermnents in reducing cur carbon footprint and
minimizing waste genaration.

Our performance metrics demonstrate a continuous
improvernent in safety standards. We have diligently
tracked and managed our balance score card for
safaty, health, and environment With regular and
critical management actions and participation of the
entire workforce, we are witnessing an improved
safety culture compared tothe previous year,

Despite increase in production and unexpected
additions to the site operations we were able to
achieve excellent performance in our operational eco
efficiency parameters,

I terms of eanvironmental metrics, our efforts have
led to a 29% reduction in carbon emissionsfton of
product, 13% decrease in water consumption/ton of
product and 1% reduction on overall waste/Ton of
product, over previous year,

We have implemented various initiatives and
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Environment, Health and Safety

programs to foster a culture aof safety within aur
organization. Onggoing training programs have
equipped ouremployees with the necessary skills and
knowledge to identify and mitigate potantial risks,
Additionally, our erwironmental programs focus on
zyustainable practices, waste reduction, and
responsible resource management.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY (EHS)

The Company's Envircnment, Health and Safety
[EHS) policies, programs and [nitiatives are developed
to ensure long term sustainable growth of the
Caompany, its emplovees, sharehaolders and
communitieswe operatain,

Pollution prevention and natural resource
conservation are integral part of the Company's
business model. The Company also ensures safe work
environment is provided 1o all employvees, contract
workmen and visitors when they are inside the
Company's controlled werkenvironment,

ENVIRONMENT

At DIC India we believe in adopting a cohesive
approach to environmantal sustainability in line with
national &international requirements and mandates
that encourage businesses to adopt greener
processes. Considering that we have four (4)
operational manufacturing plants and two (2} R&D
centres, we seak to follow a systematic approach to
minimize the environmental footprint of our
aperationswhile fulfilling the needs of our custamers,

At DIC India we also monitor our petrformance
throuagh sustainable goals like reduction in water
consumpticn [(natural resgurce optimization),
responsible waste management, reduction of
energy Usages and greenhouse gas emissions,

CO,EMISSION REDUCTION

Some of the key project which DIC India has heen
implementing, which has resulted in the ongoing
reduction of energy usages includes;

o Open Access Sclar Power & Dual fuel [PNG and
Diesel) for D.Gset at Noida plant.

« Various initiatives in manufacturing operations to
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« Various initiatives in manufacturing operations to
reduce energy such as VFD for drives, throughout
efficiency Improvement for grinding mills, batch
size increase keeping same cycle time, CFL to LED
lights etcinall plants,

Various initiatives have contributed to approximately
29.0% reduction in CO2 emissions v/s 2022

Specific CO2 ( Kg/Ton)
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Water Conservation

We keep onimproving our processes to ensura watar
consumption is kept as low as possible. In 2023 some
of the key projects Implemented which have
contributed towards water reductionincludes:

» Salf-closing tapsto reduce wastages of water.
» Improvementincold and hot insulations.

» Batch time optimization (in heating & cooling
process)

Specific Water( Lit/Ton)
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« Water metering and arresting of all possible
leakages inwaterdistributian system.

DIC Ind:a

These initiatives have resulted in approximately 13.0
% reductieninfreshwater consumption,

Waste Minimization

DIC India waste minimization program is focused an
improving utilization of incoming materials,
promoting Reduce, always Reuse & Recycle and
ensuring compliance.

Initiatives helped in reducing approximately 1.0%
reductioninwaste perton,

SAFETY

At DIC India we have Safety First Culture, and we
fallow Industry-accredited best practices on

Specific Waste (Kg/Ton)
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occupational health and safety across all ocur
cperations. Our manufacturing locations are
certified to Integrated management system for
OQHSE (Quality, Health, Safety and enviranment) We
believe maintaining high standards of safety and
health is the cornerstone 1o our continued success.
We have a rebust management system to ensure
safety of personnel and process and the approach is
reflacted in our safety policies, risk assessment
framework, incident review and audit systems, We
closely maniter safety performance parametears and
setgoal forimprovements onincident rates,

We encourage our workfarce to report any hazards
ar unsafe conditions, without the fear of any
reprisals. We also track reported near miss incidenis
ta monitor our safety performance, Frequent
external and internal audits form a part of continual
effarts in improving various leading and lagging
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indicators. As part of our process, we carefully
analyse the cause for any waork-related incldents and
make correction In the standard operating
procedures to avoid such eventualities.

We continue to educate and encourage every
memboer of our workforce to embrace safety as a
value, Safety and occupational health are mandatory
madules of induction process, Refresher training
programmes are also conducted to enhance safety
awareness and knowledge among employees and
contractors. In 2023, we imparted more than 1000
Hrs/Maonth training on various EHS topics.

Cur safety performance is regularly reviewed in
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Monthly Business Review meeting, regional
meetings and quarterly in board meetings. The
Company has been achieving continuous

improvements in safety performance through a
combination of systems and processes as well as
cooperation, involvement, and support of all
employees. In 2023, DIC India has reported Zerc
recardable or Loss Workdays incident, With this DIC
India has also achieved maore than 814 mill accident-
free man-hours,

DIC India have taken some key initiatives for
improving the safety culture:

= [Cailytoolbox mestings

« Review, validation, and training update on permit
to work system,

« Airsupplied hood for salvent handling.
« |mprovement in material handling eguipment.
« Hegularon-site mock drills.

« Implementation of various checklists (Work at
height/Confined space/Machine guarding Etc)

« Strengthening of MOC (Management of change)

= Thermagraphy of all electrical installations at the
sites.

« Crossfunctionalaudits

s Contractor Labor management system | CLMS)
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

DIC India continues with its flagship “"Deeksha” and
“Saksham” programs to help communities.

DIC India had identified Education and Health as the two (2)
thematic areas for intervention, This is per the guidelines laid
downinSection 135 ofthe Companies Act

Through its NGO partner, Jeevantirth, the "Deeksha" program
for Children education wasimplementad in 5 prirmary schoals
in and arcund Saykha village of Bharuch District In Gujrat,
'Deeksha' program is in line with the Sustainable Developrment
Goals (SDG) adopted by the United Nations focusing on Quality
Education. Deeksha is focused on improving Foundational
Literacy and NMumeracy (FLN) standards in the students in the
classes from 1" to 8" standard. Various interventions were made
through the year which resulted in improving FLN results
among studentsofthese classes.

In the year 2023, DIC India commissioned a study by Maharaja
Sayaji Rao university (MSU) of Vadodara to do "Needs
assessment' of social requirements of community in Saykha
village, particularly with respect to “Health' Based on findings
of MSU, DIC India initiated a project through a renowned NGO,
‘Feedback Foundation', which aims to make Saykha village a
“Zero Waste' location, This project is being done as part of
“Saksham' initiative of the Company which aims to promote
"Health' S0G. With the involverment of the community and
help of authorities, Feedback foundation was able to finalize
the land |ocation & profile for Sanitation Park, The wark will
continue in the next year aswell

Sanitation ark site
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Notice

MNOTICE [s hereby given that the Seventy Sixth (76") Annual CGeneral Meeting of the Members of DIC India
Limited will be held on Friday, March 22, 2024, at 11:.00 am. IST through videa Conference("VC")/Gther Audia-
Visual Means("OAVMT), totransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial vear ended
Cecember 31,2023, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors therson,

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Paul Koek (DIN: CO0O81920), wha retires by rotation and being eligible,
seeksre-appointment,

SPECIAL BUSINESS
3. AppointmentofMr.Ji XIANG JASON LEE (DIN:10485668) as a Non-Executive Non-Iindependent Director.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, and Regulation 17 of Securities & Exchange Beard of India (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2015, Mr, JIXIANG JASON LEE [DIN: 10485668) who was
based on the recommendation of the Nominationand Remuneration Committee of the Board, appointed as
an Additional Director wef. February 22, 2024 by the Board, to hold office upto the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a
member propesing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an MNon-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation”

The above appointment of Mr, J| XIANG JASOM LEE [DIN: 10485668) as an Mon-Executive Non-Independent
Directorofthe Company has been recommended by the Board of Directors,

4. Payment of Commission to Independent Directors

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142(9),197 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory maodification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being in
force and the Article of Associations of the Campany, consent of the memibers be and is hereby accorded 1o
the payment of commission to Independent Directors of the Company (i.e directors other than Managing
Directar and / ar whale time directors and /or Other Non-Executive director) to be determined by the Board
of Directors for each of such independent director far a period of five years beginning from January 1, 2024
and distributed between such directers In such a manner as the board of directors may from time to time
determine within the everall limit 1% (one percent) per annum fram time to time in this regard , of the net
profits ofthe Company to be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 128 of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above remuneration shall be in addition to the fee payable to the director(s)
for attending the mesting of the board or Committee thereofor for any other purpose whatsoever asmay be
decided by the Board of Directors and reimbursement of expenses for participation in the koard and ather
meestings.”

The above payment of the Commission to Independent Directors has been recommended by the Board
of Directors.
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By order of the Board Registered Office:

UB 03, MANI TOWER 31/41, BINOVA BHAVE ROAD, Sdj-

Behala, Kolkata-700034, West Bengal. Raghayv Shulla
Corp, GM- Legal &
Company Secretary
FCS Mo, 5252

Moida

February 22, 2024

NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(*“MCA") has vide its General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25,2023
General Circular No. 102022 dated December 28, 2022, General Circular Na. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021,
General Circular No. 02/202]1 dated January 13, 2021, Ganeral Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 read
with General Circular No17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020
("MCA") (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and SEBI Circular dated 12th May 2020 and 15th January
2021 ('SEBI Circulars’) and all ather relevant MCA circulars and SEBI circulars if any issued from tirne to time
since the outbreak of COVID-19 physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required
and general meeting may be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means [OAVM).
Hence, members can attend and participate in the ensuing ECM/AGM through WC/OAVM. The Company has
appointed Registrar &Transfer Agent of the Company is C.B Management Services (P) Ltd as R&T Agent for
carrying out activity for conducting the e-AGM and providing e-voting facility for casting the votes by the
rmembers using an electronic voting system.

2 Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
facility to appaint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this ACGM. However, the
Bady Corporates are entitied to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/QAWM
and participate there at and cast theirvotes through e-voting.

3 The memberscan join the AGM in the VC/CAVM maode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commancament of the Maeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Netice, The facility of
participation at the AGM through YC/OAVM will be made available far 1000 members on first ceme first
served basis. This will not include large Sharehelders [Shareholders holding 2% or rore shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committes, Nomination and Rermuneration Committes and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Auditors ete, who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served
basis,

4. The attendance of the Members attending the 76" Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM will be
counted farthe purpose of reckoning the guorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration] Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020, the Company is providing facility of
remote e-Voting to its Members In respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM, For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agresment with National Securities Depositary Limited [NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using
remote e-Voting system aswell asvenue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL,

6. Irlinewith tha Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling



DIC India

[§-

Lesding i cmesriz

the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https)\www.dic.coin/ The natice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges ie. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Motice is also available on
the website of NSDL [agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25,2023 General Circular No, 10/2022 dated
December 28, 2022, General Circular No.21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular Mo, 02/2021 dated
January 13,2021, Ceneral Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 read with Ceneral Circular No.17/2020 dated
April 13,2020 and General Circular Ne.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020.

8. Corporate members are reguested to send at csbinitatca@@gamail.com with a copy marked to
evating@nsdlcom, investors@dic.coin, rta@chmslcom before e-vating/attending annual general meeting,
duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, pursuant toSection 113 ofthe Companies Act, 2013

9, Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend for the year ended December 31, 2016, and
thereafter, which remains unclaimed or unpaid for a pericd of seven (7] years will be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund {|EPF)

10. The Register of Members and Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
March 16,2024 to Friday, March 22, 2024, both daysinclusive.

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102{1} of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special
Businessto betransacted atthe Annual General Mesting [sannexed hereto.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GEMERAL MEETING ARE AS
UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday March 19, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, March
21, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
members, whose names appearin the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. Friday March 15,2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall
be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date,
being Friday March 15,2024

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The wayto vote electronically on NSOL e-\oting system consists of “Twio Steps"which are mentioned below;
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

Al Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 an e-Veoting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
sharehaolders halding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depesitaries and Depository Participants. Sharehelders are advised to update their mobile number and
email ld in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individua!l Shareholders holding | 1. Existing 1DeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.

securities in demat mode with httpsfeservices nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
MNSDL. mabile, On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial

owner" icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User 1D and
Password. After successful authentication, yvou will be able to see
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to
e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see a-
Voling page, Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website
of NSOL for casting vour vote during the rermote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Ifyou are not registered far |IDeAS e-5ervices, option to register
is available at https/feservices nsdl.com. Select “Register
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https:/feservices nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp

I \Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL, Open web browser by typing
the following URL: httpsiwwwevoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Legin" which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new scraen will
open. You will have to enter your User |D {i.e. yvour sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
whergin you can see e-\oting page, Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
‘oting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
mesting.

4 Shareholders/Members can also download NSOL Mobile App
"NSDL Speede’ facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

@ AppStore B Google Play
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding | 1. Users who have opted for COSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login

securities in demat mode with through their existing user id and passward, Option will be made
CDsL available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to

visit CDEL website wywww.cdslindia.com and click on legin icon &
Mew Systermn Myeasi Tab and : 2Kist _easi
username & password,

2. Aftersuccessful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or jolning virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the
user canvisit the e-Voting service providers website directly.

% If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register |s
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login
& New System Myeasi Taband then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Accoaunt Mumbber and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.edslindia.com home page, The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Cemat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where
the evoting s in progress and also able to directly access the

system of all e-\Voting Service Providers.

Individual Sharehaiders (holding You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
securities in demat mode) login account through your Depository Participant registered with
through their depository NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility, upon logging in, you will be able
participants to see e-Voting optian. Click on e-Voting. option, vou will be

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, whersin you can see e-\oting feature, Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and yau
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Vating peried or joining virtual
meeting &voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option availabile at abovernentioned website,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders halding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depositoryie. NSDLand CDSL.
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Login Type Helpdesk Details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in legin can contact NSDL
securities [n demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a request at Lin sdl.coin or call at 022 -
NSDL 48867000 and 022 - 24997000

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

securities in demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or
cosL contact attell free ne. 1800225533

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Wisit the e-Voting website of NSDL, Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/Awvww.evoting.nsdl.com/ eitheron a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2, Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter yvour User 1D, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shownon the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https;feservices nsdl.comy/
with your existing IDEAS login, Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on

e-Votingandvou can proceedtoStep 2ie Castyvourvote electronically.

4 YourUser D detailsare QWEI"I below;

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat “ 9 D is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical our User -

8Character DP D followed by 8 Digit Client ID
Far example [fyaur DP |D is INZGC*** and Client ID
i$ 12**=** then your user D is INSOO* 12+,

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account
with NSDL,

b} For Members who hold shares in demat account % D|g.1t _Benefu_mar}:‘IE *Eu“:i-:imple IEyour .
with CDSL Beneficiary I 512 then yaur user [D is

]2?*!*"““.*&**

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
¢) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. WithhECampang

Far exarnple i folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user 1D s 101456001

5. Password detalls far shareholders other than Individual sharehalders are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for eVoling, then you can usar your existing passwoerd to login and cast your
vorte,

b} Ifyou areusing N5DL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' which
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password!, you need to enter the 'Initial password' and
the system will farce you to change your password,
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¢ Howitoretrieve your 'initial passwaord'?

{iy If your email 1D is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial passward' is
commnicated toyou onyour email |D. Trace the email sent to you from MSDL from your mailbox. Open
theemaill and open the attachment |.e. a .pdf file, Open the pdf file, The password to open the pdffileis
your 8 digit client 1D for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 1D for CDSL account or folio number for shares
heldin physical form. The pdffile contains your ‘User I and your ‘initial password..

fit) Ifyouremail ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouareunabletoretrieve or have not received the " Initial password" ar have fargotten your passwaord:

a) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password ?"'{If vou are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
c aption available envati sdl.corm.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” {If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c} If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@insdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folic number, your PAN, your narme and

yourregistered addressete.

d) Members can also use the OTP {One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-\Voting
systeamof MSDL,

7. Afterenteringyour password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the check boax,
B Mow youwill havetoclick on "Login” button.

9. Afteryouclick onthe"Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are halding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Mesting isin active status.

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Vating period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you neead to click on "VC/QAVM"
link placed under “Join Meeting",

3. Mowyouare ready for e-\Voting astheVoting page opens.

4 Castyourvote by selecting appropriate options |.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish tocast yourvate and click on "Sulbmit” andalse "Confirm” when prompted.

5. Uponconfirmation, the message "Vate cast successfully" will be displayed.

&. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page,

7. Oneceyouconfirm yourvote on theresclution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. ather than individuals, HUF, NR| etc) are required to send scanned copy
(PDFPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc, with attested specimen signature of
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theduly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized tovote, tothe Scrutinizer Ms, Binita Pandey, Practicing
Company Secretaries, Partner of T. Chatterjee & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN P2007WBOE7100), to
act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the entire e~voting processin a fair and transparent manner by e-mail to
cshinitatca@gmailcom with a copy marked to evoting@nsdlcom, investors@idic.coidn, rta@cbmsl.com:
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc,) can also upload their Board Resolution /
Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter displayed
under "e-Voting" tab in theirlogin,

2. Itisstrongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential, Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts
to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User
Details/Password?" or "Physical User Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password,

3. Incase of any gueries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Sharehaolders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders avallable at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 -
48867000 and 022 - 24997000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evotingfinsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user
id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. Incaseshares are held in physical mode please provide Folio Mo, Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (seif attested
scannedcopy of Aadhar Card) by ermnail ta investors@dic.co.in, rta@cbmsl.com,

2. Incasesharesare held in demat mode, please provide DRID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Mame, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of BAMN

card), AADHAR [self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@dic.coin, rta@cbmslcom Ifyouare
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method
explained at step 1 (Al ie Login method for e-Veting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode,

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to eveting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents,

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual sharehalders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vots through theirdemat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are reguired to update their
mobile numberand email ID correctly in their demat account inorderto access e<Voting facility,

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above far
remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VYC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resclutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from daing so,
shall be eligible tavote through e-Vating system inthe AGM,

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they
will not be eligibletovoteat the AGM,

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting
onthe dayof the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for remote e-voting.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-\Voting
system: Members may access by following the steps mentionsd above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After succassful login, you can see |ink of "VC/O0AVM" placed under “Join meeting” menu against
Company name, You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link
for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Pleasze note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting ar have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions
mentionad in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Membersareencouraged tojointhe Meetingthrough Laptops for better experience.

3 Further Members will ba required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meetinag.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mabile Devices ar Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video lass due to Fluctuation in their respective network, It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches,

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask guestions as a speaker at the Meeting may pre-
register thermselves by sending a request from their registered e-mall address mentioning their names, DP
ID and Client |D/folio number, PAN and mobile number on e-mail id at investors@dic.co.in, rta@cbmslcom,
cshinitatca@gmail.com between Tuesday, 17th March 2024 {9.00 a.m, I5T) and Thursday, Eﬂth March 2024

exnp re_gs thelr wma@,{a_s!:.ggg,stmns during the AGM The Company reserves thg rg ht torestrict the numbgr_':j

speakers depending on the availability of timie for the AGM.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting and to register
themsealves during the meeting may register themselves by sending a request frem their registered e-mail
address meantioning their names, DF |D and Client IDffalic numiber, PAN and mohile number an e-mail id at

7. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO:3

Mr. Ji Xiang Jason Lee, 40 years old, graduated with Bachelor of Accountancy (First Class Haonors) and
professional certification Chartered Accountant (Singapore) of the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants. He joined DIC group in April 2016 and has undertaken multiple roles across different functions
including financial consolidation, Business Planning and Corporate Planning.

Mr, Jason is presently the Regional Internal Audit Director of DIC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore.
Other Directorshipand Committee Membership held by Mr.Ji Xiang Jason Lee ason December 31,2023: Nil

ITEMNO: 4

Independent directors of the Company are to be paid commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits,
computed in the manner laid down by the Companies Act, 2013 as approved by the members. The
members at the general meeting held on June 12, 2020 had accorded their approval to payment of
Commission by the Company, being for a period of five years commencing from January 01, 2019. The above
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approval expired on December 31, 2023, Accardingly, the approval of the member is sought for further
period of five years commencing from January 01,2024 till December 31, 2028. It may be noted that Article
106(3) ofthe Article of Association of the Company permits payment of such Commission by the Company.

Additional information on director recommended for appointment/re-appointment as required under
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Mr. Paul Koek

Mr. Paul Koek isa qualified CPA and is registered with Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He is
a Fellow Mermber [FCCA) with the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and a Senior Memberwith the
Association of Accountant Technicians, Mr, Koek brings with him a wealth of mare than 30 years in the field of
regional tax, group accounting and treasury managemant, Mr. Koek is presently the Group Finance Director of
DIC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapare.

Age - 63 Years

Mature of expertise in specific functional areas - Strategy Leadership, Industry Market & Sectorial Expertise,
Pegple & Talent understanding, Business Complexcity, Technology & Digital Perspective,Covernance Finance
Risk Diversity of Perspective

Disclosure of inter-se relationships between directors and Key Managerial Personnel — NIL

Registered Office: By order of the Board
UB 03, MAN| TOWER 31/47, BINOVA BHAVE ROAD, Sdf-
Behala, Kolkata<700034, Raghav Shukia

Corp. CM-Legal &
Maida Company Secretary

February 24, 2024
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Boards' Report
Crear Shareholders,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 76" Annual Report on the business and operations of DIC India
Limited ('Company’), along with the summary of financial staterments for the yearended Decernber 51,2023,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
[Rs.in Lakhs except EPS figure)
Year ended
Particulars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
(Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from operations 8288514 B7199.01
Other income 81875 79636
Total iIncome B3 70389 8799537
Total Expenses 84 14960 86 864.07
Profit befare exceptional iterm and tax [445.71) 113130
Excepticnal ltem: (2,378.89) 230000
Profit before tax (2,824.60) &4 ,431.30
Total Tax Expense (556.98) 33289
Profit far the Year (2,267.62) 4.098.41
Other comprehensive income {14107} (8.1%)
Total comprehensive income for the year (240873 409022
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 917,30 917.90
Earnings per equity share (of Rs10 each) (not
arnnualised)
(a) Basic (24.70) 44,65
(b) Diluted (24,70 L4465

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Your Company recorded a turnover of Rs. B2 88514 lakhs in the current year against Rs. 87199.01 lakhs in the
previous yvear. However, the Company registered a loss before tax of Rs. [(2,824.60) lakhs in the current year
against Rs. 4,098 .41 lakhsin the previous year.

The losses were primarily on account of extra-ordinary expenses towards closure of Kolkata plant and low
businessyield.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis as reguired in terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEB| Listing Regulations) is annexed to the report as Annexure A,

DIVIDEND

Inview of |oss recorded under current financial year your Board of Directors have decided not to recormmend any
dividend forthe current financial year,

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the CGeneral Reserve for the financial year ended December 37,
2023

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO
WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT
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Na material changes and commitments have occurred after the closure of the year Ul the date of this Report,
which affect thefinancial position of the Company.

CHANGES INTHE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no fundamental change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year
ended December 31,2023

SHARE CAPITALAND LISTING OF SHARES

Ason December 31,2003, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs 1500 Lakh and subscribed & paid-up
equityshare capital ofthe Company is Rs.5317.20 Lakh.

The Company'sequity sharesare listed an the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), BSE Limited (BSE)
and Calcutta Stock Exchange. The equity shares are actively traded on NSE, BSE and C5E and have not been
suspended from trading,

MEETINGS OF THE EOARD AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board met eleven times during the year under review. The intervening gap between the meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Comimittees of the Board usually meet the day before or on the day of the Board meeting, or wheneverthe need
arises for transacting business, Detalls of compoesition of the Board and its Committees aswell asdetalls of Board
and Committee meetings held during the year under review are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received the necessary declaration framm each Independent Director in accordance with
Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulations 16{1}|b) and 25(8) of the SEB| Listing Regulations, that hefshe meetsthe
criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149{6) of the Act and Regulationmg&[T){k) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

In the opinian of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as
independent directors of the Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience
{includirig proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) of all Independent
Directorson the Board.

EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning, that of the Committees and of individual Directors,
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act; 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board socught the
feedback of Directors onvarious parametersincluding:

+ Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities towards stakeholders [by way of monitoring corporate
governance practices, participation in the long-term strategic planning, etcl),

¢ Structure, compaosition, and roleclarity of the Board and Committees;

»  Extentofco-ordination and cohesiveness between the Board and its Commitiees,
» Effectivenessofthedeliberations and process management;

=  Board/Committee culture and dynamics: and

=  Quality of relationship between Board Members and the Management.

The above criteria aré broadly based on the Cuidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India,
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In & separate mesting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
whale, and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of Executive Directors
and Mon-BExecutive Directors.

The NMomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directars and the
Boardasawhaole.

In the Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and the meeting of Nomination
and Remuneration Commities, the performance of the Board, its commmitiees, and individual directors was
discussed.

The evaluation process endersed the Beard Members' confidence in the ethical standards of the Cempany, the
resilience of the Board and the Management in navigating the Company during challenging times,
cohesiveness amaongst the Board Members, constructive relationship between the Board and the
Management, and the cpenness of the Management in sharing strategic information to enabie Board Members
todischarge their responsibilities and fiduciary duties,

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS

As a practice, all new directors (including Indepandent Directors) inducted to the Board are given a formal
arientation. The familiarisation programme for our Directors is customised to suit their individual interests and
areaof expertise. The Directors are usually enceuraged to interact with members of Senior Management as part
of theinduction programme. The Senlor Managerment make presentations giving an averview of the Company's
strategy, operations, products, markets and group structure, Board constitution and guidelines, and the major
risks and risk management strategy. This enables the Directors to get a desp understanding of the Company, its
people, values and culture and facilitates their active participation in overseeing the performance of the
Management.

REMUNERATION POLICY

A Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated and adopted pursuant tothe pravisions of Section 178 and
ather applicable provisions of the Cornpanies Act, 2013 and Rules thereto inter alia define the Companies policy
onappointment and remuneration by the Nomination and Remuneration Committes,

The said policy may be referred to, at the Company's website https:)www.dic.co.in/sites/default/files/2021-
O1fremuneration-policy.pdf.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans given, investment made and guarantees provided by the Company, under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as at Decemiber 31,2023, are furnished inAnnexure B and forms partof this Repart.

SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary/asseciate/joint venture company for the year ended December 31,
2023,

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any public deposits under Chapter ¥V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was
outstanding as of December 31, 2023,

AMNNUAL RETURN

In terms of Section 92{3] and Section 1343)a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, copy of the Annual Return for the financial year 2023 of the
Company isavailable on the website of the Company at https:/www dic.coinfinvestorsicorporate-news.
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ENERCY, TECHNOLOCY & FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As required under Section134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the information relating to Conservation of Enargy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings &
outgoisannexed andformsa partofthis Report as Annexure C.

HUMAN RESOURCES

DIC India believes that the competence and cormmitment of our employees are the key differentiating factors
which enable our organization to create value by offering quality products &services to our customears, We strive
to create a harmonious work environment & strengthen our work culture to drive high level of performance
arientation. As a part of the culture, we are commitied towards scaling up competence level of employees &
affering them a long-term career to attract & retain talent. As on December 31, 2023, the Company had 357
employeses (previousyear 474) on its direct pay roll.

Inforrmation in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part
of this Beport as Annexure D, As per the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual
Repart excluding the information on employee's particulars under Rule 5(2) of the Companies [Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2004, is being sent to the members which is, hawever,
available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by writing to investors@dic.coin.
Any memberinterested in obtalhing such infarmation may writeto the Campany Secretary and the same will be
furnished withoutany fee,

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual harassment of
Warnen at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 20013 ('POSH Act') and the rules framed
thereunder. Internal Complaints Committees (ICC) have been set up to redress complaints recelved regarding
sexual harassment.

During the yearunder review, no complaint of sexual harassment was received by the Company and the policyis
available on hitps: dic.co.inf/investors/policies.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committes has been furnished under Clause & in the
Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Report. There had been no instances where the Board has
notaccepted the recommendations ofthe Audit Committes.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the contractsfarrangements/transactions etc. entered into by the Company with related parties were in
ordinary course of business and on arm length basis interms of provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

Omnibus approval from the Audit Cormmittes s obtained for all transactions with related parties and all such
transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee every quarter, The Audit Committes takes into consideration
for approving all related party transactions from the perspective of fulfilling the criteria of meeting arm's length
pricing.

As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, if any related party
transactions exceeds Rs. 1000 crore or 10% of the annual turnover as per the latest audited financial statement,
whichever is lower, would be considered as material and reguires member approval, In thisregard, the Company
has not exceeded the limit as specified above and therefore no member's approval were required,
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Related Party Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors for detarmining the materiality of transactions
with related parties and dealings with therm. The sajd policy may be referred to, at the Company's website

hupsfiwwwdic.coin/sites/default/files/2021-01/related-party-policy.pdf.

The Company in terms of Regulation 23 of the SEB| [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 regularly submits within the prescribed time from the date of publicationof its financial results
forthe halfyear, disclosure of related party transactions in the format specified to the stock exchange.

WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by
adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior, The Company has
vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy in comipliance with the provision of Section 177(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing regulations.

The mechanism covers any instances of financial irregularities, breach of code of conduct, abuse of authaority,
disclosure of financial/price sensitive information, unethical/lunfair actions concerning Company vendors/
suppliers, malafide manipulation of Company record, discrimination to the cede of conduct in an anonymaous
rmanner. The policy also provides protection to the employees and business associates who report unethical
practices and irregularities,

The Company has an updated Whistle Blower Policy in place. The said policy may be referred 1o, at the
Company's website hitpsi/iwwwdic ca.in/sites/defaulifiles/202104/Whistle_Blower. Policy 0.pdf
INTERMNAL CONTROLSYSTEMS

The Company has robust internal financial controls systerms which is in line with requiremant of Companies Act,
2013 which is intended to increase transparency and accountakbility in organizations process of desighing and
implementing a systermn of internal control,

The Company uses SAP ERP systerms as a business enabler and to maintain its books of accounts, The
transactional controls built into the SAP ERP systems ensure appropriate segregation of duties, appropriate
level of approval mechanism and maintenance of supporting records. Detailed procedural manuals are in place
teensurethat allthe assets are protected against loss and all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly. The internal control systems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by internal auditars and
their audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, The ohservations and
comments of the Audit Committes are placed before the Board.

Based on the results of such assessments carried out by the management, no reportable material weakness or
significant deficienciesin the design or operation ofinternal financialcontrol was cbserved.

RISKS & MITIGATION STEPS

The Board has adopted a risk management policy where various risks faced by the Company have been
identified and a framework far risk mitigation has been laid down. Even though not mandated, the Company
has constituted a Risk Management Committes to manitor, review and contral risks. The risks and its mitigating
factorsare discussed inthe Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Ackrnowledging its responsibility towards the society, your Company has putin place a CSR Policy, which may be

referred to at the Company's website hitps:/iwww.dic.co.in/sites/default/files/2022-02/CSR%20Policy.pdf. The CSR

Committee guidesand monitors the activity undertaken by the Company inthissphere.

Pursuant ta the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Rules, for the year ended
December 31,2023, the Company had acorpusof Rs. 25971 Lakh inits CSR fundsto be spent towards TSR activity,
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Asa part of DIC India Corporate Social Respansibility, the Company has identified Education and Health asthe 2
thematic areas for intervention. These are as per the areas identified as per the guidelines laid down in Section
125ofthe Companiesdct.

I year 2023, the Company actively worked on the fellowing three CSR initiatives under the thematic areas
chosen:

Under the "Deeksha” prograrns, children from underprivileged families have been brought under our wingsto be
guided and groomed for a successful future with quality education. Cur program of Deeksha is executed by our
experienced NGO partner Jesvan Tirth, who have expertise in execution of United Nations sustainable goals.

In the year 2023, DIC commissionad a study by Maharaja Sayaji Rao university (MSU) of Vadodara to do " Needs
assessment’ of social requirements of community in Saykha village, particularly with respect to ~ Health'. Based
on findings of MSU, DIC initiated a project through a renowned NGO, ~ Feedback Foundation', which aims to
make Saykha village a ~Zerc Waste' location. This project is being done as part of ~Saksham' initiative of the
Cormpany which aimsto promate * Health' SDG. With the invelvement of the community and help of authorities,
Feedback foundation was able to finalize the land location & profile for Sanitation Park. The work will continue in
the nextyear aswell.

The Company, in the Financial Year 2023 has fully utilized the CSR Corpus and spent Rs. 26.02 Lakh towards
Corporate Social Responsibility. The Annual Report on C5E activities, interms aof Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the Rulesframed thereunder, Isannexed tothisreport as Annexure E,

CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE

Your Company attaches considerable significance to good Carporate Covernance as an important step towards
building investor confidence, improving investors' protection and maximizing long-term shareholders' value.

Pursuant to the 5EB| Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report js annexed to this report as
Annexure F. Further, the certificate of the Statutary Auditors, M/s Pricewaterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP,
confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V{E) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 is
annexed to thisreport as Annexure G.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company hasin place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable secretarial
standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adeguate and operating
effectively.

DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 149,152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, one third of Directors as
are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire by rotation every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at every Annual General Meeting [AGM). Cansequently, Mr. Paul Koek {DIN: 00081830] retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himsell for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders' approval for his
re-appointment formspart of the natice of 76" AGM.

FPursuant tothe provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted declarations that
each of therm meet the criteriaof independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed
thereunder and Regulation 16{1){b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015 ("Listing Regulations'). There has been nc change In the circumstances affecting their status as
independentdirectors ofthe Companiy.

The Independent Directars have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed under Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent



Directors of the Company possess reguisite qualifications, experience and expertise and they hold highest
standards of integrity.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred, ifany. None of
the Directors of the Company are disgualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under,

Particulars of change in directorship during the year:

Date of
Name of the Director Category Appointment/ Remarks
Cessation
; Mon-Executive 1
Mr. Adnan Wajhat Ahrmad Indapendent Diractor February 08, 2023 Appointment
. Naon-Executive Non- ,
Mr. Ryahel Kohashi Independent Director February OB, 2023 Appeintment
b, Ho Yeu Cuan NOH'EKECUHW.NQH- February 08, 2023 Cessation
Independent Director
Mr. Taishi Nojima Whale Time Director May 11, 2023 Cessation
: Mon-Executive :
Mr. Partha Mitra Independent Director March 23, 2023 Cessation

Further, based on the recommendaticn of the Nomination & Remmuneration Commities, the Board of Directors
of the Company at their meeting held on August 04, 2023 re-appainted Mr, Rajeev Anand (DIN: 02519876), Mr.
Prabal Sarkar [DIN: 03124712} and Ms. Pritha Dutt {DIN: 02910608) as Non-Executive Independent Director, The
members of the Company via postal ballot (resclutions passed on September 05, 2023 respectively) also
approvedthe re-appointment of Mr. Rajeev Anand, Mr. Prabal Sarkar and Ms, Pritha Dutt,

Mr. Masahiro Kikuchi (DIN: 0BDZ5525), conseguent to his change of assignment from the Group, has resigned
frorm the Board effective from January 11, 2024,

tr. Ji Xiang Jason Lee (DIN10485668), on February 22, 2024, was appointad as an Additional Director (Mon-
Executive Non-Independent) on the Beard of the Company to held office till ensuing AGM. The Board
recommends hisappointment as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. February 22, 2024,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In termis of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are:
1. Mr.Manish Bhatia—-Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

2. Mr. Gagan DeepSingh - Chief Financial Officer

3. Mr.Raghav Shukla-Corp: General Manager-Legal & Company Secraetary

Curing the year, Mr. Taishi Najirma {TIN: 0B401012) resigned as Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect
from May T, 2023,

Mr. Sandip Chatterjee stepped down from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f March 31, 2023 upon of his
superannuation,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of their knewledge and
ability confirmsthat:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures, ifany;
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ii. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
companyatthe end of thefinancial year and of the Profitand Loss of the company for that period,;

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

iv. The Djrectars had prepared the annual accountson a going cancern basis, and

v. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were aperating effectively.

vi. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and thatsuch systemswere adeguate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

As per the provisions of the Act, the Campany appointed M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years.commencing from the conclusion of the 75th
Annual General Meeting held on March 22, 2023 till the conclusion of 80" Annual General Meeting.

STATUTORY AUDITORS' OBSERVATIONS

The Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2022 is an Un-
madified report and does net contain any gualification, report of fraud, reservation, adverse remark ar disclaimer
and do not call forany further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates Secretarial Audit of the Company by a
Company Secretary in Practice. The Board appointed M/s. T. Chatterjee & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretary (Firm Registration No. P2007WBOET7100) as the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year ending
December 31,2023, The Secretarial Auditors' Report for thefinancial year ending December 31,2023 s annexed to
this Report as Annexure H. There are no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in the said
reportand do not call for any furthercomments.

COSTAUDITOR
During the Year, the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2012 isnotapplicable on the Company.

DETAIL OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Curing the financial year under review, neither any application is made by the Company nor any proceading is
pending under the Insolvency And Bankruptey Code, 2018,

TRANSFERTO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

During the financial vear ended Decermber 31, 2023, unpaid or unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended
Cecember 31, 2015 amounting to Rs. 3,07, 741 were transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
establishad by the Central Covernment, in compliance with section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further,
9131 Shares were transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund during Financial Year ended
December 31, 2023,

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the period undar review, the Company initiated the process for closure of its manufacturing facilities at
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Kaolleata, While the formalities for closure are under process, the manufacturing facilities the Company has since
stopped,and all the employees and workmen has separated/transferred.

The decision for closure isin line with the Company philosophy and continuously improving operating efficiency.

OTHER DISCLOSURE

During the financial vear under review, disclosure with respect to details of difference between amount of the
valuation dane at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from thea banks ar
financial institutionsalongwith the reason thereof is not applicable,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The continued co-cperation and support of its loyal customers has enabled the Company to make every effort to
understand their unigue needs and deliver maximum customer satisfaction. Cur employees at all levels, have
been core to our existence and their hard wark, co-operation and support is helping us as a Company face all
challenges. Our vendors, who form a part of our global feotprint reinforce our presence across the globe and
relentlessly push forward in establishing the DIC brand. Cur Company is always grateful for their efforts. The
flagbearers of fair play and regulations, which includes the regulatory authorities, the esteemed league of
bankers, finangial institutions, rating agencias, stock exchanges and depositories, auditors, legal advisors,
consultants and other stakehaolders have all played a vital role in instilling transparency and good governance.
The Company deeply acknowledges their supportand guidance.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- sd/-

Rajesv Anand Manish Bhatia

Directar Managing Director &
February 22, 2024 DIN: 02519876 Chief Executive Officer

Noida DIN: 08310236
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Annexure A
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Economic Environment

The Indian economy stands at a pivotal crossroads, characterized by resilience and growth amidst global
economic uncertainties and geopolitical tensions. India has shown remarkable economic stability throughout
the past year, supported by robust domestic dermand and pregressive government pelicies, This stability, which
has allowed India to remain one of the fastest-growing major economies, is expected o continue INTto the new
year despite the challenges posed by the global environment.

Dne of the critical cancerns entering 2023 was inflation, which began ta show signs of a gradual decline towards
the eénd of the year. The Reserve Bank of India's monetary policy played a pivotal role in achieving this balance,
carefully navigating between fostering economic growth and maintaining infiation control. As we enter 2024,
maintaining this delicate equilibriurm becomes even more critical, especially considering the potential shifts in
the global economy.

The financial markets in Indla experienced a fair share of volatility throughout 2023, driven by both global
economic trends and domestic factors, The Rupee, has started to show signs of stabilization. In 2024, the focus
will shift towards strengthening the financial sector further, boosting investar confidence, and ensuring the
currency's stability, allwithin the context ofa changing global econormicscenario.

Regarding sectoral growth, key industries such as Fast-Moving Consumer Goods [FMCG) and packaging inks
have begun to show signs of recovery following the previous year's challenges. Regulatory changes aimed at
prometing sustainable practices and innovation in packaging have started to show some positive impact. In
2024, these sectors are expected to continue adapting and growing, aligning themselves with broader
economic trends and environmental considerations.

India’s external trade dynamics in 2023 were significantly influenced by various global events, such as China's
econemic reopening and the evolving situationin Europe. In 2024, India'strade stratagy will likely focus more on
diversifying its markets and |leveraging |ts substantial foreign exchange reserves to navigate potential regienal
instabilities effectively.

The shift towards eco-friendly practices, such as adopting toluene-free inks and exploring alternative packaging
solutions, is expected togain momentum.

In 2024 the Indian economy is prepared tocapitalize on its growth momentum; however, it may face several kay
downside risks that could Impact its growth and stability, A global economic slowdewn, particularly in
significant economies, poses a risk of reduced experts and Investrment alongside disruptions in global supply
chains. Geopolitical tensiohs and conflicts could increase market volatllity, affecting trade and foreign
investment. Inflationary pressures if they resurge, could erode consumer purchasing power, dampening
demand. Furthermore, environmental, and climatic risks, such as extrermie weather events, have the potential to
impact agriculture and demand, affecting overall economic activity significantly. Navigating these challenges
will be crucial for maintaining India'seconomicresilience.

Opportunities

Az DIC India strides into 2024, its unwavering commitmeant to innovation, manufacturing efficiency, and
sustainability is at the forefront of its strategic goals. With a forward-thinking approach, DIC India continues to
realign its operations,aiming to meet immediate needs andalign with its long-term sustainability objectives.

Central to this visian is the company's angoing investment inrenewable energy. Building on the sutcess of the
Moida plant's transition to salar energy, DIC India is set to expand the use of renewable sources across its other
facilities. This pivotal shift directly responds to the urgent need for climate action and is integral to DIC India's
commitment to reducing carbon emissions and fulfilling itsenvironmental responisibilities.
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DIC India's strategies for 2024 are closely aligned with specific Sustainable Development Goals {SDOGs) These
goals frame the company's efforts in building resiliert infrastructure, festering Innovation, promoting
sustainable industrial practices, and pricritizing environmental conservation.

This alignment is not merely a corporate obligation but 3 strategic imperative that propels long-term growth
and industry leadership. The company's regional research center continues to bean epicenter of innovation,
focusing on developing new technologies for food packaging. This pursuit contributes to responsible
productionand consumption.

DIC India addresses both market needs and pressing environmental challenges by leading the shift towards
safer and more environmentally friendly packaging solutions.

A= a responsible corporation, DIC India will continue to ensure its commitment to governance and responsible
corporate practices, integrating sustainable practices across all business facets, This holistic approach ensures
that the company’s growth is balanced with societal and environmental stewardship.

DIC India's commitment to society goes beyond its operations; we will continue to contribute positively to
communities surrounding our plantsin 2023, we tock a step in this direction and will continue to build on the
same in 2024, This commitment reflects a broader focus on sustainable practices that benefit both society and
theenvironment,

As we journey through 2024, DIC Indiz is poised to face the dynamic challenges and opportunities of the
gconomic environment, The company's commitment to sustainabllity, innavation, and responsible practices
ensures DIC India remains at the forefront championing a future where economic growth and sustainability are
inextricably linked.

Threats

In 2024, India's publication and packaging industry, as it aspires for growth, will continue to face several
Challenges. Digital transformation and the growing preference for online media could reduce demand for
traditional print publications. Environmental regulations and the push for sustainability may challenge the
packaging sector, necessitating adaptations to eco-friendly materials and processes.

However, pricing pressures and competitiveness in the industry will ensure demand from customers will grow to
become more sustainable and maintain price points established by less sustainable technologies in the past
Thiswill put significant challengestoresearch and development.

Supply chain disruptions, exacerbated by global economic uncertainties, could lead to raw material shortages
and increased casts, Additionally, fluctuating economic conditions might impact consumer spending patterns,
affecting demand. We will have to continue to Innovate while focusing on productivity and value creation to
remain astep ahead.

The Company will also continue to review asset productivity and will Tocus on the structural alignment of its
supplychainteensureitremains nimble and efficient.

Segment-wise performance and Industry Outlook

Ac DIC India embarks on 2024, the company's strategic focus continues to evolve, adapting to the dynamic
industry landscape and building upon the lessons of 2023,

In 2023, the business experienced a shift in customer demand, primarily due ta inflationary challenges.
Custorners increasingly sought cost-effective and fit-fer-purpose ink solutions, which required DIC India to
balance |eqgislation, perfarmance, and affordability adeptly. This trend necessitated innovation In product
development and a strategic approach to marketdemands.

The commodities part of our portfalio, while having seen a stabilization in pricing, continued to face margin
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challenges throughout 2023, DIC India expanded its portfolio to include sustainable lamination and non-
lamination products, which will see increased focus in the coming yearsin flexible packaging, DIC India's
aggressive strategy in 2023, including launching a couple of new product technologies, securing long-term
contracts with key converters, and digitising its technical service, yielded positive results.

This approach demonstrated the company's ability toadapt to market needs and secure acompetitive edge. We
willcontinue ta build on this for the future.

The rigid packaging inks segment saw mixed demand in 2023, the food segment showead buoyant demand,
whereas the liquor industry exited cartons sizeably, impacting premium segment volumes. DIC was able to
innovate and grow itsshare in thissegment.

DIC India's publication business continued to expand its market share in 2023, focusing on asset productivity
and refining its product portfolic. Despite a plateauing demand, the company maintained its leadership
position through strategic market engagement and innovation.

Risk & Concerns
2023 broughtitsshare of industry challenges, i.e. pricing pressuresdue to surplus capacity.

The packaging ink industry continues to grapple with Inflation and the growing need for sustainable practices,
potentially increasing operational costs. Volatile raw material prices and supply chain disruptions can continue
to further strain profitability. Additionally, intense competition and market saturation pose challenges 1o
maintaining market share and margins. Adapting to these evolving risks while innovating to meet chanaging
consumer and regulatory demandswill be crucial forthe business's sustainable growth.

Business Strategy

For 2024, the company's business strategy isTirmly anchored in the learnings of 2023, Building on a foundation of
I-ESG [Innovation, Environment, Sustainability, Covernance), the focus remains steadfast on enhancing asset
productivity, digitization, and developing a future-ready portfolio.

In 2023, DIC India adeptly navigated various challenges through innovation and a focus on asset productivity,
taking essential steps that are expected to bolster its financial health in the long term The digital transformation
initiatives undertaken in 2023; such as implementing CRM and a robust digital marketing strategy, were pivotal
inenhancing customer engagement and operational efficiency.

In 2024, DIC India plans to expand its digital capabilities further, leveraging new technologiesto integrate and
streamline processes, improve customer management, and maintain cost-effectiveness, especially during
economic fluctuation,

The company's commitment to innovation remains a crucial pillar of its strategy. DIC Indiawill continue to refresh its
product portfolio, ensuring it aligns with sustainable practices and meets the market's evalving needs. This
approach positionsthe company as aleader in itsindustry and aligns with DIC Corporation's broader Vision 2030.

In line with its long-standing commitmeant to sustainability, DIC India will cantinue to invest in initiatives that
improve yvield, reduce CO2 emissions, and enhance waste and water management. These efforts contribute to
thecompany's averallsustainabllity goals and reflectits responsibility towards the environment,

In 2023, the company took significant steps to improve its asset productivity. Improvement in asset productivity
will remain an area of focus, and it willcontinue to strive towards improved operational efficiency.

The focus on safety and safe operations remains paramount. DIC India's strang safety record in previousyearsisa
benchmark for ongoing efforts toensure a secure working environment forall employees.

As DIC India proegresses through 2024, its business strateqgy is attuned to the dynamic market conditions and
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societal needs. The company's dedication to |-ESG principles and its commitment to innovation, digitization,
and sustainable development positions it well to navigate the challenges and capitalize on the new year's
opportunities, continuing its journey toward sustainable prosperity and societal well-being.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company's Internal Contral Systern details and their adequacy have been furnished In the Boards' Repart
forming a part of this Annual Report. Even though not mandated by Law, the Company has constituted the Risk
Management Commitiee, with aversight by an independent director. Itsrisk register continues to measure the
Company's ability to mitigate potential risks through structured risk mitigation programs with a line of sight to
the board ofdirectors,

Financial performance impacted by operational performance.

This Year 2023 financial performance was impacted by steps taken by the Company to consolidate its
manufacturing footprints to improve its assets productivity, During the year the Company continued itsjourney
toincrease its market sharein the premium segment of flexible packaging and rigid packaging. The exports got
impacted duetogeo-political issuesand reduced dermand in overseas market,

Human Resource

The Details about Human Resources have been furnished in the Board's Report farming a part of this Annual
Report,

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year] in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor, including.

Ratlos December 31,2022 | December 31,2022 | Variance | Reason of variance

Returrn an -1.39% 2.58% -154.63% Due toloss incurred in current year

equity ratic

Met Profit -39 -554 -158.21% Due to loss incurrad Incurrent vear

Debt service {CLO2) 242 -G065% | Due to weorking capital lgan taken

coverage ratio incurrent yvear for operations and
lgss incurred in current year.

Clperating -3% &% 152.75% Due to loss incurred (N current year.

profit atic

Return on (Q.00) 0.04 -102:09% Due to loss incurred in current year.

capital

employed

Return on [0.0&) 006 161 81% Due to loss incurred N current year

investrmeant

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statements are prepared and presented under Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) notified
under the Campanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time as notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, the relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"}.
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Detail of Investments as on December 31, 2023

Annexure B

Name of the Company

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Solarstream Renewable Services Private Limited

49,60

Details of Loan as on December 31, 2023,
As on December 31, 2023, the Company has not given any loan.

Details of Guarantee as on December 31, 2023,
As on December 31, 2023, the Company has not given any guarantee,
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Statement pursuant to Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, forming part of the Boards' Report

A. Conservation of Energy
The Company's operations do not involve substantial consumption of energy in comparison to the cost of

production, Energy conservation measures have been implemented inthe following areas:

» Reduction offresh air blower fan speed by 50% at Kolkata Plant®

e Motionsensor & llumination level-based lighting in offices &warshouses of Kolkata Plant.”

s  Reductionofcycletime of UV ink production at Kolkata Plant*

« Reductionof compressed air setpoint at Kolkata &increase of chilled water setpoint at Noida & Saykha plant

» Throughputimprovement of News Ink bead mills & timer installationin LI bulk mixers at Noida plant
s Arresting ofleakages incormpressed air network of Noida plant

s Introduction of VFD in air compressor of Ahmedabad plant

«  Water source change from ground to river water caused water savings of 26% and RO plant power
consumption reduced by 90% compared to last vearat Bangalore plant,

»  MDImelting water callection instead of leaving todrain resulted inwater saving of 64 KL for Q4 at Bangalore

+ Batchsize increase of solvent recovery plantat Bengaluru.

FORM - A
Conservation of Energy for the Accounting Period Ended December 31, 2023

(i) Power and Fuel Consumption

[Rs.in Lakhs except EPS figure)

Fuel Consumption | Units 2023 | 2022
1. Electricity | |
11 Purchased from Electricity Board B | |
K\WH | Million _ 422 R
Total Amount * Rs. in Million | 3903 | 34.03
Average Rate Rs/Units | 525 | 930
12 Purchased from Others |
FAH Million . 303 i 310
Total Amount Rs. in Million 31.06 3030
 Average Rate | Rs/units ' 1025 978
1.3 Own Generation-through Diesel Generator
KWH - o Million 0194 014
Unit Generated Per Liter of Diesel** KWH 398 339
Average Rate Rs/Units 2205 26.50
2, HSD Used (Other than Kill) Above)
Liters Million | 0.02 0.02
Total Amount Rs. in Million | 176 179
Average Rate Rs/Units | 87.86 89,82
3, Furnace Oil / PNG i |
SCM (PNG)* Million 033 028
Total Amount Rs, in Million 2218 18.52
Average Rate Rs./Units £8.06 68.04
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*Manufacturing at Kolkata Plant hassince stopped.

*Including benefit of solar at Noida plant.

***AtNoida plantdual fuel- HSD & PNG are used simultaneously. So, Unit generated per liter of diesel is high)
{ll} Stepstakenforutilizing alternate sourcesof energy

s Daylighting syster at Noida plant —use of direct solar lighting - Capital Investment sanctioned/incurred for
energy canservation eguipment,

« Daylightsystem at Noida: Rs. 3.84 Lakh
« Dualfuelat2more DGsets, Naida plant: Rs.35.69 Lakh
« ACreplacementat Noida: Rs.6.88 Lakh

« Fastoperatingfilling machine at Bangalore:Rs. 390 Lakh

{1} Consumption per Unit of Production

Electricity } Since the Company manufactures different types of products, it
HSD | is not practical to give consumption per unit of production.
Furnace Qil i

B. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
1. Specificareasinwhich R&D efforts have been putin by the Company

s Development and commercialization of various aromatic solvent free inks for food packaging in compliance
with 15 154252020 Standards. These Inks are specially formulated in accordance with Indian and
International standards. A new plant has been built to produce these inks aveiding any contamination of
aromatic solvents,

» Development of environment friendly water-based ink system for plastic film reverse application and
gravure printing process with minimal VOC leve| providing safe and economical option for converter. These
inks can be used for food packaging and comply with 15154952020,

s Development of LED coating and LED offset inks to reduce energy and make it maore environmentally
friendly. This will work as a cost-effective replacement of UV technology soan.

» Development of a new generation Flexography ink system for flexible packaging. These inks are spacially
formulated for Flexography process with finer aniloxes and plates making it economical w.rt application
cost,

« Developmentand establishment of solar panel adhesive sustainable solution.)

» Establishment of barrier coating and adhesive for flexible packaging to improve recyclability with mono
rmatenal structure. Barrier coating and adhesive can help to make structure with reduced weight with same
barrier properties (OTR and MVTR)

s  Development of mineral il free inks for offset packaging. Thiswill helpin food packaging segments.

»  Development of Low PAH inks for newspaper printing. These inks are more environmentally friendly and
comply with international regulations,

«  PVCfreeinksystem for Flexible packaging for better recyclability.
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2. Benefits derived as aresult of R&D

The Cormpany has successfully developed the previously menticned technalogy(ies) and products listed in
Bl above and the process thereof. These have resulted in:

s Opportunitiestoexpand businessin naw areas.

« Costandquality advantage in highly competitive inks markst.

= Developindigenous production process.

= Theinksrange expandedto cater for high-end custormers and will actas animportsubstitute,

«  Environment friendly products

s Maintenance of Regulatory and compliance of newly developed products (Product stewardship),
3. Future Action Plan:

The Company's R&D is warking continucusly, in collabaration with its ultimate parent company, DIC
Corporation, Japan for the development of new products, processes and improved formulations to give high
quality superior performance inks for different applications to its customers,

4., Expenditure on RED

The Company has modern B&D Centers at Bengaluru and Meida. During the year, the Company hasincurred
the following expenditureson RAD Facilities:

« Capital Expenditure: Rs. 7768 Lakh

s  Recurring Expenditure: Rs, 71032 Lakh

« Total Expenditure Bs. 782.00 Lakh and

s Total RED Expenditure asa percentage of total Turnover was 0.90%.
C. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION, ANDINNOVATION

1. The efforts made towards Technology Absorption, Adoption and Innovation the Company has been
successfully developing the technologiesand products listed in Blabove,

2. Benefits derived as a Result of above Efforts.

Asa result of the aforesaid efforts, the Company has been able to become more environmentally frizndly
and worked on sustainable packaging,

3. Information in case of Imported Technology {Imported during the Last Five years, reckoned from the
beginning of the Financial Year).

The Company has executed an Agreemeant with its Parent Company, DIC Corporation to import technology
and technical Information for manufacturing polyvester, polyurethane, poly-urea resin salely for captive
consumption, The technologyis presently used for manufacturing of above products in India.

The Company had also executed a Technical Collaberation Agreement with DIC Corporation, Japan. This
Technical Collaboration Agreement does not relate to a specific project or praduct but transfer of technology
‘on an ongoing basis for all the existing and future range of printing inks and lamination adhesives. The
scope of Agreement covers Upgradation of existing products, manufacturing technigues, quality assurance,
raw materials testing, training to Indian technicians and also use of DIC's trade names, brand names, marks
and symbals,

D. ForeignExchange Earningsand Outgo

Exports during the year stood at Rs. 7,5657.50 Lakhs (from Rs, 10220 Lakhs in 2022}, and outgo of foreign
exchange an import of raw materials, spare parts, capital goods, traded goods and alse in respect of rovalty,
dividend and other matters amounted to Rs.18,256.20 Lakhs {from Rs. 22,401 Lakhs in 2022).
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Disclosure under Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company
forthe financial year.

S.No | Name of Director/KMP and Remuneration | % Increasein Ratio of remuneration
Designation during the remuneration in | of each director to
financial the financial median remuneration
year 2023 year 2023 of employees
(Rs in million)
1 Mr. Manish Bhatia, 3519 7.0 % 2698
Managing Director & CED
2 Mr. Adnan Ahmad (Independent | 0.815 BA, 066
Director)
= Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar 102 NA, Q.83
|  {Independent Director) _— .
& Ms. Pritha Dutt o9 NA 064
(Independent Director)
5 Mr. Rajeev Anand |Independent o7g MA 064
Dhirector)
6 mr. Paul Koel il MA A
[Mon-Executive Director)
7 Mr. Masahiro Kikuchi Mil MNA, My
[{Mon-Executive Director)
8 Mr. Rychei Kohashi (Non- Mil hA, A
Executive Directer)
) Mr. Cagandeep Singh [CFO) 9.06 208% 737
L&} Mr. Raghav Shukla {Company b.65 6.9% 540
Secretary)
n, M, Partha Mitra 020 NA 016
Independent Director
T2 Mr, Sandip Chatierjes 204 NA 247
Chief Finance Officer
13, Mr. Taishi Nojima 3.03 NA 246
T4, Mr. Ho Yeu Guan Mil MNA R

*It includes variable pay disbursement for 2022
Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year.

The percentage increase in the median rernuneration of all non-unionised emploveesin the financial year 2023
was 3.4%,

The pay structure and increment of the graded staffiworkers were revised as a part of 4 years Long Term Wages
Settlernent which will be valid till December 2023,

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.
The Company had 357 permansnt employeeson itsrolls as on December 31,2023

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration,

Average percentile increase, other than managerial personnel was B877%. However, the managerial
remuneration salary increasewasin line with the overall salary increase approach.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
The remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report

1. Brefoutline on CSR As a part of DIC India Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company has
Policy of the Campany: identified Education and Health as the 2 thematic areas for
intervention which are related to UN" s Sustainable Development
Goals (SDG) 3 4, 6,11,12,13 15, Thesea are a5 per the areas identified as per

the guidelines laid down in Section 135 of the Companies Act.

In year 2023, the Company actively worked on the following three CSR
initiatives underthethematicareas chosen:

Under the "Deeksha” programs, children frerm underprivileged families
have been brought under our wings to be guided and groormed for a
successful future with quality education. Qur program of Deeksha is
execuled by our experienced NGO partner Jeevan Tirth , whao have
expertise in execution of United Nations sustainable goals.

In the year 2023, DIC commissionad a study by Maharaja Sayaji Rao
university [M5U) of Vadodara to do 'Needs assessment' of social
requirements of community in Saykha village, particularly with respect
to " Health' Based on findings of M5U, DIC initiated a project through a
rencwned NGO, 'Feedback Foundation', which aims to make Savkha
village a ‘Zero Waste' |ocation. This project is being done as part of
'Saksham' initiative of the Company which aims to promote 'Health'
SDG. With the involverment of the community and help of authorities,
Feedback foundation was able to finalize the land |ocation & profile for
2. Composition of CSR Committee: Banitation Park. Thework will continue in the next year aswell,

S. No. Name of Director Designation Number of | Number of meetings of
[ Nature of meetings of CSR
Directorship CSR Committee attended
Committee during the year
held during
the year
1 Ms, Pritha Dutt Chairperson 5 5
lindependent Directar)
2 Mr. Paul Koek Member 5 5
INon-Executive Director)
3 Mr. Adnan Wajhat Member 4 3
Ahmad INon-Executive
Independent Director)
i Mr. Rajeev Anand Member 2 2
(Non-Executive
Independent Director)
5 Mr, Taishi Nojima Member 3 2
Whole Time Director

% Provide the web-link(s) where https.fwww.dic.coin/sites/default/files/2024-02/CSR-Policy.pdf

Composition of TSR Commitiee, " ; ikites/det files/2023-

CSR Policy and CSR Projects 10/Com position#200f%20B0ard%20Committees.pdf
approved by the board are

disclosad on the website of the https.fwanvw.dic.coinfsites/default/ffiles/2022-
company. 05/C5R_Annual%20Action%20Plan-%20FY2022 pdf
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4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link{s] of Impact  Not Applicable
Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3} of tule 8, if applicable.
5 &) Average Met Profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of 129558 Lakh
section 135.
b) Two percent of average Net Profit of the Company as per sub- 2521 Lakh
section (5] of section 135.
¢} Swrplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or ML
activities of the previous financial years.
d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. NIL
e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b)+(c)-(d]]. 2591 Lakh
6 3a) Amountspent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and 26.09 Lakh
other than Ongoing Project).
b Amount spent in Administrative Overheads, ik
c] Amount spent on Impact Assessment, If applicable NIL
d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [[a)+(b)+(c]). 26.09 Lakh
2] TSR amount spent ar unspent for the Financial Year: MNIL
Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount transferred to Total Amount transferred to Unspent
Spent for Unspent CSR Account as per CSR Account as per subsection (6) of
_ the subsection [6) of section 135. section 135.
Financial
Rs ‘Ilr:ai.r;kh Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of
e ) transfer. the Fund transfer.
2809 MIL M MIL MNIL MNIL
fl Excess armmaount for set-off, if any: 018 Lakh
Sl No. Particular Amount
{Rs. in Lakh)
) 2) [E]
i) Two percent of average net profit of the 25491 Lakh
company as per sub-section (5] of section 135
it} Total amount spent for the Financial Year 26.09 Lakh
(iii} Excess amount spent for the Financial Year 018 Lakh
ED)
(i) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or ML
programmes or activities of the previous
Financial Years, if any
() Amount available for set off in succeading 018 Lakh
Financial Years [{iii)-[iv]]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: As
Provided in Boards' Report
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1 s 3 & 5 & 7 &
sl. Preceding | Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount | Deficiency,
No. Financial | transferred | Amountin | Spentin  transferredtoa remaining if any
Year(s) to Unspent | Unspent the Fund as specified to be
CSR CSR Financial | under Schedule spent in
Account Account | Year (Rs. | Vil as per second | succeeding
under Under in Lakh) proviso to Financial
subsection | subsection subsection (5) of Years
(6) of (&) of section 135, if any (Rs. in
section 135 | section 135 Lakh)
(Rs. in (Rs. in Amount | Date of
Lakh) Lakh) (Rs.in | Transfer
Lakh)
1 2022 MIL MIL 33.58 B MIL A
2 202 NIL NIL 20.5]1 NA NIL NA
3 2020 NIL NIL 14.50 NA NIL NA
B. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired aVes
through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the oMo
Financial Year:
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired NIL

Furnish the details relating te such asset(s) so created or

acguired thraugh Corparate Social Responsibility amount spent
in the Financial Year:

Mot Applicable

sk Short particulars Pincode Date of | Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
No. of the property or asset(s) ofthe | creation | of CSR beneficiary of the registered
[including complete property amount owner
address and > spent
location of the property] asate)
(1) (2} (3] (4] (5 ) -
CSR Mame Registered
Registration address

Mumber, if
applicable

[All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, housa no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be spacified and also the area of the immovable property
aswell as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per B
cent of the average net prafit as per subsection (5) of section 135,

Sd/f- Sd/-
Manish Bhatia Pritha Dutt
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer. Chairperson CSR Cammittes
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Annexure F

Corporate Governance Report

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Covernance isthe creation and enhancement of long-term sustainable value for our stakeholders,
comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendaors, investors, and the society at large, through ethically
driven business practice, Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on
which successful commercial enterprises are built to last. Strong leadership and effective corporate
governance practices have beenthe Company's hallmark inherited fram its culture and ethos. 4t DIC India, it
is imperative that our Company's affairs are managed in afairand transparent manner.

We ensure that we evolve and follow not just the stated corporate governance guidelines, but also global
best practices. We consider it our Inherent responsibility to protect the rights of our shareholders and
disclose timely, adequate and accurate infoermation regarding our financials and performance, as well as the
leadershipand governance of the Company.

The Campany is in compliance with the reguirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with
Schedule vV and clauses (k) ta (i) of Regulation 4&(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEB| Listing Regulations'), as applicable, with
regard to corporate governance,

As a responsible corporate citizen, it is the earnest endeavor of your Company to improve its focus on
Corporate Governance by increasing accountability and transparency to itsstakeholders.

2. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Company had formulated a Code of Business Conduct for the employees, including the Executive
Directors ("EDs'), Non-Executive Directors ('NEDSs') and stakeholders of the Campany. The Code inter alia
covers conduct of employees, envircnment, health & safety, anti-trust/competition laws, anti-bribery & anti-
corruption, proper accounting & internal controls, The Code is alse available on the Company's website
www.dic.coin,

The Company has also adopted the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors ('IDs') which suitably
incorparates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The same is
available on the Company's website www.dic.co.in. The Company has received confirmations from the NEDs
and EDs regarding compliance of the Codeforthe yearunder raview.

In terms of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 22, 2024 the
Board has authorized Mr. Manish Bhatia, Managing Director & Chief Executive Gfficer to sign all Certificates
as may be required, to comply with the statutary reguirements, Accordingly, a declaration from the
Managing Director & Chiel Executive Officer that all Board Members and Senior Management personnel
hawve duly camplied with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended December 31, 2023 forms part of
the Annual report.

3. DIC INDIA - CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE, CONDUCT & INTERNAL PROCEDURE FOR
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Inaccordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prahibition of insider Trading) Regulations,
2015, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the DIC INDIA
LIMITED-CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE, CONDUCT & INTERNAL PROCEDURE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER
TRADING ('Insider Trading Code'),

All our Promoters, Directors, Employees of the Company have been identified as Designated Persons, and
thelr immediate relatives and other Connected Persons such as auditors, consultants, bankers amonast
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others, who could have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company, are governed
underthisinsider Trading Code.

Mr. Raghav Shukla, Corporate General Manager- Legal & Company Secretary of the Company is the
'Compliance Officer’in terms of thisCode.

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Beard of Directors (‘the Board') is at the core of our corpeorate governance practice and oversees and
ensuresthat the management serves and protectsthe long-term interest of all our stakeholders, We believe
that an active, well-informed and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of
corporate governance.

Size and Composition of the Board

Our policy is to have an appropriate combination of Executive Director (ED'), Mon-Executive MNon-
Independent Directors 'NEDs' and Independent Directors (108"} to maintain the Beard's independence and
separate Its functions of governance and management. As on December 31, 2023, the Board comprised of
eight members, oneis ED, three NEDs and Four |Ds, including one-woman Independent Director. The Board
periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. Detailed profiles of our directars are
available onour website https:/fwww.dic.co.in/board-of-director,

The compaosition of the Board is in canformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with
Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, As on date of this report, none of our directors serve as director or as
D= in more than seven listed companies and none of the EDs serve as 1Ds on any listed company. Further,
none of our |2s serve as Non-Independent Directar of any Company on the board of which any of our Non-
Independent Directorisan D,

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16{1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations read with Section49(6) of the Companies Act 2013 along with rulesframed thereunder. In terms
of Regulation 25(B) of Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance
or situation which exists or maybe reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of
Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section149 of the
Cormpanies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)[b) of the Listing Regulations and that they are independent ofthe
management. Further, the |Ds have in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule & of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the
Independent Directors' Databank maintained withthe Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment to the 1Ds As required under Regulation 46 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, the terms and conditions of appointment of IDs including their role,
responsibility and duties are available on our website at https:/www.dic.coin/sites/default/files/2021-
Curinig the Financial Year 2023, none of our directors acted as a member in more than 10 committees or as
Chairperson in more than & committees across all listed entities where they serve as a directar, For the
purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersanship and membership of the Audit
Committes and Staksholders' Relationship Committee has been considered as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of
SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, there are no inter-se relationships between our Board Members.
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Composition of Board and Directorship held as on December 31, 2023

Mame of the Director Indian Public Board Committees*™ Directorship in other
Companies” listed entity (Category
Chairperson | Member | Chairperson | Member of Directorship)

Independent Directors

Mr. Adnan Wajhat 1 1 1 - Coromandal

Ahmad International Limited

DIM: DO335205
Mr. Rajeev Anand - - g - z

DIN: 02519876
Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar - 1 1 - Merino Industries
DIN: 03124712 Limited

Ms. Pritha Dutt - - - =
DI 02910608
Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors
Mr, Paul Koek - - m B x
DIN: 00081930
kM, Maszahiro Kikuchi®** - - 3 E
DIN: DBO24525
Mr. Byohei Kohashi - = - - -
DIN: 10043620
Executive Director
mMr. Manish Bhatia = - 5 = -
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: DBZ10926

MEID—Man-Executive Independent Director

*Directarships in Indian Public Companies (listed and unlisted) excluding DIC India Limited and Section 8
Companies.

**Az regquired under Regulation 26{1)(k) of the Listing Regulations, the disclosure includes
chairmanship/membership of the Audit Committes and Stakeholders' Relationship Cemmittes in Indian Public
companies (listed and unlisted) excluding DIC India Limited.

*** Ceased fromthe positicn of directorshipw.e f January 11,2024,
Key Board Qualifications, Expertise and Attributes

The membears of the Board are committed to ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the highest
standards of corporate governance and meets at least once in a quarter to review and discuss the Company's
quarterly performance and financial results.

Comiprehensive background (nformation is provided to the Committee &Board members to enable them to
take informed decisions. The Independent Directors also conduct a meeting amaong themselves and provide
theirinsightstothe entire Board and the management team.

Matrix on skill sets possessed by the Board of Directors

DIC India Board comprises directors from diverse backgrounds possessing a range of professional experiences,
capabilities, and viewpaolnts. This helps to create a robust and vibrant board. The capabilities and experiences
soughtinourdirectors’ are detailed below:

A. Strategic Leadership and Management Experiences: This entails a director with a vast experience with
past or current experience in the "C Level” or in other professional or leadership positions oversighting
multiple disciplines/functionsin an organization.
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Industry, Market and Sectorial Expertise: Has expeartise with respect to the processes critical to the
industry, manufacturing and sector in which the crganization operates. Has ability to interpret the macro-
economic environment, nuances of the business, regulations and legislations for the market/(s) and the
business, organization operates in,

People and Talent Understanding: Has insights and experience of effectively managing hurman capital and
brings best practices which are suitable for the organization. Ability 1o infuse strategiesto develop talent and
align the organization to meeting Key Objectives and Develop Tomorrow's Leaders:

Experience of Business Complexity: Experience in handling vast and complex geographies in leadership
roles for mare than 10 years. Has developed expertise and experience in managing vast and complex
jurisdictions in terms of operations, risk management and financial stewardship.

Technology and Digital Perspective: Brings expertise to align technologiss to business needs to drive
process change and product development strategies while aligning to Group's strategic drive- Brings added
perspective on theskills reguired by the organization in the fields of digital transformation and sustainability.

Governance, Finance and Risk: Has an up to date thorough understanding of principles of Corporate
Cavernance, Financial Managerment and the legislative landscape of the industry. Proven capabilities of
providing inputs for strategic financial planning, in-depth understanding of financial statements, and
cverseeing budgets for the efficient use of resources, An expert hand in overall Risk Management of the
enterprise,

Diversity of Perspective: Understanding of the larger landscape and providing relevant, diverse and critical
viewstothe Board that is invaluable for managing key stakeholders and businesschallenges.

Selection of New Directors and Board Membership Criteria

The Momination and Remuneration Committee evaluates the candidature of a new director in line with the
Group Policy and the aforementioned skill sets and makes suitable recornmendations to the Board for final
approval. Candidates will undergo an interview and selection process. The appaintment of all Directors is also
subjecttoshareholders' approval,

The Palicy for appointment and removal of Directors and determining Directors' independence is availakie on
ourwebsite at httpswww dic.coinfsites/default/ffiles/2021-0Vremuneration-policy pdf.

The table below summarizes the key skills, expertise, competencies and attributes which are taken into
consideration by the NRC while recommending appointment of Directorsto the Board,
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Director qualifications, skills, expertise, competencies, and attributes desirable in Company's business and
sector in which it functions.

Director |Age |App |Gen-| Commi | Strategid Industry, | People |Experie | Techngo | Govern | Diversity
Name/ ||Years)oint |der | ttee Leader | Market and nce of logy ance, of
Skills ment Memb | ship and Talent | Business| and Finance | Perspect
Year erships | and Sectorial | Unders |Compl | Digital | and e
Manag | Expertise | tanding | exity Perspe | Risk
erment ctive
Experie
nces
Mr [ 2028 | M AC,
Adnan L5R,
Wajhat SRC, o -4 L o s .3
Ahmad RRAC®
br. B3 | 2020 | M ERC,
Rajeav v v v o o
Anand
Mr. 1] 2020 | M AT,
Prabal MNRC,
Kumar RMC" s s 4 /
Sarkar
s, 59 2020 | F MRC,
Pritha CsH o o -.f .f o o
Dutt
Mr. Paul B3 200 M AL,
Koek & NRCSR v ) ul"' = v s s
C,C5R
Mr. &l 20018 ™M A
tasahiro v 4 g v
Kikuchi
hor. 63 2028 | M RMACT
Byohe| - s - - s v <
Kohashi
M. 52 | 2012 | M RMCT
Manish v v v v v " s
Bhatia

“Even though not mandated, the Company has constituted o Risk Management Committee.
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

As a practice, all new Directars (including Independent Directors) inducted to the Board are given a farmal
orientation. The familiarisation programme for our directors iscustomised to suit their individual interests and
area of expertise. The Directors are usually encouraged to interact with members of Senicr Management as part
oftheinduction programme. The Senior Management make presentations giving an overview ofthe Company's
strategy, operations, products, markets and group structure, Board constitution and guidelines, and the major
risks and risk management strategy. This enables the Directors to get a deep understanding of the Company, its
people, values and culture and facilitates their active participation in overseeing the performance of the
Management.

The details of Familiarization Programme have been posted in the Company's website

— lic coinjsites/default/files/2021-01familiarisation- ' = :
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Board Evaluation

The NRC has formulated a Palicy for evaluation of the Beard, its Committees and Directors and the same has
been approved and adopted by the Board. The details of Board Evaluation formis part of the Board's Report.

Remuneration Policy for Board and Senior Management

The Board has approved the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel ['KMP') and all

Detailsof remuneration for Directors infinancial year ended December 31,2023 are provided below!

Shares held and remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended December 31,2023

Fixed Salary

Perquisites,
Allowances

Total Fixed
Salary

Performance
Bonus

Commission

Sitting Fees

Total
Compensation

Independent Directors

Mr. Partha
Mitra®

964,975

2,00,000.00

11,64 875

Mr. Adnan
Wajhat
Ahmad**

81500000

81500000

Mr. Rajeev
Anand

204,350

7,20,000.00

9,94,350

Mr. Prabal
Kumar Sarkar

204350

10,20,000.00

12,24,350

Ms. Pritha
Dutt

204,350

79000000

9,94 350

Non-Executive

Directors

Mr, Paul Koek

Mr. Ho Yeu
Cuan®

Mr. Masahira
Kikuchi®

Mr. Ryohei
Kohashi®**

Executive Directors

br. Manish
BEhRatia

81,01,995]

1,68,22 686

25024 681

8,16,8,812

33193493

Mr. Taishi
Majima*

26,00,000

4,259,600

30,29,600

30,29,600

*Mr. Partha Mitra ceased to be independent director with effect from 23032023

*Mr. He Yew Cuon ceased ta be non-executive director with effect from 08.02.2023

* Mr, Taishi Nojima ceased to be whole time director with effect from 11.05.2023

** Mr. Adnon Wajhat Ahmaod appointed as an Independent Director with effect frorm 0802 2023
* M. Ryohel Kohoshi gppointed as a Non Executive Director with effect from 08.02.2023
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Mote:

1. MNoneof our Directors hold shares, stock options, convertiple securities or instruments of the Company ason
December 31, 2023, None of the Executive Directors are eligible for payment of any severance fees and the
contracts with Executive Director may be terminated by either party giving the other party three {3) months'
notice or theCompany paying three (3] months'salary Inlieu thereof,

2. Except for the Executive Directars and Independent Directors, all the members of the Board are liable to
retire by rotation.

3. Perfoermance Bonus/incentives payable to the Exacutive Director is determined based on the status of the
inventory and debtors, profitability and overall financial position of the Company,

4, |In addition to the sitting fees, the Company had approved payment of commission to its resident non-
executive directors pursuant to approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting held on Junes 12,
2020, The payvment of the commission was approved for a period of 5 years commencing from January1, 2019,

5 Thecriteria for payment of cammission to eligible directors as approved by the Board isas undsr;
s MNon-Executive Independent Chairman
o 0.5%ofthe profits subject toannual ceiling of Rs.850,000/
o Additional amount based on prorata weightage given to attendance in Board & Committes Mestings
s  Other Non-Executive Indepandent Directors
o 0.5%ofthe profits subject toannual ceiling of Rs180,000/- per Director

o Additional ameount based on pro rata weightage given te attendance of the individual director in
Board & Commitiee Meetings

B, At Presentsitting fees, details of which are provided below, are paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors
for attending each meeting of the Board and the Committees thereof:

Categary Armount lin
Rs.)

Board Meetings -
Chalrman 50,000

| Members 40,000
Audit Committee
Chairman 50,000
Members 35000

MNomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Grievance Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Independent Directors’ Meeting and
any other Committee which may be constituted from time to time

Chairman 35,000
Members 35,000

7. Necommission and sitting fees are payable to the representatives of the halding Company, DIC Asia Pacific
Pte. L.td.

8, Other than sitting fees and commission, thera is no other pecuniary relationship or transactions with any of
the Non-Executive Directars.
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5. BOARD MEETINGS
Scheduling and selection of agenda items for Board Meetings

Tentative dates for Board Meetings in the ensuing financial year are decided in advance and communicated
o the members of the Board. The information, as required under Regulation 17{7) read with Schedule || Part
Aofthe SEBI Listing Regulations, is made available to the Board.

The Board meets at |east once a quarter to review the quarterly financial results and other agenda items.
Additional meetings are held when necessary. Committees of the Board usually meet the day before or on
the day of the formal Board meeting, or whenever the need arises for tranpsacting business. The
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval.

{N) Eleven Board meetings were held during the year ended December 31, 2023 on January 06, 2023,
February 08, 2023, February 24, 2023, March 22, 2023, May 1, 2023, August 042023, August 28,2023,
September 062023, October 27,2023 November 02,2023 and December 232023 The gap between any two
Board meetingsduring this period did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

Attendance details of Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023, are given below:

Mame of Director Categorny Mo, of Mestings Mo af Artendance %

held during Meetings

tenure Attended

Mr. Partha Mitra® 15 &4 4 100
Mr. Adnan Wajhat Ahrmad™ G 10 2 90
Mr. Rajeev Anand I 1 | 100
Mr. Brabal Kumar Sarkar iD L] 11 100
Ms. Pritha Dutt B n 1 100
Mr. Paul Koek NED m 9 8128
Mr. Masahiro Kikuchi NED mn 5 455
Mr. Ho Yeu Guan® MED & 0 9]
Mr. Manish Bhatia ED mn N 100
Mr. Taishi Nojima* WTD 5 2 40
Mr. Ryohei Kohashi* NED 10 2 90

1D - Independent Director; NED - Nan-Executive Director;, ER - Executive Director

"Mr. Partha Mitra ceased to be independent director with effect from 23.03.2023

* Mr. Ho Yeu Guan ceased to be non-executive directer with effect frarn 08.02.2023

*Mr. Toishi Nojima ceased to be whole time director with effect from 11052023

=Mr. Adnan Wajhat Abmad appointed as an independent Director with effect from 08.02.2023,
“Mr. Ryohei Kohashi oppointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 08.02.2023

Allthe Directors were present at the date of last ACGM ofthe Company held on March 22, 2023,

Particulars of directors retiring by rotation and seeking re-appointment have been given in the Motice
convening the 76" Annual General Meeting and Explanatory Statement, attached thereto.

Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Schedule |V of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors met on Novermnber 9, 2023,
without the presence of Mon-independent Directors and members of the Managemeant, The Indepandent
Directors, inter alia, evaluated the performance of the non-independent directors and the Board of directars
as a whole, evaluated the performance of the Chairman of the Board taking into account views of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors and discussed aspects relating to the guality, guantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between the Cornpany, the management and the Board.
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&. COMMITTEES OF THE BEOARD
Audit Committes

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Internal and Statutory Auditor and the Board of Directors,
The Committee provides the Board with additional assurance as to the adequacy of the Company's internal
control systemns and financial disclosures, The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 20012 and Regulation 18(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and to review with
the management and/or Internal Auditor and/or Statutory Auditor, inter aliainthe following areas:

i} Cwversight of the listed entity's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial infermation
toensure thatthe financial statement iscorrect, sufficient and credible;,

i) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed
entity;

iil)  Approval of payment tostatutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors,

iv) Reviewing, withthe management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission tothe board for approval.

v)  Reviewing, with the management, the guarterly financial statements before submission to the board
forapproval,

vi) Beviewing, withthe management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
{public issue, rights issue, preferential issueg, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document [/ prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the
manitoring agency manitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
‘appropriate recommendations to the board to take up stepsin this matter,

vii) Reviewing and monitering the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

viii) Approvalorany subsequent madification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;
ix) Scrutinyofinter-corporate loansand investrments

x)  Valuation of undertakingsor assets of the listed entity, wherever itis necessary,

Xi) Evaluationofinternal financial controls and risk management systems;

xii) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internmal control systems;

xiil) Reviewing the adeqguacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

xiv) Discussionwith internal auditors of any significant findings and follaw up there on;

xv) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
iz suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of intermal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter tothe board;

xvi) Discussionwith statutory auditors before the audit commiences, about the nature and scope ofauditas
wellas post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

wvii) Discussionwith statutoryauditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope ofauditas
wellas post-auditdiscussion toascertaln any area of concern,
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xviii) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
sharehalders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

xix) Toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism,

xx) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. af the candidate,

xxi) Carryingoutany otherfunction asis mentioned inthe terms of reference of the audit committee.

Mr. Raghav Shukla, Corp. General Manager- Legal & Company Secretary acts as the “Secretary” to the
Committee.The internal auditor report functionally to the Audit Committee. The Statutory Auditor, Executive
Director and Senier Management of the Company also attend the meetings as invitees wheneaver required to
addressconcerns raised by the Committee Members.

(&) Six meetings of the Committes were held during the year ended December 31, 2023, on February 08, 2023,
February 24, 2023 May M, 2023, August 04,2023, October 27, 2023 and Novermnber 09, 2023,

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members for the year ended
December31,2023 are given below:

Mame of Members Category Mo, of Meetings Mo, of Attendance %
held during Meetings
tenure Attended
Mr. Rajeev Anand 1D 2 2 100
Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar ID & 2] 100
Mr, Adnan Wajhat Ahmad D 5 5 100
Mr. Paul Koel NED 6 a 100

IC - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director
The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the AGM of the Company on March 22 2023,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

+ The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 'NRC') are in compliance with the provision of
Section 178 ofthe Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

= Toformulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, pesitive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personneland octheremployees,

« ldentifving persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed insenior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and
removal, recommend to the board, all remuneration, inwhateverform, payable to seniormanagement.

- Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors,

+ Everyappointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description ofthe role and cagpabilities reguired of an independent director and whether to extend or continue
the term of appointment of the independent director, an the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors and to formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the board ofdirectors

- Recommend tothe board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable te senior management,

Cirector and Senior Managementi. The remuneration policy and the criteria for making payments to Maon-
Executive Directors Is available on our website https:/fwwydic.coin/sites/default/files/2021-0l/remuneration-
policy.pdf



Color & Comfort

4} Four meetings of the Committee were held during the year ended December 31, 2023 on February 07,
2023, March 22,2023, August 08, 2023, Movermnber 09,2023,

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members for the year ended
December 31,2023 are given below:

Name of Members Category Mo, of Meatings No. of Meetings Attendance
held during tenure Attendead %

Ms. Pritha Dutt i 4 4 100

Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar D & 4 100

Mr. Paul Koek NED 4 & 100

1D - Independsent Director, MED — Nan-Executive Directar
The Chairman of the Momination and Remuneration Committee was present at the AGM of the Company on
March 22, 2023,

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The constitution and the terms of reference of the SRC are in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 20013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations are given below:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmissiaon of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders,

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect af various services baing
randered by the Registrar & Shara Transfer Agent.

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the guantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrantsfannual reports/statutory notices by
theshareholdersofthe Company.

2} Two meetings of the Committee were held during the vear ended December 31, 2023 on May 11, 2023 and
August 04, 2023,

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members for the year ended
December 31,2023 are given below:

Mame of Membears Category Mo. of Meetings Mo. of Meetings Altendance %
held during tenure Attended
Mr, Adnan Wajhat Ahrnad o 2 2 100
Mr. Rajesy Anand i Z 2 100
Mr. Paul koek NED 2 2 100

ID-Independent Director; NED-Non-Executive Director

Interms of Regulation 6 and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Board has appointed Mr. Raghav Shukla,
Corp. General Manager- Legal & Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer of the Company.

The details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year ended December 31,2023 are given below,
The complaints relate to non-receipt ofannual report, dividend, share transfers and other investor grievances.

Details of complaints received and resolved during the year ended December 31, 2023;

Opening as on January 1, 2023
Received during the year
Resolved during the year
Closing as on December 31, 2023

o000
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The purpose of our Corporate Social Responsihbility and Sustainability ('CSR') Committee is to formulate and
recormimend to the Board, a Corparate Sacial Responsibility Palicy, which shall indicate the initiatives to be
undertaken by the Company, recommend the amount of expenditure the Company should incur on Corporate
Social Responsibility CSR') activities and to monitor from time to time the CSR activities and Policy of the
Company.

FPursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies [Corporate Sccial
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Corporale Social Responsibility Policy was adepted by the Board of

Directors. This Policy has been placed on Company's website https:/Mww.dic.coinfites/default/ffiles/2022-
02/CSR%20Policy. pdf.

{5) Five meetings of the Committee were held during the year ended December 31, 2023 on February 07,2023,
hMarch 22,2023 May 10,2023, August 03 2023 and September 26,2023

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members for the year ended
December 31,2023 are given below:

Name of Members Category Mao. of Meetings Mo, of Attendance %
held during Meetings
tenure Attended
Ms. Pritha Dutt (Chairpersan) D 5 5 160
fdr. Paul Koek MNED 5 5 100
Mr.Adnan Wajhat Ahmad =] 4 3 75
Mr. Rajeev Anand D 2 2 100
Mr. Taishi Nozima ED 3 2 6667

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director,
7. GENERALBODY MEETINGS

Location and time, where last three AGMs were held and Special Resolution passed thereat:

Financial Year Date Venue Time Special Resolution Passed
Ended
December 31, March 22, AGM held through | 11.00 AM 1. Appointrment of Mr, Adnan
2022 2023 WVC S OAVM Wajhat .ﬂ.hmad_

[Deemed Venue [DIM:00046742) as & Mon-
OIC India Limited, Exscutive Independent
Transport  Depot Director of the Company.
Foad, kKolkata 2. Appointment of Mr,
700088) Rychei Kahashi (DIN:

10043620) as a Mon-
Executive Non-
Independent Director of
the Company,
I, Ratification of
Remuneration of cost auditor.

Cecember 31, March 22, 1. 'Ratification of
2021 i Remuneration of cost auditor.
December 31, March 19, 1 Appointrnant of Mr. Rajeey
2020 2021 Anand [DIND2512876) asa

Mon-Executive Independent Director
ofthe Company
2 Appointment of Mr. Prabal

Kurmar Sarkar
(DIN:03124712) a5 a Non-
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Executive Independent
Director of the Company

3 Appointment of Ms, Pritha
Dutt {DIN:022710608) as a
MNon-Executive
Independent Director of
the Company

4 Ratification of
Remuneration of cost auditar,

Postal Ballot
During the year undear review, the Company conducted Postal Ballot for the following matters as follows:
Re-appointment of Mr, Rajeev Anand (DIN:02512876) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company

Re-appointment of Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar (DIN:03124712) as a Non-Executive Independent Directar of the
Company

Re-Appointment of Ms. Pritha Dutt {DIN:02210608) asa Non-Executive Independent Director of the Comipany.

The Board had appointed Ms. Binita Pandey (Membership No. 8441594, CP No. 19730), Practicing Company
Secretary, partner of M/5. T, Chatterjee & Associates, Company Secretaries, (FRN: P2007WBOG7100] as the
Scrutinizer te conduct the Postal Ballot and e-voting process.

Due process was followed to conduct the Postal Ballot in accordance with Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies {Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Bequirements) Regulations, 2015 and in compliance with General Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020,
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020.10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 and 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affair.

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajesv Anand (DIN:02512878) as an Independent Director of the Company a further
period of three years and up to April 30, 2027 with effect from 6th Novermber, 2023 (bath day inclusive)

Vote in favor of the Resolution:

Mo. of members voted Mo, of votes cast by % of total number of
them valid votes cast

898 6604297 59.93

Vote against the Resolution:

No. of members voted Mo, of votes cast by % of total number of
them valid votes cast

1 4758 0.07

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Prabal Kumar Sarkar (DIN:03124712) asan Independent Director of the Company fora
further pericd of threeyearsand up to April 30, 2027 with effect from 6th November, 2023 (both day inclusive)

Vote in favor of the Resolution:

Mo, of members voted

Mo of votes cast by
them

% of total number of
valid votes cast

B&

HE04271

5393

Vote against the Resolution:

Mo, of members voted

ho. of votes cast by
them

% of total number of
valid votes cast

11

47758

0.07
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3. Re-appointment of Ms, Pritha Dutt [DIN:02910608) as an Independent Director of the company for a further
period of three years and upto 30th April, 2027 with effect from Gth Novermber, 2023 (both day inclusive)

Vote in favor of the Resolution:

Mo, of members voted

Mo, of votes cast by
them

% of tatal number of
valid votes cast

L=

6604271

2393

Vote against the Resolution:

Mo. of members voted

MNo. of votes cast by
them

% of total number of
valid votes cast

11 4758

c.o7

In the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, there is no special resclution on the agenda that needs approval

through postal ballot,
8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

*  Half-Yearly Report sent to each:
Household of sharehaolders

«  Quarterly Results
Mewspapers published in

Website where displayed

»  Audited Financial Results
MNewspaper published in

*  Whether the website also displays
afficial news releases and
presentations to institutional
investors/analysts

= Whether Management Discussion &
Analysis Report is a part of
Annual Report

i Mo

Business Standard (English daily)
Financial Express (English daily)
Aajkal (Bengali daily)
wiwwidic.coin

: Year ended December 37, 2023
Financial Express (English daily)
Business Standard {English daily)
Aajkal (Bengali daily)

H Mo presentation has been made to
institutional investors/fanalysts.
Audited/ Unaudited Financial
Reports including official news
releases are displayed on the Website

: The aspects of the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report forms
part of the Annual Report.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual general Meeting 2023

Date March 222024
Time 1100 AM
Venue Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means

Financial Year

Januwary 01, 2023, to Degember 31, 2023

Book Closure Dates

Saturday, March 1&g, 2024, to Friday, March 22, 2024 (Bath
Days Inclusive)
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MName and Address of Stock Exchanges, Stock Code and Cenfirmation about payment of

Annual Listing Fees:

Stock Exchange

7, Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001

ISIN Stock Code
BSE Limited (BSE) 500089
Phiroze Jeejeabhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai = 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited INE303A01010 DICIND
(NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 05]

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) 13217

The Annual Listing Fees for the year have been paid to all these Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time.

Further, the Company has paid Annual Custody Fees for the year to both the depositories namely Maticnal
Securities Depository Limited {(NSDL) and Central Depository Services [India) Limited {CDSL) within the

stipulated time.

Market Price Data-High, Low and volume during each month in Financial Year 2023

Performance in comparison to Indices
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Pursuant to the directive of The Securities and Exchange Board of India [SEBY), whereby all work related to share
register in terms of both physical and electronic made for maintenance had to be carried aut at a single paint,
the Company hasappointed MsC B Management Services (P) Limited, Kolkata, from April 1, 2003 as its Registrar
& Share Transfer Agent, to handle its entire share related activities, both for physical shares and shares in
demat form,

M/ C B Management Services [P) Limited

P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata - 700 0192

Phone: 033-2280 6692-94/40116700

Fax! 033-2287 0263 | E-mail: ta@cbmsl.com |[Website: www.cbmsl.com

Share Transfer System

Pursuant to the directive of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Physical transfer of shares has
been dispensed with, In reference to SEBI Circular dated January 25, 2022, the Security holder/Claimant shall
submit duly filled up Form ISR-4 for processing of service request related to transmission, transposition,
consolidation/sub-division/endorsement of share certificate, issue of duplicate share certificate along with
requisite documents, The Company/RTA shall issue letter of confirmation after processing the service requests
which shall be wvalid for a period of 120 days from the date of its issuance, within which the securities
holder/claimantshall make a request to the Depository Participant for dematerializing the said securities,

The Form ISE-4 is available on tha website of the Company and can be downloaded from
https./Awvww.dic.coinlsites/default/files/2022-01/Form%20ISR-4.pdf .

Distribution of Shareholding as on December 31,2023

Mo. of Shareholders No. of Shares
Share held Total % of Shareholders Total % to Share Capital

=500 &853 23.65 525237 572
501 - 1000 201 2.75 151609 166
1001 = 2000 127 173 187468 204
2007 -3000 40 0.55 ag7vy 1.08
2007 - 4000 20 0.27 59719 0,75
4001 - 5000 22 030 103252 113
5001 - 10000 27 0.37 2N317 2.50
10001 = 50000 21 .29 376638 410
S0001 -100000 £ 0.05 279378 204
100007 and above 3 0.04 1E1T0 TE1R

Total 7318 100.00 oV7a8a7y 10000

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

As per notification issued by SEBI, with effect from June 26, 2000, it has become mandatory to trade in the
Company's shares in the electronic form. The Company's shares are available for trading in the depository
systems of both NSDLand COSL,

Ason December 31,2023, 99.09% of the Company's total paid up capital representing 2101084 equity shares ware
held indematerialized form and the balance 0.85% representing 77B93 equity shares were held in physical form.

Outstanding GDR/Warrants and Convertible Bonds, Conversion Dates and likely impact on Equity

The Company had no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments.,
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Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

DIC India purchases a variety of raw materials for manufacturing and finished products for trading. The
Company manages the associated commodity price risks based on local and global information with the
support of the parant group, subject to commercial negotiation with suppliers. There are no commiodities wheare
the exposure of the Companyto the particular commeodity is material.

Further, the Company is exposed to fareign exchange risks on its imports of raw materialsftrading goods and
capital iterm purchases and export of finished goods The Company has a robust internal policy, approved by its
Audit Cormmittee, to manage foreign exchange risks. Hedging is regularly carried out to mitigate the risks in line
with the approved policy.

Plant Location

Location Address

Kolkata® Transport Depot Reoad, Kolkata — 700 088

MNoida C-55A& B, Phase ||, Dist. Gautam Budh Nagar, Noida — 201 305

Ahmedabad Plot No. 633 & 634, CG.1.D.C. Industrial Estate, Phase |V, Vatva,
Ahmedabad — 382 445

Bengaluru 66A, Bommasandra Industrial Area, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru — 560099
T-18 to T-21, Saykha Industrial Estate, Saykha, Vagra, Bharuch, Gujrat-

wayuhe 392001

*Kolkata Plant has stopped manufacturing since December, 2023,
Address for Correspondence

Toservethe investors better and as reguired under Regulation 46(2)(j) of the Listing Regulations, the designated e-
mall address for investor camplaints is [nvestors@dic.coin, The e-mall address for grievance redressal is
continuously monitared by the Company's Compliance Officer. The Address of the Compliance officer is as follows:

Mr. Raghav Shulkla

Corp. GM- Legal & Company Secretary

DiC India Limited

Fusion Square, 5" Floar

54-5B, Sector- 126, Noida 201303

Phone: (N20 63681420

Emall: mghav.shuklagidic.co.in; investorsgidic.co.dn
Website: wwwdic.coin

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES
Related Party Disclosure

The Board has adopted the Related Party Transaction Policy far determining the materiality of related party
transactions and also on the dealings with related parties. This Policy has been placed on the Company’s
website hitpsi{fwww.dic coinfsites/default/files/202]-Ol/related-party-policy.odf

During the year there were no transactions of a material nature with related parties that had potential
conflict with the interests of the Company. Detalls of all related party transactions form a part of the accounts

as required under Ind AS 24 as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the same are given in Note 43
tothe Financial Statements.

The amnibus approval of the Audit Committee is taken for all proposed related party transactions to be
entered into during the forthcoming year and the details of all related party transactions enterad in the
preceding quarter is placed befare them. During the preparation of financial staternents during the period
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under review, no accounting treatment which was different from that prescribed in the Accounting
Standardswas followed.

Subsidiary Company
The Company had no subsidiary Company during the financial year ended December 31, 2023
Details of non-compliance

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stack Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory
authorities on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years There has been noinstance
of non-compliance with any legal reauirementsduring the year under review.

Moneof the Company'slisted securities are suspended from trading.
Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) for directors and employees which has

been placed onthe Company'swebsite https fiwwwdic coinbites/defaultfiles/2021-04/Whistle_Blower_Policy O.pdf

Under the Policy, every director or employvee of the Company has an assured access to the Audit Committes,
Risk Management Policy

The Cempany has adopted updated Risk Management which lays down precedures to infarm the Board
Members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures. These procedures are pericdically
reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through the means of a properly defined
framework.

There were no matetial financial and commercial transactions where senior management of the Company
had personal interest that may have potential conflict with the interest ofthe Company at large.

Commodity Price Risk and Commodity hedging activities

Company purchases a variety of raw materials for manufacturing and finished products for trading. The
Company manages the associated commuodity price risks based on local and global information with the
support of the parent group, subject ta commercial negotiation with suppliers. There are no commodities
where the exposure of the Company in the particular commadity is material.

Certificate from Statutory Auditors

As required by Regulation 34(3) and Schedule YV Part E of the Listing Regulations, the certificate given by
Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Statutory Auditers of the Company, isannexed to this report,

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

Asreguired by Clause 10 (i) of Part C under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Company has received a
certificate from T. Chatterjee & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries certifying that none of our
directors have besn debarred or disgualified from being appointed or continuing as Directars of the
Campany by Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or such other statutory
authority.

Secretarial Audit

The Company's Board of Directors appointed T. Chatterjee and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries
Firm, to conduct secretarial audit of its records and documents for the Financial Year 2023 The secretarial
audit report confirms that the Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Secretarial Standards, Depositories Act 2018, SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, SEBI [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Requlations, 2015, each as amended and all ather
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regulations and guidelines of SEBI as applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of
theBoard's Report.

CEO and CFO Certification

As reguired by Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule Il Part B of the Listing Regulations, the Chief Executive
Officer & Manaoging Director and Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer have given appropriate
certificationstothe Board of Directors.

Consolidated Fees paid to Statutory Auditors

During the Financial Year 2023, the total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a conselidated basis, to
Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company is as under;

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Services as Statutaory Auditor 7.850,000.00
Other Services 200,000.00
Out of Pocket expenses 356,825.00
Total 84,06,825/-

Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The disclosure regarding the complaints of sexual harmssment are given in the Board's Report.
Demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account

As on December 31, 2023, there are no outstanding shares lying in the demat suspense account/unclaimed
suspenseaccount,

Annual Certificate on Security Transfer

In terms of Regulation 40{(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, certificates, on Annual basis, have been issued
by a Company Secretary in Practice with respect to due compliance of share and security transfer formalities
by the Company.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

In terms of Regulation 76 of the SEB| (Depositories and Depositories Participants] Regulations, 2018,
certificates, on quarterly basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary in Practice with respect to due
compllance of share and security transfer formalities by the Company.

The Company Secretary in Practice carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL'} and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited "CDSL" (collectively 'Depositories') and the tatal issued and listed capital. The Audit confirms that
the total paid-up capital Is in agreement with the agaregate of tha total number of shares in physical form
and in dematerialised form [(held with Depositories). The Audit Report is disseminated to the Stock
Exchanges on half yearly basis and s also available on our website www.dic.caldn.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend and Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund ('IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education Pratection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the dividends, unclaimed for a
pericd of seven years from the date of transfer te the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company are liable to
be transferred to the IEPF.

Accordingly, unclaimed dividends of shareholdersfor FY 2018 lying in the unclaimed dividend account of the
Company as on May 192024 will be due far transfer to |EPF on the due date i.e. May 20, 2024. Further, the
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shares (excluding the disputed cases having specific orders of the Court, Tribunal or any Statutory Authority
restraining such transfer) pertaining to which dividend remains unclaimed for a consecutive period of seven
years from the date of transfer of the dividend to the Unpaid Dividend Account is alse mandatorily required
ta be transferred tothe |IEPF Authority established by the Central Gavernment.

The Company usually send individual communication to the concerned sharsholders at their registered
address, whose dividend remained unclaimed and whose shares were liable to be transferred to the IEPF,
The comrmunicationwas also published in national English and regional language newspapers.

Any personwhose unclaimed dividend and shares pertaining thereto, has been transferred to the |[EPF Fund
can claim their dus amount from the |[ERPF Authority by making an electronic application in e-form |[EPF-5.
Upon submitting & duly completed form, Shareholders are required to take print of the same and send
physical copy duly signed along with requisite documents as specified in the form to the attention of the
Modal Officer of the Company. The e-form can be downloaded from the website of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs at wwwiepf.gowin The Shareholderscan file only oane consolidated claim in a financial year as per the
|EPF Rules:

Details of date of declaration & due date for transfer to IEPF

Financial Dividend % Date of Due Date
Year Declaration for Transfer to IEPF
2022 20 March 22, 2023 April 21, 2030
2021 ;g March 22,2022 April 21, 2025
2020 a0 March 19, 3_@21 April 17, 2028
2019 45 June 12, 2020 July N, 2027
2018 il March 23,2019 April 22, 2026
2017 Mil March 22,2018 April 21, 2025
2016 40 March 24, 2017 April 21, 2024
2015 40 April 22, 2016 May 20, 2023

M. COMPLIANCE WITH DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

Allmandatary requirements of the Listing Regulations have been complied with by the Company. The status
aof compliance with the discretionary reqguirements, as stated under Part E of Schedule |l to the Listing
Regulations, isasunder:

Maintenance of Chairman's office

The Non-Executive Independent Chairman has a separate office which is not maintained by the Company.
Further, no reimbursement of his expensesare made by the Company.

Shareholders' Rights

The Company's financial results are published in the newspapers and alse posted on lts website
www dicindialtd co. Hence, the Financial Results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the Company
furnishesthe financial results on receipt of request frem the shareholders.

Modified Opinion in Audit Report

The Company, at present, does not have any madification in the audit opinion pertaining to the financial
statements.
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Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer

The Company has appointad a separate person to the post of the Chairperson and the Managing Director or
the Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Rajeev Anand (1] Chairman
Mr. Manish Bhatia ED Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

|D-Independ Director, ED- Executive Director

Further, The Chairperson is a non-executive director; and is not related to the Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer as per the definiticn of the term "relative” defined under the Companies Act, 2013,

Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Caompany's |nternal Auditor report to the Audit Commities,
Green Initiative

As aresponsible corporate citizen, the Company supports the 'Green Initiative’ undertaken by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, enabling electronic delivery of documents including the Annual
Reportete, to Shareholders at their e-mail address previously registered withthe DPs and RTAs,

Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to do the same. Those
holding shares in demat form can register thieir e-mail address with their concerned DPs. Shareholders who
hold sharesin physical form are requested to register their e-mall addresses with the RTA, by sending a letter,
duly signed by the first/sole holder guoting details of Falio Na.

The Company has sent Communication to the Shareholders who hald shares in physical mode to updats
their KYC, Bank and Nominee details. The Shareholders are requested to follow the procedure as stipulated
in the communication. The procedure for updation of KYC is also available on the Company's website

https:fwww.dic.co.infinvestors/investor-service-request.
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Annexure G

Auditors' Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
To the Members of OIC India Limited

We have axamined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Covernance by DIC India Limited, for the year
ended December 31, 2023 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 174, 18,13, 20, 27, 22,23, 24, 244, 25, 26,27 and clauses {2}
to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2} of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirerments) Regulations, 20795 (as amended)
{collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015").

The compliance of conditions of Corparate Covernanceis the responsibility of the Company's management, Our
examination was carried out in accordance with the Cuidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, It is
neither anaudit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us,

We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness withwhich the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 012754 N/NS00016)

Rajib Chatterjee

Partner

Membership No: 057134
UDIN: 24057124 BKGTZY5692

Place: Gurugram
Date: February 22, 2024
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Annexure H

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORM MR-3
(For the financial year ended December 31, 2023)

[Pursuant ta Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

OIC India Limited,

UR 03, Mani Tower

31/4), Binova Bhave Road
Behala, Kolkata 700034
West Bengal

We have conducted the secretarial audit ofthe compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
togood corporate practices by DIC India Ltd. CIN- L24223WB1247PLC0O15202 (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
cnnductsfﬂatutnrycompﬁancea and expressing our opinion thereon.

Baszed on verification of the books, papers, minute books, farms, returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, information provided by the Campany, its officers (including RTA), electronic records available in
the official portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs www. mca.gov.in, portal of the Stock Exchanges,
representation made by the Management, we heréby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering financial year ended on 31" December 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunderand also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent,inthe manner and subject to the reparting made hereinafter:

We have examined the bocks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the stock exchange, In the
official portal of the ministry of corporate affairs [MCAletc and other records maintained by the company for the
financial yearended on 31" December 2023, according tothe applicable provisions of:

. TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,
Il. TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Fareign Direct Investment, Cverseas Diract Investment and External Commercial Borrowings,

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ['SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the company -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011,

b. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

£. The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclesure Reaulrements) Regulations,
2018; inot applicable to the Company during audit period)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Cenvertible Securities) Regulation,
2027 Inot applicable ta the Company during audit period)
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e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014, | not
applicable tothe company during audit period)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations , 2009 ; { not
applicable tothe Company during audit period) and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations 2018 ; (not applicable to
the Company during audit period)

i, TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015;

j»  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Depositariesand Participants) Regulations, 2018,

VI. The Management of the Company represented that fiscal, labour and envircnmental laws and other
Statutes which are applicable to such type of companies, are generally complied with which inter-alia
includes the followings which are specifically applicable to the company:

a) Air[Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981,
b} Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;
€] Hazardousand other Wastes (Management & Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016,
d) Legal Metrology (Packaged Commaodities) Rules, 2011,
@) Factories Act 1948,
f} Petroleurmn Rules, 2002;and
g) Allotherapplicablelaws
We have also examined compliance of the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards jssued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and
general meetings,

b. The Listing Agreementsentered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s) read with the provisions
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} [Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements]
Regulations 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc mentioned above,

We furtherreportthat:

a. The Board of Directors aof the Campany is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors, There were no changes in the compesition of the Board of
Directorsthattook place during the period

The company experienced a change in directarship following the resignation of Mr. Taishi Nozima (DIN:
08401012) from the position of Whole-Time Director, effective May 11, 2023, Mr. Ho Yeu Guan (DIN: 080&6134&)
resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director, effective February 08, 2023, and Mr, Partha Mitra (DIN:
00335205} also resigned as a Non-Executive Independent Director. Meanwhile, Mr. Rychei Kohashi [DIN:
10043620) was appointad as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, effective February 08, 2023, and
Mr. Adrnan Wajhat Ahmad [DIN: Q0046742) was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director,
effective February 08, 2023,
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Annexure H

b. Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at |east seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meesting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

c. Thedissenting views of the members of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof were captured and
rminutes whenever arises. However, no such case hasarisen during the period under review.

d. The Company has complied Secretarial Standard, 55-1 and 55-2 as applicable to it with respect to Board
Meeting, General Meeting and meetings ofthe Committee of the Board.,

e. TheCompany hasobtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act.

f. There were no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were impaosed during the year under raview
under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines
framed under these Acts against/on the Company, its Directors and Officers.

g. The Directors have complied with the disclosure reguirements in respect of their eligibility of appointrment,
their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directers and
Management Personnel:

We report that during the period under review, the Board meetings were conducted through video
conferencing and adequate facilities were used to facilitate the Directors at other locations to participate in the
rmeeting,

We further repaort that there are adequate systems and processes inthe Company commensurate with the size
and aperations of the Company to manitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, no events occurred which had bearing on the Company's affairs
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standard etc.

Place: Kolkata For T.Chatterjee & Associates
Date: February 222024 FERN No.- P2007WBO&T7100

Binita Pandey

Partner

Membership No: 41594
COP No.: 19730

UDIN: AD41594E003470316

Thisreport is ta be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms anintegral part of
thisreport.
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To,
The Members of
DIC India Limited

Owr report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility istoexpress an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the Guidance Notes on |CS] Auditing Standard, audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records,
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis forcur opinion.

3. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulationsand happening of events etc.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Cur examinationwas limited tothe verification of procedures on test basis,

5. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata For T.Chatterjee & Associates
Date: February 22,2024 FRN No.- P2007WB067100

Binita Pandey

Partner

Membership No: 41594
COP No.: 19730

UDIN: A041594E003470316
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Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Certification

Pursuant to Reguiation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
wie hereby certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of their
knowledge and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statementsthat might be misleading;

2. these statementis together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accaunting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
vearwhicharefraudulent, illegal orviolative of the Company'scode of conduct,

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financlal reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal contrals, if any, of which 'we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to
taketorectifythese deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
1. significantchangesin internal control over financial reporting during the year,
2. significantchangesinaccounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed Inthe
3. notestothefinancial statements and
4. noinstancescofsignificant fraud orthe invelvementtherein, ifany, ofthe managementoranemployes
5. havingasignificant role have cometo our notice.
For DIC India Limited

Manish Bhatia
Managing Director & CEQ
DIM: C0B310936

Date: February 22,2024
Place: Maida

Gagan Deep Singh
Chief Finance Officer

PAN: AQPPSTS64M
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause {10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Cisclosure Reguirements) Regulation 2015)

To

The Members,

DIC India Limited

UB O3, Mani Tower

31/41, Binova Bhave Read
Behala, Kolkata 700034
West Bengal

We have examined the relevant registers, records, formes, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of

DIC India Limited, CIN: L24223WEB1947PLC0O15202 and having registered office at UB 03, Mani Tower, 31/41, Binova

Bhave Road, Behala, Kolkata- 700034 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company')listed BSE Ltd. (Scrip Code-

500089 ), National Stock Exchange of India Ltd,, (Stock Code-DICIND) and The Caleutta Stock Exchange Ltd.

{Scrip Code-10013217) produced before us by the Company for the purpese of issuing this Certificate, in

accordancewith Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 'V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board
i igati

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications {including Directors
Identification Number {"DIN"] status at the portal www.mca.gowvin} as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and itsofficers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended an 31" December 2023, have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of company by the Securitiesand Exchange Board
of India, Ministry of Carporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory AUthority:

Serial No. Name of the Directors DIN Date of Appointment *
1 rr. Masahiro Kikuchi 0BO24525 06-02-2018

2 Mr. Manish Bhatia Da310936 20-01-2019

3 Mr. Paul Koek co081930 29-06-2004

&% Mr. Rajeey Anand 02512876 0&-11-2020

5 Ms, Pritha Dutt 02910608 6-11-2020

6 Mr. Prabal Kurmar Sarkar 0312472 06-11-2020

7 Mr. Adnan Wajhat Ahmad 00046742 08-02-2023

B Mr. Ryohei Kohashi 10043620 08-02-2023

* Date of appointment is as per details available at the official portal of the Ministry of Corparate Affairs,

www.mea.gov.in
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity as Director on the Board Is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification and
representation made by the respective directors,

Place: Kolkata For T. Chatterjee & Associates
Date: February 222024 Company Secretaries
FRN - P2ZO0OTWBUGT7100
Binita Pandey - Partner
Membership No: 41594
COR Na: 19730
UDEIN: AQS1S94EQ034TOEEE
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Certificate of compliance with the code of conduct of the Company

This is to state that the Company had duly adopted a Code of Conduct In the meeting of the Board of Directars
held on April 29,2005 and thereafter on Octaber 28, 2016 adopted an updated Code of Conduct. After adoption of
the Code of Conduct, the same wascirculated to all the Board Members and senior management personnel for
compliance. The Code of Conduct has also been posted on'the website of the Company. The Company has since
received declaration from all the Board Members and seniar management personnel affirming compliance of
the Code of Conduct of the Company in respect of the financial year Decamber 31, 2023, The same has been duly
noted by the Boardin its mesting held en February 22,2024,

For DIC India Limited

Manish Bhatia
Managing Directar & CEQ
DIN: 08310936

Date: February 22, 2024
Place: Moida
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of DIC India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DIC India Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Less (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting poficies
and other explanatory information,

2. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income
lcomprising of loss and othercomprenhensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows forthe yearthen
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. Weconducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
ofthe Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independeant of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
theethical requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirementsand the Cade of Ethics, We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtainad is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of mest significance in our
audit of the financial staternents of the current pariod, Thase matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinionon these mattars,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Qur testing of revenue transactions was designed to
cover a sample of customer contracts. Our audit
praceduresincluded the following;

Revenue Recognition
Refer Mote 33 and 2B tothe Financial Statements.

The Company recognises revende in accordance with

tnd AS 115 "Revenue from Contractswith Customers”. | WUnderstanding, evaluating the:design.and testing

theoperating effectiveness of controls ovar revenus
recagnitian process including contract monitoring,
billings, and approvals;

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized
when control of products being sold is transferred to
customer and there (s no unfulfifled obligation and it
is measured at an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in
exvchange for those goods, after deduction of any

« Evaluating the contract terms for assessment of the
timing of transfer of contral to the custormer to
assess whether revenue is recognised in

discounts and taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government such asgoods and servicestax etc,

appropriate period;

s Testing whether the revenue recognition is in line
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have considered revenue recognition as a Key with the terms of customer contracts;
audit matter as thishas been identified as a significant
riske and additional disciosures are reguired to be
made In accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

» Assessing whether transaction price net of the
estimated discount incentive scheme has been
determined appropriately in terms of the custormer
centract, reviewing customer correspondence and
verifying that pre and post year end cut-off had
beenappropriately applied,

« Testing of journal entries for unusual revenue
transactions which are not in the normal course of
business: and

Evaluating adequacy of the presentation and
disclosures

Based on the above procedures, no significant
exceptions were noted N revenue recognition, iIncluding
those relating to presentaticon and disclosures.

Other Information

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ather Information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but dees not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expecied to be made available to us after the date of this
auditar's report,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurancea conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial staterments, cur responsibility is to read the other information
identified abowve when it becomes available and In doing so, consider whether the other information is
matarially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appearstobe materially misstated.

When we read the Annuwal report, If we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these linancial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes Inequity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments
and estimatesthat are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementationand maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant tothe preparation and presentationof the financial statementsthat give a true
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and fairview and are free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud orerrar,

7. In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company'sfinancial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free fram material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesefinancial staterments.

S, As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professicnal
seepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to thoss risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatermnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresthat are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(]) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our gpinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statementsin place and the operating effectivensss of such controls.

»  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

- Concludeonthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
inthe financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify cur apinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease tocontinue asa going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

10, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficizncies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

1. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to cammunicate with them all relationships and ather
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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12, From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financlal statements of the current period and are therefare the
key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conssguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matter

13, The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022, were audited by another
firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated February B, 2023, expressed an
unmodified opinion onthosefinancial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14 Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
mattersspecified in paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15, Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that!

{a] We have sought and abtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of aur audit,

{B) In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of books of account and ather books
and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically
located in India during the year.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income], the
Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Beport are in agreement
with the books of account.

{d} Inour apinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 ofthe Act,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on Decermber 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on December 31, 2023, from being
appointed asadirectorin terms of Section 16442} of the Act,

{fl With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to
our commentin paragraph 15(b) above that the back-up of the books of account and other books and papers

maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in
India.

{g) With respect ta the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to cur separate Report in "Annexure A"

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accardance with Rule 71 of the
Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our cpinion and to the best of our infermation
and according tothe explanations given tous:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements— Refer note 37 tothefinancial statements;

ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.
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IV,

Wi,

&

iil.

(a)

(b)

(c)

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes
tothe accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned orinvested (either from borrowed funds arshare
premium or any other saurces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any ather person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend ar invest in ether persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries [Refer note 48(j)(i) to the
financial statements);

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledae and belief, as disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or iInvest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries [Refer note 46(j)(ii) to the financial
staterments) and

Based on such audit procedurss that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused usto belleve that the representations under sub-clauss
{a) and (b) contain any material misstaterment,

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company isin compliance with Section123 of the Act,

As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for maintaining
books of account in accounting software having a feature of recording audit trail of each and every
transaction, creating an-edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date when such
changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled, is applicable to the Company anly
with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently notapplicable.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule WV to the Act,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Nurmber: 012754M/N500016

Rajib Chatterjee
Partner
Membership Number: 057134

UDIN: 240571 34BKOGTAW3969
Place: Gurugram
Date: February 22, 2024
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 15(g) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of DIC
India Limited on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DIC India Limfted
("the Company") as of December 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for theyear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's rmanagement is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal cantrol stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals
Owver Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAl"). Thess respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records, and the timely
preparationof reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility Is to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing deerned to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial contrals, both applicable to an audit of internal financial cantrols and both
issued by the |CAlL Those Standards and the Guidance Note requirg that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to ocbtain reascnable assurance about whether adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively inall material respacts,

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeauacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
ofinternal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
imnternal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivenass of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement efthefinancial statements, whether dus tofraud orerrar.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditapinionon the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. & company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements (s a process designead to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statemeantsfor external purposesin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
1) pertalin to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the



DIC India

Lmading v cvaErE

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3] provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition agf the company's assets that could have a material effect an the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals with refarance to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaterments
due toerrar or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alsa, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial staterments to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes inconditions, orthatthe degreeof compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

=

Inour opinion, the Company has, inall material respects, an adequate internal fimancial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at December 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Cornpany considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Cuidance Noteissued by [CAI

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754MN/N500016

Rajib Chatterjee
Partner
Membership Mumber; 057134

UDIN: 24057124BKGTZW3269
Place: Gurugram
Drate; February 22, 2024
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of DIC
India Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023
. {a) [A) The Company i maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of Property, Plant and Equiprnent.
(B The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{B) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification, In our opinion, the
frequency of verificationisreasonable.

[} The title deeds of all the immaovable properties (ether than properties where the Company is the lessee

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Mote 5 ta the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description of Gross carrying Held in Whether Period Reason for not
property value (Amount in | the promoter, director | held being held in the
INR lakhs) name of | or their relative or | since name of the Company
employee
Freehaold land - 2483 Coatesof | No 159 Held in the erstwhile
Chennai India name of the Company.,
Lirnited
Building - Chennai 336 1951
Building ~Ahmedabad | 167 1237
Leasehold [and - Moida | 4121 1595
| easehold land - 161,54 1993
Ahmedabad

{d} The Campany has not revalued its Property, Plant and Eguipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year, Conseguently, the question of our commenting onwhether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registerad Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the
change is 10% ar more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assetsdoss not arise,

|e} Based on the Information and explanations furnished to us, no procsedings have been initiated against
the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2018) {formerly the Benami Transactions [Prohibition) Act, 1288 (45 of 1988)) and
Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the detalls inits financial statements does not arise.

ii. {a) The physical verification of inventory excluding goods-in-transit and stocks with third parties have been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and in our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by therm and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence
of receipts have been linked with inventery records. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were nat 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventary
noticed on physical verification ofinventory by Management, and have been appropriately dealt with in
the books of account.

(b) During the year, the Campany has been sanctioned/renewed working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
guarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are not in agreement with the
unaudited/audited books of account, however such differences between the amountsdisclosed to the



banks and those as per the books of accounts asgiven inthe table below have been reconciled;
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MName of | Aggregate | Nature of Quarter Amount Amount | Difference Reasons
the Bank/ | working current ended disclosed | as per (INR in for
Financial | capital Asset/Liabilities as per books lakhs) difference
Institution | limits where quarterly | of {in INR

sanctioned | differences return/ account lakhs)

{in INR were observed statement | (in INR

lakhs) {in INR lakhs)

lakhs)

Standard 2200 Stock March 31, 12,309 14136 1,827) MNote-1
Chartered Cebtar 2023 25209 22,921 2.288 Note-2
Bank Trade Payables 15,162 17,994 [2,832) Mote-3
Standard 2900 Stock June 30, 1370 13,677 (2,307) Mote-1
Chartered Calstar 2023 26292 23554 2738 MNuote-2
Bank Trade Payables 12,840 16,242 (3,402) Note-3
Standard | 3,200 Stock September | 11,639 13,592 {1,953) Note-1
Chartered Debtaor 30, 2023 26632 24,288 2344 Mate-2
Bank Trade Payables 12,217 16,830 {4,613) MNote-3
Standard 3900 Stock Cecember | 5,589 10429 (B40) Mote-]
Chartered Debtor 31,2023 23,850 22,015 1,835 Mote-2
Bank Trade Payables 9197 N,670 [2,473) MNote-3
State 770 Stock March 31, 12,309 14,136 1,827) Mote-1
Bank of Debtor 2023 25208 22,948 2,288 Mote-2
Irdia Trade Pavables 15,162 17,994 {2,832) Mote-3
State 770 Stock June 30, 11,370 13,677 {2,307) Note-1
Bank of Debtor 2023 26,292 23554 2,738 Note-2
India Trade Payables 12,840 16,242 [3,402) Note-3
State 70 Stock September | 11,639 13,592 (1,953) MNote-]
Bank of Debtar 30,2023 26,032 24 268 2344 Maote-2
India Trade Payables 1227 16,830 (4,613) Note-3
State 770 Stock December | 9,589 10,429 {840) Mote-]
Bank of Debtar 31, 2023 23850 22,015 1,835 MNote-2
India Trade Payables 8,197 1,670 (2,473) Mote-3

{Also refer note 46(1) to the financial statements)

The Company has filed the revised guarterly returns / statements with such banks for above instances, in
February 2024, with the correct amounts, which arein agreement with the books of account.

Note-1 [mpact of slow moving/non-meving provisian, net realisable value provicion of finished goods, sales
reversal wherein risk/rewards were not transferred to the customers within period end, goods purchased
but not received wherein risk/rewards were transferred to the Company within period end, adjustments
related to physical counts and Inventory of stores and spares are not cansidered In the statemeants
submitted to Banks.

Note-2Impact of sales reversal wherein risk/frewards were not transferred to the customers within period end,
adjustments arising cut of provision for debit and credit notes/expected credit loss pravision/non-
adjustment of advance received from customers and foreign exchange reinstatement gain/(loss) are not
considered instatementssubmitted tothe Banks.

Note-3impact of accrued expenses, iability for goods received but invoices not accounted for, goods purchased
but not received wherein risk/rewards were transferred to the Company within period end, adjustrments
arising out of provision for dekit and credit notes/non-adjustment of advance given to venders and
foreign exchange reinstatement gain/(loss) are not considered in staternents submitted to the Banks.
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iii. {a) The Company hasgranted unsecured advances in nature of loan to 5 employees. The agaregate amount
during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such advances are as
per thetable given bejow,

Particulars Advances in
nature of loan
{(In INR lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the yvear 3755

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date In respect of the 22.06
above cases

As the Company has not made any investment, granted secured/ unsecured loan or stood guarantee, or
provided security to any parties during the vear, the reporting under clause 3{iii), (iii){a), liii}{b) of the Order
arenotapplicableto theCompany with respect o investrment or security orguaraniee,

{b) Inrespect of the aforesaid advances in nature of loan, the terms and conditions under which such loans
were granted are not prejudicial tothe Company's interest. These advances inthe natureof loan are given
fara period lessthan 12 manths and are interest free,

2] Inrespect of the aforesaid advances in nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of principal have been
stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal ameount, as stipulated,

(d) In respect of the aforesaid advances in nature of loan, there are no amount which is overdue for more
than ninety days.

(e) Following advance in nature of loan was granted to a party, which hasfallen due during the year and was

extended:
Name of the pRrty :::sr:gx::z::::unt Percentage of the aggregate to the total advance in the
(In INR lakhs) nature of loan granted during the year
P. Asthana 7.00 2% LM,

(f} There were no leansfadvances in nature of loan which were granted during the year, including to
promoters/related parties.

iv. TheCompany hasnotgranted any loansar rmadeany Investmentsor provided any guarantees or security
to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3{iv) of the Order
arenotapplicable tothe Company.

v, The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be depaosits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified,

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewsd the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to detarmine whether they are accurate orcomplete.

vii. {a) Accordingtothe information and explanationsgiven to usand the records of the Company examined by
us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of sales tax and custom duty, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax, goods and services tax, and
provident fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory
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dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities, The extent of the arrears of statutory dues
cutstanding as at December 31, 2023, for a perlod of more than six months from the date they became
payable are asfollows:

Name of Mature of Amount (Rs. | Period to which thel :::::_‘E;::;: SEGhder Date of

the statute dues in INR lakhs) | amount relates statutory authorities | Payment
Central Sales Sales Tax 028 2008-09 January 25, Unpaid as on
Tax Act, 1956 2022 reporting date
Cufispiicco rdtnj@MWDr matibband explanpWBs-Giren to us and tHUBHEFES of the Com phinpaid marsr by

ACL 1984 there drPHW statutony dues of provident fund, cess and oth

&Water@!"statutmy qd@ﬁﬂ%g’@ééﬁle

which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues
referred to insub-clause (a) as at December 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on account of a
dispute, are asfollows:

Name of the statute Nature of [ Amount | Amount paid Period to which | Forum where the
dues (Rs. in INR under protest | the amount dispute is pending
lakhs) (Rs. in INR lakhs) relates
Income Tax Income Fa08 - 2016-17 and Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Tax 2019-20 10 Income
2020-21 Tax (Appeal)
Income Tax Income 277 - 1988-89 and Hon'ble High court at
Act, 1961 Tax 1988-30 Calcutta
Central Sales Sales Tax 0.50 - 2002-D4 Deputy
Tax Act, 1956 Commissioner
Uttar Pradesh Value 4,08 Nes 2008-09 to Commercial Taxes
Value Added Added 200990 Tribunal
Tax Act, 2008 Tax
Uttar Pradesh Walue 17.14 1031 2010-1 to Allahabad High Court
YValue Added Added 201214
Tax Act, 2008 Tax
CGST/SGST Act, 2017 Goods and | 22.07 102 2017-18 Joint commissioner
Service Tax {Appeals)
CGST/SGST Act, 2017 Goods 1732 - 201718 Appeal pending to file
and against the arder
Service dated December 30,
Tax 2023,
Central Excise Excise 89.74 196 1984-85 1t Customs, Excise and
Act, 1944 Duty 1996-97 and Service Tax Appellate
2008-09 Tribunal
Central Excise Excise B81.48 . T1992-93 to Commissioner
Act, 1944 Duty 1993-94 and {Appeals)
2005-06 to
2007-08
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Name of the statute Mature of | Amount | Amount Period to Forum where the
dues (Rs. in under protest | which the dispute is pending
lakhs) [Rs. in lakhs) amount
relates*
Finance Act, Servics 17221 - 2001-02 to Deputy
1944 Tax 2005-06 Commissioner
Customns Act, 1962 Customs | 252.43 3.93 2009-10 to Customs, Excise and
Dty 2010-1 Services Tax Appellate
Tricunal

* period refers to the Assessment Year.

viil. According to the information and explanations given to us and the recards of the Company examinad by us,
there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as incame during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account,

ix. {a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayrment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year,

(B8] According to the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur audit proceduras, we
repart that the Cormpany has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or
government or any government authority,

c) According to the records of the Company examined by usand the information and explanations givento
us, the Company has not obtained any term loans,

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial staterments of the Company, we repart that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

le) According tothe information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
thatthe Company did nat have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year,

{fl According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did nat have any subsidiaries; joint ventures or associate companies during the year,

%. [(a] The Company has not raised any moeney by way of initial public offer or further public effer {including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order Is not
applicabletothe Company.

() The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares ar fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Orderisnotapplicable to the Company.

¥i. (@) During the course of :our examination of the hooks and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
suchcase by the Management.

(b

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
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and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143({12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, asprescribed under
rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central
Covernment. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e} Dwuring the course of ourexamination of the books and records of the Company carried outin accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has received whistle-blower complaints during the year, which
have been considarad by usforany bearing on our auditand reporting underthisclause,

®il. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, Z014 are not apglicable to it, the reporting
underclause 3{xii) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company.

xifi, The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures” spacified
under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(] Thereportsofthe Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us,

. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him: Accardingly, the reporting oncompliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3{xv)
ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvi)(a) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

{B) The Company has not conductad non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvi) (b} of the Order is notapplicable tothe Company.

{c} The Companyis nota Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India: Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvil(c] of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{d) Based on the infarmation and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group
does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accerdingly, the reporting
under clause 3{xvi){d) ofthe Order Isnot applicable tothe Company.

avil, The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 492,62 lakhs in the financial year and had not incurred cash
lossesinthe immediately preceding financial year,

wvill. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under clause [xviii) is not applicable

ik, According to the information and explanations giventousand on the basisof thafinancial ratios (Also refer
note 45 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial staterments, eur knowledge
af the Beoard of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncartainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet asand when they fall due within a period of ane year from the
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balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that cur reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit repart and we
neithergive any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company asand when they fall due.

xx.  Asatbalance sheet date, the Company does not have any arnount remaining unspent under Section 135(5)
ofthe Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxl.  The reporting under clause 3(xx|) of the Qrder is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial
Staterments. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016

Rajib Chatterjes
Partner
Membership Number: 057134

UDIN: 24057134BKGTZW3969
Place: Gurugram
Date; February 22, 2024
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Balance Sheet
As at Decermnber 31, 2023
All amounts in Hupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Particulars Note As at As at
Mo, December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022
A ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(@) Property, plant and eguipment g 1208515 4 BT2E8
() Right of use assets 1 222075 Z.BT7857
e} Capital work-in-progress 5 149528 FF259]
[d) Intangible assets & 2572 1142
(e] Fimancial ascets
() Investments 7 7951 49,60
(i) Other financial assets B Ia094 35618
[t} Deferred tax assels 9 1,5351.87 Tl B4
9] Income tax asseis (net) m H1498 a18.22
(h) Other non-clurrent assets 10 7279 29106
Total nen-current assets 18,456.40 18,550.05
2 |Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 10,428.05 1.00398
() Financial assets
tiy Trade receivables 13 22.01549 250664
{ily Cash and cash eguivalents T4 463636 670740
(i) Bank balances othar than (i) above 15 1284 1451
{liv] Other financial assets 15 IIG o6 L2777
e} Other current ass5ets i 26147 308920
39,650.97 46,309,27
|d) A=zet classified as held for sale i) - 1453
Total current assets 39,650.97 4£6,323.80
Total assets (1+2) 58,107.37 64,913.85
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
[a) Equity share capital 19 91750 ay7.a0
(b) Other equity 20 38,714.55 4130686
Total Equity 39,632.45 4222476
Z |Liabilities
21 |Nen-current liabilities
[a) Financial liakiiities
i} Lease kiabilities 41 302.07 20227
() Provisians 21 32982 Séedy, B5
Tatal non-current liabilities 631.89 2,567.36
2.2 | Current liabilities
[a) Financial liabilities
(I} Barrowings 22 500,00 -
(i} Lease Rabilities A 16636 381,81
{lii) Trade payables 23
Tetal outstanding duses of micre and small enterprises; 119.06 143350
Total outstanding dues other than micra 10.551.20 1388213
and small enterprizes
{iv) Cther financial lisbilities 24 346235 3,558.50
(B) Crther current liabilitizs 25 658,88 554 50
[} Provisions 26 820 279.00
[d) Current tax kabilities [net) 27 - 2523
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Balance Sheet
As at Decermnber 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Total current liabilities 17,843.03 20,121.73
Total liabilities 18,474.92 22,6659.09
Tatal equity and liabilities {142) 58,107.37 64,913.85

The abowve Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes forming part of these
financial staterments,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm's Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 DIC India Limited
Rajib Chatterjge Prabal Sarkar Manish Bhatia
Partner Drirector Manmaging Director & CEC
Membership Number: 057134 DIN: 03124712 O OB310936
Raghav Shukla Cagan Deep Singh
Company Secretary  Chief Finance Officer
Place: Curugram Place: Moida

Date: February 22, 2024 Date: February 22, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended December 31, 2023
Al armounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

¢ Mote Year ended Year ended
Particulars Mo. | December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
| Revenue from operations 2B B2 B854 B7199.07
Il Other income 29 81875 796 36
I Total Income (1 + 11} 83,703.89 87,995.37
IV EXPENSES
(a) Costof materials consumed 30 5776968 B0.560.63
(2] Purchases of stock-in-trade 3 % B73.44 £.318.08
(¢} Changes in stock of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 32 E3.4] 97036
Work in prograess
[d] Employee benafils expense 33 TS T 758694
(@) Finance costs 54 415,14 36936
[fI Depreciation and amaortisation expense i5 182142 134278
[g) Other expenzes I6 Nn586.77 a5e2
Total expenses 84,149.60 86,864.07
V Profitf{loss) before exceptional items and tax (Il - V) {445.71) 1,131.30
V1 Exceptional items
Expense related to Kolkata plant closure 50
- Impairment of property, plant and equipment [S7E.28) =
[alsi refer nota & and 41)
- Staff separation cost {also refer note 33) 1,466.55) -
- Legal and other ancillary cost (also refar note Z6) (ZZ6.06) -
Profit on sale of land 459 - 3,300.00
VIl Profit/{loss) before tax [V + Vi) {2,824.60) %,431.30
Vil Income tax expense
@ Currenttax
(i} Current tax expense (66.19) 234,00
(i} Income tax expense of prior yvears 2277 4134
(b} Deferred tax cradit 9 I513.56) [42.45)
Total tax expense (556.98) 332.89
IX Profit{(loss) for the year (VII - VIII) (2,267.62) 4,098.41
X Other comprehensive income
(M} Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit 1ag.58) (10,94}
okligations (refer note 382 and 50|
{it) Income tax on above 74T 275
f41.1m (8.19)
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X) (2,408.73) 4,090.22
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Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended December 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Xl Earnings per equity share (of Rs 10 each) attributable to
owners of DIC India Limited:

(1) Basic 48 (24.70) 4455
(2) Diluted 48 (24.70) 4485

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes farming
part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm's Registration Numbear: 012'?54N3’M5DQD1$ DIC India Limited
Rajib Chatterjee Prabal Sarkar Manish Bhatia
Partner Director Managing Director & CEQ
Membearship Nurmber: 057134 DN 03724712 DN 08310936
Raghav Shukla Tagan Deep Singh
Company Secretary Chief Finance Officer
FPlace: CGurugram Blace ; Moida

Date: February 22, 2024 Date) February 22, 2024
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the yvear ended December 31, 2023
All amounts in Hupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from ocperating activities:
Profit/{loss) before tax (2,824 60) &471.30
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 41514 Ia23e
Depreciation and amortisation expanse 182142 134278
Irmipairment of property, plant and equiprent and capital woark in progress EES56 -
Profit on sale of land - {3.300.00)
Bad debt and advances written off 59946 450
[Erofityfloss on disposal of property; plant and equipment (nat) (282 65) T2
Gain on lease madification (9Z.86) 19.43)
Property, plant and equiprment written off 632 930
Prowision for doubtful debts on trade and other receivables 9772 3656
and advances (net}
Liabilitlesfpravisions ne longer reguired, written back {3.38) [B3.43)
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost [172.07) 170,05}
Unwinding of discount an security deposit (3.35) (427
Dirminution in fair value of Investrment 20,032 .
Unrealised forelan exchanage (gain)/ loss (5.59) [1.73)
Operating profit/{loss) before working capital changes {241.21) 2,652.56
Adiustments for fincreaselidecrease in operating assets
- Trade receivables 200180 {1,761.08)
- Inventaries £75.03 A i
- Other assets g3z a9y 9863
- Other financial assets 8536 (5330
Adjustments for increasefidecrease) in operating liabilities:
- Trade payables (3.640.98) N,95275)
- Prowisions (B0 2T {59.83)
- Other liakilities 18638 (7a38)
- Other financial liabilities 20919 448,94
Cash generated from operating activities T06.28 4113.85
Income tax paid (net) (1e0.58) [#1E.53F
Met cash generated from operating activities 525.70 3,696.92

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase.of proparty, plant and equipment and capltal work-in-prograss (333192 [6.950.30)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equiprment 218.63 2340
Receipt of deferred proceeds from Sale of land - 3.300.00
Receipt of advance for sale of property, plant and sguipment - 8200
Investments mads in equity shares - {4260}
Change in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 167 (218)
Interest recened mis 18019
MNet cash used in investing activities {3.000.47) (3.416.49)
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All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
C. Cash flow frem Financing Activities:
Interest paid 28337 [a5.05)
Repayrment of lease llabilities 1567 32) (30562)
Proceeds from working capital demand loan 1,500.00 -
Dividend paid [185.6%) {458 95
Met cash generated from [ (used) in financing activities 4B63.73 (849.62)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,011.04) {5692.19)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 6,707.40 7.276.59
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 4,696.36 6,707.40
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 14)
Cash an hand 21 0.2
Balance with banks
-In edrrent sccounts 3.69515 329719
-|ln deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months) T,000.00 3,450.00
4,696.36 6,707.40

Mon-cash investing activities
= Acquisition of righl-of-use assets 15537 1,965,608

Notes:

i) The above Staterment of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in "lnd AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows".

(i} Amounts in bracket represent outflows.

The above Statement of Cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes forming
part of these financial statements,

This is the Statement of Cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm's Registration Number; 012754N/NS00016 DIC India Limited
Rajib Chatterjee Prabal Sarkar Manish Bhatia
Partner Director Managing Director & CED
Membership Number: 057134 DIN: 03124712 DIN; 08310936
Raghav Shukla Gagan Deep Singh
Company Secretary  Chief Finance Cfficer
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida
Date: February 22, 2024 Date: February 22, 2024
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended December 31, 2023
All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at January 1, 2023 g17.90
Changes in eguity share capital during the year -
Balance as at December 31, 2023 917.90
Balance as at January 1, 2022 91790
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at December 31, 2022 917.80
b. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
General Securities | Capital Retained
Reserves Premium Reserve | Earnings
Balance as at January 1, 2023 6,559,112 6,548.08 059 2819907 41.306.86
Profit for the year - - - (2267.62) (2,267.62)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax [141.17) [141.17)
Dividend paid - 183.58) 183.58)
Balance as at December 31, 2023 6,559.12 65,548.08 0.59 25,606.76 38,714.55
Balance as at January 1, 2022 6,559.12 £,548.08 0.59 2456780 3767559
Profit for the year - - - 4£098.41 4,088 4]
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - i8.19) (8.19)
Dividend paid - - [458.25) {45895)
Balance as at December 31, 2022 6,559.12 6,548.08 0.59 28,199.07 £41,306.86

The above Staternent of Changes in Eqguity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

forming part of these financial statements.

Thisisthe Statement of Changes in Equity referred to inoaur report of even date:

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm's Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Rajib Chatterjee
Partner
Membership Number: 057134

Flace: Curugram
Date: February 22, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DIC India Limited
Prabal Sarkar
Diirector

DN 037124712

Raghav Shukla

Manish Bhatia
dManaging Director & CEQ
DN 08310936

Cagan Deep Singh

Company Secretary  Chief Finance Officer

Place : Naida
Date: February 22, 2024




Color & Comfort

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
1. Generalinformation

DIC India Limited ('THE" or ‘the Cormpany’) [CIN: L24223WB134TPLCDI5202] is a public limited company Incorporated on
April 02,1947, The Company is a subsidiary of DIC Asia Pac ific Pte Limited, Singapore and the ultimate helding Company
is DIC Corporation, Japan: The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange [BSE), Mational Stock Exchange [NSE)and
Calcutta Stock Exchange|CSE), The Company isengaged inthe business of manufactunng of printing inks, which covers
newsprint ink, offset inkand liguid ink used in newspapers, other publications and packaaing industries. The Company
also provides lamination adhesive. Tha Company has five manufacturing plants one each at Kalkata (\West Bengal) [refer
note 50], Maida {Uttar Pradesh), Ahmedabad (Gujarat), Bangalore (Karnataka) and Saykha (Gujarat) and its registered
office issituated at Kolkata, West Bengal, India.

2. Basis of preparation

Thefinancial statements are prepared and presented inaccordance with Indian Aczounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended from tirme to time as notified under
Section133 ofthe Companies Act 2013, the relevant provision of thie Companias Act 2013 ["the Act”).

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation for all periods presented, The
Significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out in Mata 3,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thajr realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company hasidentified twelve months asits operating cycle,

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Basisof Measurement

Thefinancial staternents have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except following
which have been measuredat fairvalua:

certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative fimancial instruments),

defined benstit plans - plan assets measuraedat fair value,

Thefinancial statementsare presented in Indian Rupees, which isthe Campany's functional currency.
3.2 Recentaccounting pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Mimstry of Corporate Affalrs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Armendment Rules, 2022 which armended certain accounting standards, and are effective | April 2022 These
amendments did not have any impact on the amountsrecognised in prior periods and are nat expected to significantly
affect the current or fulure periods,

New and amended standards issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide netification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companles (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Hules, 2023 (the 'Rules’| which amends certaln accounting standards, and arg effective | April 2023,

The Rules predominantly amend Ind A% 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financlal statements. The ather
amendments to [nd AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications,

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact gn the Company in the current or future reporting
pariods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a conseguence of
amendmeants made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting poliey already complies with the now mandatory
treatment.

2.3 Revenuerecognition

Revenue s recagnized when control of the promised goads ar servicesis transferred to the custamears, atan amount that
reflects the consideration the Companyexpectsto beentitled to in exchange for those goods or services.
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All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

The Company derives revenue from Sale of Goods and revenue is recognized upan transfer of control of promised goods
Lo customersin an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expacts 1o receive in exchange for those goods,
The Company recognises revenue ance the control of promised goods is transfered to the customer |.e.when goods are
delivered tothe customer {pointin timel,

Revenue |s recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated discounts/incentive schemes.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such varable consideration, and the revenue s anly
recognised to the extentthat itishighly probable that asignificant reversal In the revenue will not occur. Arefund liability
{included in other financial liabllities) is recognised for the variable consideration payvable to the customer in relation o
sales made untll the end of the reporting pericd. Revenue s net of sales returns, The validity of assumptions used to
estimate variable consideration and axpected return of products is reassessed annually,

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point In time when the consideration is
unconditional becauss only passage of time s required before the payment is due,

Mo significant elerment of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 3010120 days, whichis
cansistentwith market practice.

3.4.0therincome

Interestincome from a financial assetis recognized when itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the amount of income can be measured rellably. Interest income is accrued on atime basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which I= the mate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipisthrough theexpected life of the financial asset tothat asset's net carryingamount on initial recognition.

Clairmsfcounter-claims/penaltiesfawards are accounted for in theyear of its settlernant,

Incomefrom managemeant fees are recognised once the terms and conditions of the related agreements/contracts are
Fulfilled,

3.5.Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the leasa transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershiptothe lesses, All other leases are classified as operating leases,
TheCompany aslessar

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Where the rentals are structured selely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
Company'sexpected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised intha year in which such benefits accrue.

The Company aslessee

TheCornpany as lessee measure the right-of-use assel at cost by recognition ef aright-of-use assetand a lease liabllity on
initial measurement of the right-of-use asset at the commencement date of the lease.

Thecostofthe right-of-use asset will comprise:
il theamountofthe initial measurement af the lease lakility,
il anylease payments made at or before the commeancement date less any incantives received,
ili) anvinitial direct costsincurred

iv) anestimate of costs to be incurrad in dismantling and rermoving the underlying asset, restoring the site on which [t is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the termis and conditions of the |sase, unless those
costs are incurred toproduce Inventories

Lease liability |s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if the rate cannet be readily determined
incremental borrowing rate will be considerad. Interest on lease liability in each perod during the lease will be the
amauntthat producesa constant periodic rate of intereston the rermiaining balance of thie leaze liability.
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Lease payments will comprise the foliowing payments of the underlying assets for the right-of-useduring the lease term
that areniot paid atthe commencement date!

il fixed paymentslessany leasz incentives recejvable

i) wvariable lease payments

i} amountsexpected tobe paya ble under residualvalus guarantess

iv] theexercise priceofa purchase option, Ifthe Companyis reasonably certain to exarcise that option

v]  paymentsof penalties for terminating the lease, [fthe lease terrm reflects the Company exercising an option to terminate
the lease,

Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset is at cost, the values of right-of-use asset s at cost less acoumulated
depreciation and impairment lossand adjustment (if any), for re-measuremient of the lease liability.

The right-of-Use asset is depraciated from the commencement date to the €arlier of the end of the useful life of the assat
or the end of lease term, unless lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end ofthe lease
terrr of if the cost of the right-of-asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase gption, In s uch case the
Company will depreciate asset to the end of the useful |ife,

Subsequent measurement of the lease liability after the commencement date will reflect the initially measured liability
increased by interest on lease liability, reduced by lease payments and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessmant or lease modification.

Right-of-use asset and |ease liabllity are presentad on the face of balance sheet, Depraciation charge an right-to-use is
presented under deprecigtion expense as a separate line iterm. Interest charge an lease liabllity is presented undet
finance cost asa separate line item, Under the cash flow statement, cash flow from léase payments including interast are
presented under financing activities.

Short-term lease payments, payrments for leases of low-value assets and vaniable lease paymentsthat are not included in
the measurement of the lease liabilities are presented as cash flows from operating activities.

3.6 Foreigncurrencies

The functisnal currency of the Company is Indian Rupees [INR} which represents the currency of the primary economic
ervironment inwhich itoperates,

Transactionsin currencies other than the Company'sfunctional currency are recognised at the rate prevaiiing at the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and fram the
translation of monetary assets and liskilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchangs rates are
recognised instaterment of profit and loss.

Exchanaz gain and loss on debtors, creditars and other than financing and invaesting activities an & net basis are
presentad in the staternant of profit and |oss, asother income and as other expenses respeactively.

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, censtructionor production of gualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarilvtake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of thase
assets untilsuch time as the assetsare substantally ready for theirintendad useor sale,

Investrment income earned on the tTermparary investmentof specific borrowings pending thair expenditure on gualifying
assets s deductad from the barrowing costs eligible far capitalization,

Allather borrowing costs are recogrized in profit or loss inthe pericdinwhich they areincurred,
3.8 Employee benefits
{a) Short-term Employee Benefits
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Allermployes banefits which are expected to be settiad Intwelve manths at the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are classifled as short-term employee bensfits, which include benefits like salaries, wages,
short term compensated absences, performance incentives, etc, and are recognised as expenses in the pariod in which
the emplayees renders the related service and measured accordingly.

(&) Post-employment benefits:
Post employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plansas under;

(il Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as superannuation scheme are charged as an expense basad
on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employeas. The
Company contributes a certain paercentage of the eligible salary for employess covered under the scheme towards
superannuation fund administered by the Trustees. The Company has no further cbligations for future
superannuation benefits other than its contributions, Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
expensewhnenemployess have renderad service entitling them to thecantributions:

(i} Defined Benefit Plans

Defined benefit plans comprises gratuity, provident fund, pension fund and retirement benefit plan and are explainad as
rranticnsd below:

1. Gratuity

Inaccordance with the Payrment of Gratuity Act, 1972, applicable for Indian companies, the Company provides fora lump
sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the |ast drawn salary and
years of employment with the Company. The gratuity fund is managed by the Gratuity Fund Trustees fund managers,
The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based an
actuarlalvaluation using the projected unit eredit method,

2. Provident Fund

Certain ermployess of the Company recalve providant fund benefits which are administered by the Provident Fund Trust
set up by the Company. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, Both the employess and the Company make monthly contributions at
specified percentage of the employees' satarny to such Provident Fund Trust. The Contribution isa defined benefit plan to
the extent that the Company has an obligation to rmake good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the trust and the notified intarest rate, The Company's obligatian in this regard is determined By an
independent actuary and provided for if the circumstances indicate that the Trust ray not be able to generate adequate
returnsto cover the interest rates notified by the Government. Company's contribution te the pravident fund is charged
ta Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. PensionFund

The Company has discontinued the Defined Pension Banefit scheme with effect from May 1, 2009 and all the emplovess
who were members of the arstwhile Defined Pension Benefil schemes have been brought under the Defined
Contribution superannuation scheme, The Company's obligaticn in respect of pension plan till April 20, 2009 is
actuarially determined at the end of each year by discounting the present value of crystallised pension as at April 30,
2009,

&, Other retirement Benefits

Liability acerued during the year in respect of other retirement benefit pavable to certain employees governed by
agreement with the unions representing them are treated as a defined benefit plan. As per the schems, a lumpsum
benefitis paid tothe eligible employees on cessation of service with the Company.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each ahrual reperting period. Remeasurerment, comprising actuarial
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gains and |osses, the effect of the changes to the gsset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on planassets (excluding net
interest), is reflected imrmeadiately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
incame in the period in which they ocour, Remeasurement recognised in ather comprehensive Inceme is reflecied
immediately in retalned earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost s recognised in profit or loss in
the pariod of a plan amendment, Net interest is calculated by applyingthe discount rate at the beginning of the pericd
the nat dafined benefitliability or agset, Defined benefit costs are cateqoriced as follows:

< service cost (including currant service cost, past service cost, as weall as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlerments),

- netinterest expense orincome; and
 remegsuremeant
(c) Other Long-term Employes Benefhts lunfunded)

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employveess and carnied forward to future pericds
to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service, on early retirerment, on
withdrawal of =chame, at rasignation and upon death of the emplayee. Accumulated compensated absences are
treated as ather long-term employves benefits, The cost of providing other long-term ermpioyes benefits (Leave
Encashment) Is determined using Projected Unft Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial galns and losses and past service cost are recognised immediately In the Staternent of
Prafit and Loss for the periad in which they occur. Other long-term emploves benefit obligation recognised in the
BalanceSheet represents the present value of related obligation.

Compensated absences which are not expacted to occur within twealve months after the end of the period in which the
employes rendersthe related service arerecognised based on actuarial valuation,

(d} Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
ohkligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is prokakle that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
theabligation. Cost are recognised immediately inthe Statemeant of Profit and Lossfor the period inwhich they soour.

3.9 Taxation
CurrentTax

Thetax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taw’ asreported in
the staternent of profit and loss because of items of Income or expense that are taxable ordeductible in other vears and
iterns that are never taxable or deductible, The Company's current tax |s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted orsubstantively enacted by the end of the reperting perlod.

Detfarred Tax

Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences betweean the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial staternents and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are
generally recogniséed for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
termporary differences to the extant that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible termporary differencescan be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets isreviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced tothe extent that
itis no longer prebable that sufflcient taxable profits will beavaitable to allow all or part of the asset o be recoverad.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
llability is settled or the asset reallsed, basad on tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
theendofthe reporting pariod.

The measurement of deferrad tax liabilities and assetsreflects the tax consequences that would follow from the rmanner
in which the Campany expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
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and liabilities,
Current anddeferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in prafit or loss, except when they relate to [tems that are recognised inother
camprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly inequity respectively,

3.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost lessaccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmeant losses, if
ary. Cost includes expenditure that isdirectly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assetl's carrying amount or recognisad as a separate assel, a5 appropriate, only
when jLis probable that future economic benefits associated with the iterm will fiow to the Company and the cost of the
itern can ke measurad reliably. The carryingamount of any component accounted for as a separdie asset s derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reparting
pericd inwhich theyare incurred.

Capital work in progress (CWIP) is stated at cost: The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction
cast, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the lacation and condition necessary, CWIP arg not yet
ready for their intended use and the cost of assets nol put Lo use before the reporting date,

3.10.1 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciable amount for assetsisthe costofan asset less its estimated residualvalue,

Depreciation on property, plant & eguipment has been provided as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule || to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of the certain categories of assets, in whosa case the life of the assets has been
assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset; the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating canditions of the asset, past history of replacament, anticipated technaolegical changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, atc,

Theestimated useful life ofvarious property, plant & equipmentis as under:-
(2] Buildings-3to &0 years, written down value method
(b} Vehicles-2tal6 years, written down value method
[} Furniture and fixtures- 2 1o 30 years, written down value method
(d} Office equipment- 2 to30years, written downvalue method
(=} Plantand equipment usedin manufacturing- 2o 20 yvears, straight-line method
[f) Computer-3-10 years, straight-line mathod

On Plant and eguipmentand computer as mantioned above in (e) and [f) above, depreciation is provided onstraight line
rmethod over the usaful lives, On all other tangible assets, deprecialion is provided on written down value method aver
the useful lves.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful life, residual life and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on 8 prospective basis. In respect of assets whose useful lives has
beenravised, theunamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful lives of the assets.

An itern of property, plant and equipmeant is derecognised upon dispesal or when no future econgmic bengfits are
expected Lo arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or |oss arlsing on the disposal or retirermeant of an item of
property; plant and equipment Is determined as the difference between the sales procesds and the carrying amount of
theasset and is recognised in profit or loss,

3.1 Intangible Assets
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Intangible assets are amortised over thielr estimated useful life on straight lire method. Expenditure on computer
software, which is not an Integral part of hardware, is capitalised as an intangible asset. The cost of softwars includes
license fer and implementation cost and |s capitalised in the year of its implementation. Computer Software are
armortised ona straight-line Basis over their estimatad useful life of four vears.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewesd at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
anychanges inestimate being accounted foron a prospsctive basis,

3.12 Impairment of Non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting perod, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
deterrmine whether there js any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, If any such indication
exists, the recaverable amount of the asset is estimatad inorder todetarming the extent of the impairment loss {ifanyl.

When It is not possible to estirmate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit towhich the asset belonags. When a reasonakble and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assels are also allocated to individual cash-genarating units, or ctherwise they are
allocated to thesmallest Component of cash-generating unitsfor which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified,

Recoverable amount |s the higher of fair value less costs of dispasal and value In use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not bean adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-genarating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset lor cash-generating unit) s reduced to its recovierable amount. An impalrment loss is
recegnised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of [ts recoverable amount sa that the Increased carrying value does not exceed the carrylng value
that would have been determined had no impairment lass been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in
pricryears. & reversal ofan impairment lossis recognisaed in the statement of profitand loss imenediately.

3.13 Inventories
Inventaries srevalued at lower of cost and rnet realisable value

Costisdetermined on first-in-first-aut forrmla for all categories of inventories except stores and spare parts forwhich itis
determined under weightad average formula, The cost comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to theair respective present iocation and canditian,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necassary to make the sale,

Inventories are writtan down for obsclete / slow=moving/ nen-moving iters, wherever necessary,
3.14 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
a. Provision

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) asa result of a past event, it
is probakle that the Company will berequired tosettle the obligation, and areliable estimate can bz made of the amount
of the obligation,

Theamount recognised asa provision |sthe best estimate of the consldemation required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting perod, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the abligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying armount is the present
valle of thase cash flows (when the effect of the ime value of money s material),

Whign some or all of the econoimic benefits required to settle a provision are expectad to be recovered from a third party, a
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recetvable s recognised as an asset if it s virtually certain that reimburserment will be received and the amount of the
receivable canbe measured reliably.

b. ContingentLiabilities

Contingent iabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- ccourrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
contral of the Company ar a present obligation that arisas from past events whers itis either not probable that an outflow
of resourceswill be required to settle aora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made,

3.15 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic sarnings per share (EPY) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by theweighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS iz computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
autstanding during the period exceptwhere the result would be anti-dilutive,

3.16 Cash and Cash equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other
shiort term highly liguid investrnents with original maturities of three months or lessthat are readily convertible to known
amountsof cash and which are subjsct to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts: Bank overdralts
are shown within borrowingsincurrent liahilities in the Balance Sheet.

317 Segment Reporting

The Company's segment reporting is in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segrments. Operating segments are
reparted in a manner consistent with the internal rﬁp::tr"tlng provided to the board of directors, which Is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, and has been (dentifled as the chief
aperating decision maker.

3.18 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becormes a party to the contractual
provisiansof the instruments,

Financial assets and financial labilities are Initially measured st fair value. Transaction costs that are dirsctly attributable
to the acquisition or ssue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than firancial assets and financial liabilities at
fairvaluethrough profit or loss) are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial lakilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities atfair value through profit or loss are recagnised immediataly in profit or loss.

219 Financial assets

&ll recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on tha classification of the financial assats

All atherfinancial assets are subsequently measured at fair vaiue,

3191 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (EWTRL]

Debt instruments that do not meetthe amortised cost criteria ar FVTOC! criteria (see above) are measured at FYTRL, In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOC critena but are designated as at FVTPL
aremeasured at FVTPL.

Financial assetsat FVTPLare measured atfairvalueat theend of 2ach repeorting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurernent recognised In profit ar loss,

2192 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss mode| for recognising impairment less on financial assets measured at
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amortised cost, |ease receivables, trade receivables and other financial assets,
Expected Credit loss isthe difference between all contractual cash flows that are due tothe Company in accardance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive [ie. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original

effective interest rate, The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual termsof the financial instrument
through the expected life of that financial instrument.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses, Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expacted life of a financial instrument. Lifetime expected credit loss iscomputed based on a provision matrix which takes
in to the account risk profiling of customers and historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward lecking
infarmation.

For other financial assets, expectad cradit loss is measured at the amount egual to twelve months expected credit loss
uniess there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those are measurad at
lifetime expected cradit (oss.

3193 Derecognitien offinancial assets

The Company derecognisesa financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, orwhen
ittransfersthefinancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset toanother party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carryving amount and the sum of
the considaration recelvedis recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

3394 Foreign exchange gains and losses

Thefairvalue of financial assets denominated ina foreign currency is deterrminad inthat foreign currency and translated
atthespotrate at the end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amaertised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss,

3.20 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2201 Classification as deblor equity

Debt and equity instrupnents issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial labilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangerments and the definitions of a financial liability and an eguity
instrument,

3202 Egultyinstru

An equity instrurment s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all ol its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Cormpany entity are recognised at the proceeds receved, net of direct issue
costs.

E203 Finanaial liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method arat FVTPL.

2203 Financial liabilitiesat FVTPL

Financialliabilities are classified as at FYTRPL when the financial liability is held for trading ar it isdesignated as at FYTPL,

Financlal habilities at FYTPL are stated at fair valug, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The-net gainor loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included inthe'Cther income'ling itern,

32032 Financial labilities subsequentlyimeasured at armortised cost

Financial liabllities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost at
the and of subsequent accounting periods, The earrying amaourts of financial liabilities that are subseguently meastred
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at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method, Interest expense that is not capltalised as part
of costsof anasset isincluded inthe 'Financscosts’ line iterm.

The effective interest methed is 2 method of calculating the amortised-cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense aver the relevant period. The effective interest rate s the rate that exactly discounts estirmated future
cash payments (Including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective intarest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, ar (where
appropriate) ashorter period, tothe net carrying amauntoninitial recognition.

32033 Forelgn exchangegains and losses

Far financial liabilities that are denominated ina foreign currencyand ars meaasured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange galns and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments
and are recogrised in 'Othar incorne’,

The fair value of financial llakilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting peried. For financlal liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the
foreign exchange component forms part of the fairvalue gains or losses and isrecognised instatement of profitand lass,

22034 Derecognition of financial liakilities

The Company derscognises financial labilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liakility derecognised and the
consideration paid and payableis recoghised instatement of profit and loss,

3.21 Derivative financialinstruments

The Company enters into derjvative financial instrurments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange Torward contracts.

Derivativas are initially recognised at falr value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subseguently
rermeasured totheir fair values at the end of each reporting pernod. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Z.22 Non-current assets held for sale

Mon-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction ather than through continuing use, This condition is regarded as mat only when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its presentcondition subject only toterms that are usual and custamary Tor sales of such assetand its
saleis highly prebable: Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to gualify for recognition
asacompleted sale within aneyearfromthedateof classification.

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
tosell.

3.23 Covernment grant

Government grants are not recognised untll there s reasonable assurmnce that the Company will comply with the
conditions attaching totherm and that the grantswill berecelved.

Covernmeant grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immeadiate financial support to the Comparny with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period inwhich they become receivable.

The Company recelve government grants in the form of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) and RoDTEP
censes, which are issued as export benafits and are recognisad as revenue grants, Expart incentives are recognisec as
Other operating Income In the Statement of Profil and Loss al the time of submission of application to the concerned
Government authority after ascertaining the ameount of benefit permissible under the scheme.

4, Critical accounting estimates and assumptions



Color & Comfort

4.1

3}

b)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in nete 3, the management of the
Cormpany are reguired to make judgemsnts, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of asssts and
liabilities that are not readily apparent fram other sources: The estimates and associated assumiptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relavant, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed ah an ongeing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revisad if the revision affects only that period, ar in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future pericds.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Thefollowing are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reparting period that may have asignificant risk of causing a material adjustment o the carrying armounts of
assets and liabilities within the nest financial year,

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial
valuation invalves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developrments in the future, These includs
the determination of thediscountrate, futuresalary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invalved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined berefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptionsare reviewsd aleach reporting date.

The pararmeter most subject 10 change i5 the discount rate, In determining the appropriste discount rate, the
management considers the Interest rates of government bonds in the currencies of the post-employment banefit
ohligation,

The mattality rate is based on publicly available martality tables, Those mortality tables tend to.change only at interval in
response o demagraphic changes, Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected futureinflation
rates; seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such assupply and demand in the employment market.

Usefullife of Property, plantand equipment

Property, plantand equipment (asset) represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. Thecharge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life, The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by
managemant at the time the asset s acquired and reviewed penodically, including at gach financial year end. The lives
are based on historical experience withsimilar assets as well as enticipation of future events, which may impact thair life,
such aschanges in technology,

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profit will be avallabie against
which the losses can be utilised. |n assessing the prabability, the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient
taxable ternporary differences, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax
cradits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management Judgement Is reguired to determine the amount of
deferred tax assats that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.
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. Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress

Description of assots Land Buildings | Plant and | Fumniture | Viohicles Office Computers Total Capital
Freehold equipment and Equipment wark in

Fixtures progress

1. Grass earrying amount

Balance as ak January 1, 2022 95,07 20981 S365,06 33323 254 1329 G107 | 1233437 265,14

Add Additicrs during the =3 iz

vear - B7.A47 45289 inog - - Hple 02 6518 747013

Less: Defetions transfers

during the year - 1335 IBTE ox - & 41 5aE] H1556

Less: Rectassified as held for

sale [refar note 18) - 3808 . o= - - . IaBG

Balance as at December 31,

2022 96.07 2,]159.65 9,78219 363.30 .94 1513 441.08 | 12,858.36 T 723591

Balance as at January 1, 2023 o507 215965 g7E319 T5E30 294 1513 44108 | 1285835 77239

Add: Additions during the —— — — — gan N

vear ' i ; ; ' 55 sso006 | 32639

Less: Deletions/ transfers

during the year . 008 Iz0a 6,16 - - aZrar TEI0 SHAO00E

Balance as at December 31,

2023 5607 56481 15,296.06 52872 B3.88 En 51287 | 2218222 1,540.24

Il. Acceurmulated

depreciation and

impairmant

Balance asatJanuary 1, 2022 - [Reri i I = s 248,68 252 872 28283 | 70654 -

Add: Depreclation expense - 156,51 6723 SleZ an 116 ToEE 953,25 -

Less: Deleticns during the

aar - 37E 937 - - - 209 BL=tEE] -

Less: Reclassified as heldl for

sale {refer nota 18) . 1268 . GAS - - . 2033

Balance as at December 31,

2022 - 1153.67 B.164.58 299.65 2.63 9.68 35557 | 7,98598 =

Balance as at Janudary 1, 20235 - 115367 A16458 29565 263 SAS 35587 ToAS3E -

Add Depreciation expense . 50665 BEETD T2 843 235 TED4 155291

Al Provision for smpairment

during the year {refer note 50) . 14936 45622 17,04 008 081 106 24 610 44,96

Less: Dalations during the

year - Q.01 25T 478 - - I653 BEal -

Balance as at December 31, - | 180963 748239 | 3B4.65 15 13.04 396.14 | 10,097.06 44,96

2023

Met carrying amaount (=11}

Balance as at December 31,

2023 26,07 IBI842 TEIZET 14147 7273 207 Te75 | 1208516 149528

Balance as at December 31,

2022 5607 100558 5176 IR 0.3 I35 B551| 487238 7,723.9
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5. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (Cont'd)
Note:

{} Duringthe year 2017, conseguent to losses incurred in adhesive division and after evaluation ofthe expected
future performance of the division, the Company had performed an impairment analysis and recorded
impairment of property, plant and equipment of the adhesive division Rs, 1125.80 lakhs. While recogrising
the impairment loss, the Company had considered its adhesive business division as a cash generating unit,
in keeping with the accounting policy on Impairment set out in Note 312, and the value in use as the
recoverable amount,

Dwuring the current year, the management has carried out an assessment of impaired adhesive division as
per Ind AS 36- Impairment of assets. In view of management, there is no change In impairment indicators
and the management has future projection of losses in this CGU in coming years, Accordingly, the
management continued with the provision for impairment recorded in the previous year ended Decernber
31,2017 inrespect of Adhesive division as per above assessment made by the management.

(it} During the year 2023, consequent to the closura of the Kelkata Plant situated on the land of Kolkata Paort
Trust, the Company has analysed that no cash can be further generated from the property, plant and
eguipment situated at Kolkata plant and considering the same, the Company has recognised provision for
impairment on property, plant and eguipment and capital work in pregress amounting to Rs. 624.60 lakhs
and Rs 4496 lakhs respectively, situated at the kaolkata plant which can not be transferred to another
location.

ill) Refer note 37(b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
eguipmeant.
Ageing of capital work-in-progress as at December 31, 2023:

Particul tan 1-2 2-3 :“:‘“ar: Total
culars - ars - rs ota
1 year ye yea 3 years
Projects in progress 149528 - - - 1,495.28
Projects termporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,495.28 - - - 1,495.28
Ageing of capital work-in-progress as at December 31, 2022;
Particul e an 1-2 2-3 ::‘3: Total
articulars - ars - ars
1year ye ye 3 years
Projects in progress €820.20 854 5% 4518 - 77239
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Taotal 6,820.20 854.53 4918 - 7,723.91

Mote: There are no projects whose completion is overdue ar has exceeded its cost compared to its eriginal plan.
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6. Intangible assets

Particulars Computer
Software

l. Grass carrying amount
Halance as at January 1, 2022 9458
Add: Additions during the year -
Less: Deletions during the y=ar -

Balance as at December 31, 2022 99.58
Balance as at January |, 2023 9958
Add: Additions during the year 2210
Less: Delations during the year -

Balance as at December 31, 2023 121.68

Il. Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at January 1, 2022 BO98
Add: Amortisation expense 7.41
Balance as at December 31, 2022 B839
Balance as at January 1, 2023 BE3G
Add: Amortisation expense 817
Balance as at December 31, 2023 96.56

Net carrying amount (I-11)
Balance as at December 31, 2023 25.12
Balance as at December 31 2022 1=
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7. Investments

As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
) 2023 2022
Investment in equity instrurments [measurad at fair value through profit or lass)
Unguoted, fully paid:
496,000 [December 31, 2022 496,000) equity shares of Hs. 10 each fully paid in 29,51 4960
Solarstream Renawable Energies Private Limited
Total 29.51 43,60
Aggregate amount of unguated instrument 29.51 43,60

Note:

The Company holds 510% (December 31, 2022 . 510%) eguity shares of Solarstream Renewable Services Private: Limited, a

Company engaged in the business of providing sclar energy to its customers

8. Other non-current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits ®

Total

In05s

A58

360.94

356.18

*Includes amount paid under protest Rs 5012 fakhs [December 31, 2022 48 31 lakhs] for indirect tax litigations, where the matter

is disputed.

9, Deferred tax assets

Defarred tax assals 125187 Ta0 B4
Total 1,351.87 790.84
The Tollawing is the analysis of deferred tax assets (labilities) presentad in the balancs sheat;
Balance | Recognised Recognised Balance as on
as on in statement in other December
Particulars January 1, of profit comprehensive 31,2022
2022 and Loss income
(i} Provision for doubtful debs 12444 Y20 - 13564
(i} Prowision for amploves benefits 22499 [21.70) 275 20604
(i) Praperty, plant and equiprment's and intangible assets 205,08 Ta22 22330
{iv) Expenses allowahble for tax purgose on payment 18713 4073 - 22786
Deferred tax assets T45.64 42 45 275 T90.84
Balance | Recegnised Recognised Balance as on
as on in statement in ather December
Particulars January 1, of profit comprehensive 31, 2023
2023 and Loss income
(1} Provision for doubtful debts 13364 1678 - 14992
() Prowision far emploves benefits 20604 {6B.97) HTAT 184,54
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fiiiy Property, plant and equiprment's and intangible assats 22330 (SE.R4) - 18646
liv) Expenses allowable for tax purpose on payment 22786 13209 - 35895
v} Current year's loss - &50.00 49,00
Deferred tax assets Ta0.84 513.56 G747 1,351.87
MNote:

A reconciliation of income 1ax provision to the amount computed by apphying the statutory income tax rate o the income
before income tax s summarized below:

: Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Profit beforetax ™ [2,824.80) &453130
Imcame tax expenses caleulated at 25168% Mo.s0) 28473
Tax effect of armaunts which are not deductibie (taxabla) in caleulating taxable incoma 45 47 4957
Others 10451 f1.41)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (556.98) 33289

T The Long term capital gain tax an profit on sale of land [shown'as exceptional item in the year 2022) was pald in the yaar 2021

hote: Provisions for taxation has been recognised with reference ta profit for the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with
the provisians of Incame-tax Act, 1961 and rules framed thereunder. The ultimate tax lability for the financial year 2023-24 will be
determinedon the basisof total taxable inceme for the nine menths ended December 31, 2023 and 3 months ending March 31, 2024

10. Other non-current assets

; As As
Particulars Decan@fer 3, Denamgter 3,
2023 2022
Unsecured, considered good
{a) Capital advances® L1 i) 259,06
ib] Prepaid expenses 1522 26:36
() Balance with Banks:
(1) Balance held as margin monay or security against guarantees and other cormmitments 561 &7
(i} In deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than 12 menths) - 1.00
Total 7279 29106
* net of provision for doubtiul advances amounting 1o Bs 115 lakhs (Decamber 31, 2022 Nil)
M. Current tax assets (net)
As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Advance tax including tax deducted at source 544145 574280
Less: Provisian for income tax [%B26.47) {4 626:47)
Total 814.98 616.22
12. Inventories
[al Raw material 4T 527450
[k} Wark-in-pregress 148225 139223
(c) Fimished goods 540355 358341
(c} Stocks in- trade SHTB0 LETET
(&) Stareand spares 7763 15293
[f) Cantainers 107 5] 103 44
Total 10,428.95 Nn,003.98
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As at As at
December 31, December3],
Detaits of stock in transit (Included in Inventories] are as follows 2023 2022
[a} Raw materials 5731 108552
() Finished goods 98554 S0216
() Stock in trade 5419 2515
(d} Containers 1380 -
Total 1,097.64 Z,082.83

1271 Wrrite: downis of inventories ta net realisable value amounted to R 13362 lakhs [Decernber 31, 2022 - B=_ [T126) lakhs). These
were recognised as an income duripg the year and included |n 'Chafiges in stock of finished goods, stock-in-trade and
work-in-progress’ in statemeant of profit and loss

12.2 Wite-downs of inventories due to pravision far slow moving inventories/ [reversal of provision) amounted to Rs. (91.62) lakhs
(December 31, 2022 - Bs (12.5]) lakhs). These wesa recognised as an income during the year and Included in “Cost of matenals
consumed” in statement of profit and ioss.

13. Tracle receivables

As at As at
Particulars e i

Currenmt
[a} Trade receivables from contract with eustomers - billed 2204005 2465112
|b) Trade receivables from contract with customers - refated parties [refer note 43) 5710 94629
Less Loss allowance 525.66) (531.00)
Total 22,015.49 25,066.41
Break-up of security details
|3} Trade recejvabies considered good — secured 1128.08 98506
(2} Trade recelvables considered good - unsecured 2148309 2461235

22 61115 25,597.41
Less Loss allowance {505 66) (531,00)
Total 22,015.49 25,066,451

3.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 10 120 days Mo interest s charged on the tade recelvables for the amount
overdus above the credit period.

13.2 The Company assesses the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

13.3 The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the cxpected credit loss allowance for trade receivabios basod
on a provision matrix undesr simplificd approach. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experionce and
adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables
are due For computation of expected credit loss gllowance, the Company excludes intercomparny balances and trade
recaivables which are secured by dealer deposits. Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience and
current facts available In relation to defsult and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for these trade receivables is
cansiderad low, The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period s as follows:

Ageing wise % of expected credit loss

As at As at
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Within the credit period O17%-095% (=152
90 days overdue 020%-114% O 82%1.8%
91180 days overduo 1259 733% 2.05%-12.84%
181-270 days overdue 25.95%-4093% 2139%-5T3TH
2-365 days overdue £1.71%-76.61% 100.03%
Maore than 365 days overdue 10000% Q0%
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As at As at
December 31, December 3],
2023 2022
Within the credit period 18,268 .06 AE22.87
90 days overdue 280726 3E29.85
91-180 days overdue 15657 28512
181-270 days overdue BH35 &R.7H
271-365 days overduoe 2B1.04 T9.00
More than 365 days overdus 2987 A
22,615 25,597.41
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Balahce at the beginning of the year 53100 B
Mowvernent in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime s g2 3656
sxpected credit losses (net)
Bad debt written off [42.9E)
Balance at the end of the year 595.66 53100
13.4 Ageing of trade receivables and credit risk arising there from is as below:
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Toial
Particulars kitad Not yet Less than |Sixmeonths| 1-2 Years | Morethan 2
due six months | 1Year Years
13) Undisputed trade recejvables
- considered good - 18,968.06 296383 349359 T548 21439 22,6105
- credit mpaired - - i -
6] Disputed trade receivables
- considersd good - - - - - -
- gredit Impaired - - - - - -
Total - 18,96B.06 2,963.83 34939 Ns5.48 439 228115
As at December 31, 2022
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Mot yet i
Unbilled yo Less than Six 1-2 Years | More than 2
due six months | months- 1 Years
Year
(2} Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 522 87 301497 14578 neoyY =t 25,597.41
credit impaired - .
(b} Disputed trade receivablos
- considered good - - - =
- credit impaired - - - -
Total - 21,522.87 I1,614.97 145.78 N5.07 198.72 25,597.41
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14. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 37,
2023 2022
{a} Cash on hand oA a2
{b} Bank balances
[i} I current aocalnts 365615 325719
[il] In deposit accounts {with original maturity of less than 3 months) 1,000.00 345000
Total 4,696.36 6,707.40
15. Bank balance ather than cash and cash equivalents
{a) Bank deposit acoounts [with orginal maturity more than 3 months Sut 18ss than T2 months) 053
[b) Balances with banks in Unpaid dividend accounts 12.41 1451
Total 12.84 14.51
16. Other current financial assets
Unsecured, Considered good
(2} Security deposits 2498 2629
(b} Recenvablas from related partias (refer nate 43) 258 Hy 25067
e} Advance to employees® #1334 o561
{d) Imterest accrued'on bank deposits 051 4,65
(e} Others
(i) Insuramce Claim receivabie LB
[ii) Other recenables 019 0,20
Total 335.06 L2777
* Net of provision for doubtful advances ameounting to RBs. 3386 lakhs (Decamber 31, 2022: Rs. 5.50 lakhs}
17. Other curreni asseis
As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
(a) Prepaid expensa 120745 778
(b] Achvance (o vendors 23540 SAS.84
e} Balance with government authorities
{i) Wat credit receivable 405 4,05
{Ii} Coods and services tax credit receivaole 1,118,358 2124.85
(iii} Duty Drawback receivable 2522 3113
{iv] RoDTEP License recsivable 457 BE.88
v} MEIS Licensa ™ B0OET
Total 26147 3,089.20
* Matof Provision for doubtful receiable amounting to Re102.75 lakhs (December 31, 2022 Re. 13468 lakhs)
** Net of provision for doubtful receivable amounting to Re 2153 lakhs [Decamber 31, 2022: Nil)
18. Asseis classified as held for sale
Building held for sals 14.50
Furpiture and Fistures held for sales 3 0.0
Total - %53
Note:

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has sold its apartment located at Sarvapriva Vihar, Mew Delhi vide a

conveyances deed dated Januarny 16, 2023 for 2 sals consideration of Bs 16000 lakhs
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19. Equity share capital

As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2022
Particulars No.of  Rs, lakh No. of Rs. lakh
shares shares

Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of s 10 gach with vating rights 15,000,000 150000 15,000,000 150000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid:
Equity shares of Bs 10 each with voling rights 378277 91790 9178277 M7o0
Total 9,178,977 9N7.90 9,178,977 917.90

(i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares:

The Company has ane class of Equity shares having a par value of R310 per Equity Share. Each sharcholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend preposed by the Board of Directors s subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the
ensuing Annual General Maeting, except in case of interimn dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders ara
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company atter distribution of all preferential amiounts, in propartion totheir shareholding

(ii) Details of shares held by the holding company:

Az at December 31, 2023

Az at December 31, 2022

Particulars No. of (% of Mo. of (% of
shares holding) shares holding)
DIC Asia Pacific Pte, Limited, Singapore- Holding campany 6586077 TI7S 6586077 7175
(iil} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
§ As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2022
Particulars No. of (% of No. of (% of
shares holding) shares holding)
DIC Asia Pacific Pre. Limited, Singapare- Holding company 6,586,077 i W 586,077 s

{iv) Reconciliation of number of shares

Parciculars As at December 31, 2023

As at December 31, 2022

Mo, of {3 of Mo. of % of
shares  holding) shares helding)
Balance at the beginning af the year 9178977 917 en AR 91780
Add: Issue of Shares - - .
Balance at the end of the year 178977 917.20 9ITB97y a7 a0

(v] Details of shares held by the promoters:

As at December 31, 2023

As at December 31, 2022

Particulars No. of (% of No. of (% of
shares holding) shares halding)
DIC Asia Pacific Pta, Limited, Singapore- Holding company Ej._SE,Cr’?'? TLETS 5,586,077 775

[wi) Thera were no shares issued pursuant 1o contracts withaut paymeant being recelved in cash, by way of bonus issue and no
shares were bought back in the period of five years immediately preceding the date as atwhich the Balance Sheet is preparad.
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20. Other equity
As at As ai
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Goneral resorve 655512 655902
Securitias premiurm 654808 654808
Capital reserva 058 059
Retained:earnings 2560676 28,199.07
Total 38, M4.55 &1,306.06
{i) General reserve
Opening balancs 255912 655312
Closing balance 6,555.12 6,559.12
{il} Securities premium
Opening batance 0558 .08 b, 58,08
Closing balance 6,548.08 6,548.08
{iii} Capital reserve
Oponing balance 059 .59
Clasing balance 0.59 0.59
(iv) Retained earnings
Opening balance 2B 19907 24 56780
Profit/{loss) for the year {2 267.62) & 098 4]
Items of other comprehensive income recognised diroctly in retained earnings
- Rerneasuremeants of post-employment bensfit abligation, net of tax (14717} (B15)
Dividend pald (18358) (458.95)
Cilosing balance 25,606.76 28,195.07

Mature and purpose of reserves

General roserve: This iscreated by an appropriation fromone comnponent of otherequity (generally retained earnings) toanother, not
being an item of Other Comprehensive Income. The same can be utilised by the Company in accordanco with the provisions of the
CompanicsAct, 2013,
Securities promium: This ropresents the promium on issue of shares and can be utifised in accordanico with theo provisions of thio
Companissact, 2013

Capital reserve: It pertains to capital reéserve acoulred pursuant to the scheme of arrangement under the Companies Act accounted
under pooling of interest method and excess of purchase consideration over fair value of net assets (for certain buginess
cambinatians),

Retained earnings: This represonts the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of re-measurement of defined benefit
obligations. This can be utilised in accordance with ehe provisions of Companies Act, 2013

2% Long term provisions

As ai As ai
Pariiculars December 31, December 37,
2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences 30777 47126
- Other retirerment benefits (refer note 29.2) 2205 F3.39
Total 329.82 Sy 65
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232. Borrowing As at Az at

v December 31, December 31,
Unsecured loan from Bank - at amortised cost 2023 2022
Working capital demand loan (refer note below) 1500.00
Total 1,500.00 -
Mot

(il The mte of interest on working capital short term borrowings is 825% pa{December 31, 2022 Nil). Interest accrued on current
barrowings of Bs, 700 lakhs (December 31, 2022: Bs. Nil) 15 shown under other currsnt financial llabilities, refer Mote 24

{ii} The principal and intarast is repayable as per paymant schedule of 29 davs. Thare s no defaull in repaymeant of principal and

interest thareon,

Het debi reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents 4 F9536 B 70T 480
Lessy BorroWwings [1,50C00H)

Less; Lease liabilities [458.43) {25404 52)
Met cash 2, 72793 4,302.88

Year ended Decermnber 31, 2022 Year ended Decermnber 31, 2023
Cash and
Particulars Lease Borrowings Total  Lease Borrowings Cash and bank Yotal
liabilities overdrafic liabilities owverdraft

Netdebt ason Januane] (544687 = T&MaL2 6T3NTZ  (240453) 870740 £.302.00
Cash flows (559.19) (569.19) 1.500000) [2.01.04) {3.51.04)
Mew leases (1,974.96) - - N,914.96) 149568 - - 1,495,656
Interast e4pense {25037} (250.31) (126.89) (126.09)
Lease payments 30562 305.62 56732 567.32
Met debt as on (2.404.52) - 6,707.40 430288 (468.43) 1,500.00) 4,696.36 272793
December 31

23, Trade payables

As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {refer note 38) 1306 143250

Total cutstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises (refer note 43) 1055120 1388913
Total 1,670.26 15,322.63

The normal credit period for these trade payables is generally from 30 to 120 day= Mo interest is charged by the vendors [oxcept

micre and small enterprises) on overdue payvables, if any

Ageing of trade payables:
As at December 31, 2023
Cutstanding for followi eriods from due date Tota
Pariticulars Not yet ng for ng p = I
Unbilied dica Less than 1 12 et More than
year ¥ ¥R 3 years
(a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro-and small enterprises 91927 T3S 2044 - - 1Ne0s
Others iis15a | 610040 322377 B255 056 793 102,551,20
{b) Cisputed trade payables
- Micro and small enterprises - - -
- Others -
Total 1,141.59 7.019.67 339352 m.es 0.56 2.93 N,670.26
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Ageing of trade payables:
As at December 31, 2022
- Cutstanding for following periods from due date Total
Pariiculars Mot yet 9 pne e
Unbilled s Less than1 | - Mora than
year ¥ 3 years

(@) Undisputed trade payables

Microand small enterprises 142621 729 143350
- Others 5525 Z363.01 QESGE.45 G280 472 12.80 1358913
(b) Disputed trade payables
- Microand small enterprises
- Otheors
Total 589.35 | 4,789.22 9,063.74 6280 £.72 12.80 1532263
24. Other current financial liabilities

As at As at
Particulars December December
31, 2023 31, 2022

Measured at amertised cost
(a) Pavableson purchase of praperty, plant and equipment T24.01 TH4.02
(b) Security deposit received from customers 125406 102953
lc] Interest payable on customers security deposits Zrieq 2737
{d] Employee payables L70.59 S57,70
(e} Sales commission and discount liahilities 113229 102523
(f| Retention money pavabies 17 24 G4B53
[g) Directors' commission payable - 16.00
iR} Payable to related parties {refer note 43} 532
(i} Unpaid/ Unclalmed dividend 241 14.51
(}) Interest accrued but not due om shart term working capital loan T
Measured at Fair value
(k) Famr value of forelgn currency lorsard contracts 00 oo
Total 346933 3,558.56
25, Other current liabilities
(3} Advances from customers 54.66 SE.RL
(B} Statutory remittances B04 22 413,86
(c} Advance received for sate of assot (refer note 18) B82.00
Total 658.88 554.50
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26. Short term provisions
As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 37,
2023 2022
(@) Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity obligation (refer note 39.2) 19532 BR.48
- Compensated absence &923 5390
- Other retirement benefit (refer note 39:2) 279 &.848
~Pension (refer note 35.2) 1694 &0.78
1B} Provision for litigations [indirect tax) n3az G996
Total 378.20 279.00
Movement in the provision for litigations
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 3],
2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 69.55 5290
Frovision created during theyear 435,96 FOE
Frovision released/utilized during the year 3 z
Balance at the end of the year n3.oz 69.96
27. Current tax liabilities (Mat)
As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
{a)] Provision for income tax - 23277
(o) Advance tax and ax deducted at source receivable - [206.54)

Total

2573
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28. Revenue from operations
The fallowing is an analysis of the Company's revenue for the vear from operations,

= Year ended Year ended
Particulars
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
{a) Revenue from sale of goods [refer note (i) below] 8258460 Bo.B802 35
i) Other operating income [refer note (i) below) 0054 396.66
Total B82,885.14 87,199.01

MNotes:
(i} Disaggregated revenue information

A. Geographical region:

a. India T, BE4.05 7514006
. Outside India 8,041.09 12,058:85
Total revenue from operations 82,885.14 87,199.01

B. Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Contract price (Cross) B3,61599 874951
Ad|ustments for
Biscount and Incentives (1,031.39) 1696, 76)
Revenue from sale of goods B2 584.60 B6,BD2.35
(ii) Other operating income comprises of
{a) Sale of containers 16991 1333
{iz] Duty drawback oh 38 Na.e4
e} Income from RaDTEP licenses and MEIS seripts 5440 122.85
{d] Insurance claims 286 2LE6
Total 3200.55 3196.66
29. Other income
ta) Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 107.00 170.05
() Unwinding of discount on security deposit 335 427
it} Management fees L0567 S53E.4]
{d] Recovery of bad debts 10,50 12,82
e Liabilities/ provisions no longer required, written back 3.30 6349
(f) Cain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 282.65 -
la) Gain on lease madifications (net) 0,58 9.42
th) Miscellansous receipts 563 290
Total B18.75 79636

30. Cost of materials consumed®
(a) Raw material

Cpaning stock 527450 B 17066
Add: Purchases G3,737.80 5419603

58.002.30 62 366,59
Less: Closing stock 4,714 5.274.50
Total 54,298.19 57.032.19
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Year ended Year ended

{b) Containers December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Openmng stock 103544 13354
Add: Purchases 247556 243834

357900 15788
Less: Closing stock 10751 103 44
Total 34T1.49 24668.44
Total (a) + (b) 57,769.68 60,560.63

“excludes pre-operative cost related to capitalisation of Saykha plant. refer note 53
31. Purchase of stock in trade
Furchase of stockin trade £ BT 3 &4 (. IB08

Total 48738 44 £.318.08
32. Changes in stock of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Year ended Year ended

Particulars
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Inwentories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 346355 258341
Waork-in-progress 1.4682.25 139223
Stock-in-trade 48390 487 47T
a) 542970 546311
Imventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 3.583.41 4542 35
Waork-in-progress 139223 1340.38
Stock-in-trade 487 4F 55074
b} 54631 G 433.47
Net decrease in inventory cj=b-a 334 97036
313. Employee benefits expense
(2} Salaries and wages, including bonus® &,43]. 36 661237
|B) Contribution ta provident and other fund (refer note 39) £21.08 450.84
() Staff welfare sxpenses ca7.I2 476,73
Total 7.6469.74 7.586.94

*excludes pre-operative cost related to capitalisatianof Saykha plant. refer note 53
34, Finance cost

[a] Borrowings T 9,48
(b} Cthar Barrowing Costs

- Interest on dealer deposit 6432 59 88

- Interast on delaved payrment of lease rent 154,75 -

- Interest othars* 82,01 1269
[c) Interest expenss an leass liabilities 12689 25031
Total 41514 369.36

*‘Includes interest on delayed payment to MSME vendors amounting to Bs 4604 lakhs {December 31, 2022 B 934 lakhs)
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

35. Depreciation and amortisation expenses

(a} Depreciation on Property, plant and egquipment (refer note 5 1,552.91 95326
[b) Amartisation on Intangible assets (refer note &) 817 T40
() Depreciation on Right-of-use assets {refer note 41 26034 28212
Total 1,821.42 1,342.78
36. Other expenses*
particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

{a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 51879 482 34
(b} Power and fuel 1034.78 950.94
() Bent {refer note 41) 51943 39723
{d} Regairs and maintenance - buildings 55 T4 536
{g) Repairs and maintenance - machinery 37700 309905
[f} Repairs and maintenance - pthars 2372 2994
{g} Insurance 30457 2935491
{h) Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 84,82 4R
(i} Selling agents' commission 22339 38053
[i} Travelling expenses 7733 70597
{k} Freight and forwarding 242360 2.268.53
il Processing charges 59443 245299
[rm] Royalty 99563 102583
{n} Net Lass on foreign currency transaction, translation and derivatives 4307 T2
{o} Provision for doubtful debts on trade and other receivables and advances [net) 9T 36.56
{p) Bad debt and adwvances written off 4996 4,50
(g} Payments to suditors [refer note (i) below] 84.07 5467
{r] Expenditure towards corparate social responsibliity activities [refer note (i) below] 268,09 33.58
{5) Property, plant and eguipment written off .32 230
{t] Legal and professional 706 G &k 42
{u} Communication expenses 3663 4003
(v} Printing and stationeary 3578 2374
(w) QuIsource expense 125005 0029
(%} (Gainl/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) - 772
W) IT handiing charges 32788 35879
{z} Diminution In fair value of investmeant 20.09 -
{aa) Miscellaneous expenses 978,93 B4570
Total 1.586.77 9,715.92

*ercludes pre-operative cost related to capitalisation of Saykha plant Refer note 53
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36. Other expenses (cont'd)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes:

(i) Payments to auditors

Payrments to the auditors comprises [excluding GST):

(i) A5 auditors tincluding guarterly reviews) 750 £450

{ii} Far taxation matters - 13.50

{ili) For other services 200 300

(iv) Auditors out-of-pocket sxpensas 3.57 267

B4.07 64.67

(ii} Expenditure on corporate social responsibility

AL per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicakility threshald, nesds to spend at
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
{C5R) activities. A TSR commitiee has been formed by the Company as per the Act. The funds were primarily
allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which were specified in schedule VIl of the
Companias Act, 2013, The details of corporate social responsibility expenditure made in during the year is as follows!

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022
(a} Amount required to be spent as per section 125 of 254] z3 50

Companies Aect, 2013

(o)  Amount spent during the year on:
- Construction/ acquisition of any asset -
- On purposes other than above 26.09 3E9
(€} Provision made for liability . 1.89
{d) Shortfall at the end of the year . -

(e} The total of previous years' shortfall amounts i -

{f) Reason for above shortfalls See note below See note below

lgy Mature of C5R activities undertaken by the Company Prorioting educatisn, PM ralief fund and

development projects;

i) Details of related party CSR transactions MNone MNone

Movement in provision, where a provision is made with respectto a

ek Tk ! Mot applicable Mot applicable
liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation

{i)

MNote:
Conseguent to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibllity Policy) Amended Rules, 2021 (the rules), the Company

has subsequent to balance sheet date deposited amount of Re Nil (December 31, 2022 :Rs 1.82 lakhs) in PM relief fund.
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37. Contingent Liabilities and commitments

As at As at

Conti nt Liabiliti
(a) Continge i December 31,2023  December 31, 2022

Claims against the Company not acknowledaged as debt

(a) Income tax matters 34379 22816
() Disputed indirect tax matters for which appeals befare
the relevant authorities are pending disposal are as fellows

{i} Custom duty matters 200,00 20159
{ii} Excise duty matters 28404 287314
{iii) Service tax matters 20516 172.21
{iv) Sales tax / Value added tax [ Entry tax matters 1337 4557
{v) Coods and Service tax 52369 -

'Wote! The Company as well as the Income tax department have filed appeals on various matters arising from these
assessmeants. Based onthe available docurmentation and tax experts view, the Company has creatad provisions wherever
requirad and for the balance matters, it believes that maore likely than not, these disputes weuld not result in additional
outflow of resources.

The Company is contesting certain claims raised by authorities towards custom, excise, service tay, goods and service tax
and sales tax/VAT dues at various forums, Based on the available decurnentation and expert view, the Cormpany has
created provisians wherever required and for the balance matters, it belisves that more likely than not, thess disputes
wauld not result inadditional eutflow of resources.

The assessments Undertaken in récognising previsions and centingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37,
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent svents
requires best judgement by managemeant considering the probabiiity of exposure to potential loss Judgement includes
consideration of experts opinlon, facts of the matter, underlying documentation and historical experience. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported value of contingencies and provisions.

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash eutflow, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective procesdings.

As at As at

Commitment
(B) December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed B234 187946
on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

i1} The Company has other commitments, for purchase orders which are issued after considering requirements per
operating cycle for purchase of services, emploves’s benefits. The Company does not have any other long term
commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitrments fcontracts, including derivative contracts for which
there wete any material foresesable losses,

{c) There has been no delays in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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38, Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED Act')

In termis of natification dated September 4, 2015 issued by the Central Government of india, the disclosure related trade
payablesasat December3], 2023 and December 31,2022 are as follows,

As at As at
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Particulars

W} Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
anysupplier asatthe end of sach accounting year

"{a) Principal armount 1026.06 137440
'{B) Interest amount g93.00 5902
1M2.06 1,433.50

i} Armount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyvond the
appointed day during eachaccounting year,

‘(=) Principal amount ':,223';.99 :'?18‘:;04
IB) Intarest amaount & i

i} Ameunt of interest dug and payable for the period of delay in = =
making payrmeant (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year] but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act

iw) Amount of interest accrued and remaining ungaid at the end of the oz.00 59,09

aceounting year

"Iv] Amosunt of further intarest due and payable'sven In the succeading £ =
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to

the small enterprise, Tor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditurs undersection 23 ol MSMED Act

MNote: The above disclosure s based on information available with the Company regarding status of the suppliers as
defined under Section 2 of the Micrg, Srmiall and Medium Enterprises Developmeant Act, 2006
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39. Employee benefit plan
39,1 Defined contribution plans
Dwring the year the Company has recognised-an amount of Bs. 40979 lakhs (Decemiber 3, 2027 Rs 13848 (akhs) as expenditure towards
defined contribution plans of the Company,
39.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company offers the employee benefit schemes of Pension {funded), Gratuity funded) and Other retirerment benefit (unfunded) 1o
its employees. Bensfits paysble to eligible employees of the Company with respect to thess schemes, defined benefit plans are
accounted for on the basis.of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date,

The present value of defined benefit chilgation and the rslated current service cost were megsured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.

These plans typically expose the Company 1o actuarial risks such as

The present value of the defined banafit plan lizbility [denominsted inindian Fupes) s calculated using &8 discount rate
which = determined by referenca 1o market yields at the and of the reporting percd on government bonds For other
defined benzfit plans, the discount rate = datermingd by reference to markst yields at the end of the reporting period on
Higih quality corporate bonds when thereisa deep market forsuch bands; if the return on plan asset 1s below this rate, it will
create s plan deficit. Currenthy, the plans have arelatively balanced mixof investmantsin government securities, and other
debtinstruments.

Inwestmant risk

A daecreace in the bond interest rate will increaze the plan liability, howewver, this will be partially offset by an increace in

ncavest ek the return on the plan's debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is caloulated by refergnce 1o the best estimate of the mortalivy of
Lorgewvity rlsk plan participants both during and after thelt employmant An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will Increase the plan's lalility,

The present value of the defined benefit plan liakility s calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

Salary risk particlpants As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liatdlity,

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows: Valustion s ot
As at As at
Particulars December| December
3, 2023 31, 2022
=i un
Interest rate for discounting T.00% TG
Expacted rate of return on plan assals TLO0%: TI0%
Sty Obligation
Interest rate for discounting TG TN
Salary increase rate!
(a} Mamagemnent staff 5.00% 5.00%%
(bt Union staff . 003 4,00%
Expected rate of return on plan aszets TI0% T20%
Other retirement Beneflt
Interest rate for discounting TA0E TR0
{1} amount recognised in the Balance sheet are as follows
As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2022
Other Other
Particulars ) i . i
Pension  Gratuity retirement Total Pension Gratuity retirement Tatal
banefit benefit
P-re-_ﬁen[, walue of defined bensfit
obligation 0875 1,595350 el =P 153009 We4T 129168 TEIT 1,540.42
Lass: Tair value of plan assets ELE] 120418 - 1292599 N5.659 120220 . 1LE17ES
Mat asset [ (llability) 16.94) (195.32) [24.84) (257.10) (60.78) {B5.48) {78.27) (228.53)
Current 16.94) (195.32) (2.79) (215.05) [60.78) [B9.48) {&.88) [155.14])
Mon-current - . [£2.05) [#2.05] - - (73.39) {73.39)
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Experience adjustments on plan

assats [gain/ (loss) during the year] f1380) (28.39] a {5219 {095 {8:72) - (267}
Experience adjustrnents on
obligations [[gain)/ loss during the year  T1.88 23 483 3640 w13 =816 12120 404

(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2023 Year ended December 31, 2022
; Other Other
Particulars " "
Pension  Gratuity retireme Total Pansion Gratuity retiremen Total
nt benefit t benefit
Current service cast - §2.45 337 96,57 - B97S G837 3457
Interest cost 178 121 Q57 356 413 202 033 1248
Past Service cost . - . - - - . -
Actuarial | in}- Othe
e m?ﬁ:gam] ' o ag 63.72 517 =Pl {1535} 5090 (2481 10
comprehensive losg
Settlernent Cost/ (Cradit) . 9379 TSl 171,70 - - -
Total expense 27.68 25107 B7.57 366.42 m.02) 142.67 [12.66) n7.99
Recagnised [n statement of profit
and loss™ 178 9356 4549 Saa3 4,12 =1 1115 18745
Actuarial losg/{gain) recog nized in
other comprehensive incorma 2580 157.51 £17 18858 515} SO.30 [24.81] e k=FS
Recognizad inexceptional tem -
Kolkata plant closare - - 7 T1a . : -

* Recognised under "Contribution to Provident and Otler Funds® in note 29 far Pension, Cratuity and under "Staff welfare expansas” in
note 29 for other retiremeant benefit

(ili) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation:

As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2022
e Other Other
G Pension  Gratuity retireme  Total Pension  Gratuity retiremen  Total
nt benefit t benefit
£ =it value of defined
WA LY IR ! 176.47 125168 7627 154542 20093 125938 9693 155724
benefit obligation
Current service cost G245 392 9637 8975 GH2 S94.57
Imterest cost 926 BE1G (TAZY 55489 110 Fi=E=7) 555 9520
Settiornent Cost . 93579 7749 7T
Past service cost - ~ — - . . - .
Actuarial |bssflgaln) 1210 2533 517 4260 &0} 4218 (2487 127
Benefite paid (92.08) fgam)  N4100) (422.39) (15,36} f178.50) 15.00) (2072 86
Closing present value of defined
105.75 139950 24,84 1,530.09 17647 1,291.68 7827 1,546,462

benefit obligation

(iv) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

particulars Az st December 31,2023 As at December 31, 2022

Pansion Gratuity Total Pansion  Gratuity Total
Cpening fair value of plan assets 115685 20220 1217.8% 12973 146,22 127535
Expectar return on plan sccetc T 48 B4.95 43 687 76,85 B3T2
Actuarial gain/ {loss) (13 &0 3839 {52.19) {085 1572 19.67)
Contributions by employer 752 14533 21685 ; 166,35 16635
Benefits paid (22.08] EEE (2 53| 936} (17850 2726
Closing fair value of plan assets BE.H 1,204.18  1,292.99 N569  1,202.20 1,317.89
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{v] Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of Fair Value of the total plan assets

As at As at
Particulars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
Gowvt, of India Securities/Deposits &0D0% 230% 4000% 1.40%
PELU Bongds [ State Securities 000% 428 0.00% 5.26%
Corporais bonds 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance managed funds 8600 B720% G.60% 87.958%
Bank balancés B0S00 6225 BO:40% 5369
Total 100.00% 100.00%  100.00% 100.00%
[wi) Actual return on plan assets
- Year ended Year ended

Parheitars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Pension (852 54932
Cratuity 4656 E813

[wil) Sensitivity Analysis

Sgnificant actuaral assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increass
The sensitivity analysis below have besn detarmined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions cccdrring at the end of
the reparting period, while holding all other assumptions constant

Particulars m:nmﬁf;l. 2023 Dlnlrnt:ﬁ‘l, 2022
Discount | Salary | Discount | Salary

Pension fund rate increase rate increase
Decrease in Defined benelit ohligation due to increase by 1% {2a5) - {411 -
Increass in Defined bensfit obligation due to dacrease by 1% 313 B L]
Oratuity obligation
Desraasa in Definad benefit obligation due toincrease By 19 [52:27) Se28 =5 BG 20
Increass In Defined benefit obligation due to decreaze by 1% 58.80 |52.65) B&N 17853]
Other retiremant afit
Dacreass in Defined berefit obligation due taincrease by 19 .66} (4. 47)
Increase in Defined banafit nhlig ation due to decreass by 1% 128 = 497

The sensithvity analysls presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions woulkd ocour in [solation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermone, In presenting the above sensitivity analyiis, the present value of the defined benefit sbligation has been calculated Using
the projectad unit credit method at the end of the reparting pericd, which Is the same as that appiied in caledlating the defined benefit
obligation llabiiity recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

19.2 Defined Benefit plans- Provident Fund

Interme of Culdance onimplemeanting ind A515 on Employes Benefits issued by the Accounting Standard Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICA]), 2 provident fund set up by the Company s treated as & defined benefit plan inview of the Company's chligationto
meatshortfall ifany, onaccountof int2rast.

The Actuary has carrled aut actuarial valuation of interest rate guarantes obligations as at the balance sheet date using Projectad Unit Credit
Method and Deterministic Approach as outlined in the Cuidance Note 29 ssued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. Based on such
valuation, shartfzll in the fund as ascartained by the actuary provided during the year amounts Lo Bs 11747 lakhs [Decemibear 312022 (8,00}
[akhs) whichisincluded in ‘Contribution to Provident and Cther Funds' in Mote 33

Further during the year, the Company's contribution of Rs 32379 Lakhs |2022 - Rs. 23964 lakhs) to the Provident Fund Trust has been
expensed under the 'Contribution to Srovident and Other Funds' in Note 323, Disclosures given hereunder are restricted o the information
available asper the Actuand's Repart.

As at As at
Decermnber 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rata 705, T20%
Expected visid on plan assss 23108 8.10%
Guarantesd interast rale B.25% B25%
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40, Financial Instruments
(i} Capital management

The Company manages it's capital to ensure that it will be able to continue. as a going concern whila maximising the roturn to
stakieholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Campary is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. The Company's board of directors reviews the capital structure of the Company on a periodic basis. As part of this
review, the Board of directars conslders the cost, of capltal and the risks associated with capital. The Company's gearing ratio at the and
of the reparting period was as follows

As at As at
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
{a) Dbt Borrowings 1.500.00 -
(b} Cashand cash eguivalents (4,696 36) {6, 707400
(] Met delst (319638 [, 707.40)
(o} Eqquity* I0E3ZALE 42 XL 5
Net debt to equity ratio (0.08) -
* Eguity includes all capital and reserves of the Cormpany that are managed as capital,
Mater No debt to equity ratlo has bean computed in previous year, since there |5 no delot
(i) Category wise details as to carrying value, fair value and the level of fair Acs at As at
value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial instruments are Level December 31, December 31,
as follows: 2033 2022
Financial assets
Measured at amartised cost
ta} Trade receivables 220545 25 06541
(bl Cash and cash equivalents 4 69636 6. FITA0

lc] Bank balances sther than Cash and cash eguivalents 1284 1451

ld} Other financial assets G9RB0 TH3 85

Megsured at fair value threugh profit or loss

e Investments Level 3 29.51 S5.60

Financial liabilities

Measured at armortised oost

(8] Trade payables 67026 1532263
b} Sther financial lizbilities Eqﬁﬁ EEEE%
c] Loase liabilities 153000 iz
d} Borrowings t

reasured at fair value through profit or joss

(&) Other financial asset- Fair value of Dervative iNstrument Lewel 2 0.04 Q.01

Method/ assumption used to estimate the fair value:
{8) The carrying valus of trade recsivables, cash and cash equivalents, hank deposits, trade payables other current financial asseis and
financial liabilities measured at amaortised costapprokimate their fair value due to theshart-term maturities of these instrumeanta.

{b) The fairvalues of the derivative financial instruments has besn determined using valuatlon technigueswith markst chssrvable inputs
The models Incorporatevariows inputsincluding the credit quality of counter-parties and foreign exchange forward rates.

(¢} The fair value of unouotsd eqguity shares is based on market multiples derived from guoted pricesand price eaming multipies of
companies comparabilbe to the investee and the nat assets value and price aarning multiples of the investae, The estimate s adjustad for
theeffect of the non-marketability of the relevant equity securities

|diTheare ware natransfers between Level |, Level 2 and Laval Sof financial assatzand labilities

(iii} Financial risk management cbjectives

The Company's Managemant mMonitars and manages key financial risks relating to the operations of the Company Dy analysing
exposuras by degres and magnitude of riske These risks include market sk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), cradit risk
and liguidity risk,



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

All amounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

40, Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

DIC India
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Ths Company seeks ta minimise the effects of currency risks by using derivative financial iInstrumsnts to hedge risk exposures. The uss of
financial derlvatives lsgoverned by the Campany's policies appraved by the board of directors, which provide written principleson (orsign
exchange risk interast rate rigk, cradit risk, the use offimancial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investrmeant of
excess liguidity. The Company doss not enter into or trade financial instrurments, including derivative financial Instruments, for

‘speculative purposes.
[iv) Market Risk

hMarket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuste because of chanages in market

prices, Market risk comprises three types of risks interast rate risk, curraéncy risk and othear price risk, such as eguity price risk and
commedity risk. Finanos! instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency recesvables, deposits and borrowings.

Thia Company enters into a derivative fimancial instruments to manage its exposurne ta foreign currency risk. inchuding forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the axchange rate risk arising on the imports;

{v) Fareign Currency risk management

The Company undertakes tranzactions denominated i foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations

arize. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parametars utilising forward foreign exchange contracts

The Company uses & foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge ks exposure In foreign currency risk, The Company generally

enters into forward exchange contracts to cover specific foreign currancy payments to reduce foreign exchange fluctuation risk,
The carrying amaeunts of the company’s fareign currency denominated monatary assets |rade recelvables) and monetary liabilitles

(trade payables) at the end of the reparting periad are as follows:

[Currency Liabilities as at Assets as at
Decamber | December December 31, December 31,
31, 2023 3, 2022 2023 2022

Ust (S 1826 15 1587
Equivalent amount in INE SE0.0% 1511.51 9675 131268
EUR 135 085 0a7 0.35
Equivalent armount in INR 123598 TSy 1521 2088
Iy 75248 21466 -
Equivalent amaunt in IR SA2FL SOB&D

AUD a.39 0.24 157 -
Eguivalent smaount in INE Z1.88 13.64 Ba.O7 .
=t 233 013 = -
Equivalant amountin INB 14675 788 - =

Of the above foreign currency d2nominated maonstary assets and

manetary lizbllities, farsian cu

rrency exposures which have besn

hedged are as Delow,
Currency Liabllities as at Astets as at

December |December December 31, December 31,

31,2023 I, 2022 2023 2022

Usn 220 E = =
Equivalent amount In INB 18322 - - =
ey S0.00 -
Equivalent amount in INR - 25,27 = =

The Company has hedaed it's trade payable for Import of raw material, Accordingly, the year end forsign currency expesure that have
not been hedged by a dervative Instrument of ot herwise are alven:

[Currency Liablliles as at Assets as at
December |December December 31, December 31,
31, 2023 31, 2022 2023 2022

Usp 454 1826 s 1587
Equivalent amountin IMNR 376,81 151151 92575 131568
EUR 1.35 0.85 Q37 0,35
Equivalent amaunt in INF 12393 T B 15,27 30.88
ey 15248 T B - -
Equivalent smount in INE HAZ T £83.22 - -
AUD 0.38 024 157

Equivalent amaount in INR 288 1364 ga.07 -
SoD 232 Qi3 -
Equivalent amount in INR 14619 7.88 -
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40, Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

(v){a} Foreign Currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed ta the fluctiation in the value of USD and JPY. The following table detalls thie company sensitivity 1o a
0% Increase and decrease In IMR against the relevant foreign currency, 10% s the sensitivity ate used when reporting foreign
currency risk Internally to key management persennel and represents management's assessment of the reasenably possible changs
in forsign exchange mtes, The sensitivity analysis indudes onfy outstanding forsign currency denominated monetary itemes gnd
adjust there translation at the period end for a 1% change n foreign currency rate. A positive number befow indicates-an increasa in
profit or aguity where the s, strengthiens 10% against tha relevant cummency. For a 10% weakening of the Rs, against tha relévant curmency.
there would be a comparable impsct on the profit or equity,

As at December 31,2023 | As at December 31, 2022

USD Impact in INR (increase by 10%)

Impact on profitor loss Tor the year E&499 {1278
Impact on total eguity as at the 2nd of the reporting periad [T (S8
USD Impact in INR [decrease by 10%)

Irmpact on prafit or loss for the vear 154 55) =78
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {54 99 978
EUR Impact in INR (increase by 10%)

Impact on profitor loss for the year [1o.88) [T}
impact an 1otal sguity as at the end of the reporting period no.es) .41
EUR Impact in INR (decrease by 10%)

Impact on prafit or loss for the year lad- ]
impact an total equity as at the end of the reparting period 1088 &.61
AUD Impact in INR (increase by 10%)

Impact on profit or loss for the year 572 [ {=H
Irpact on total eguity a5 at the ard of the reparting period 672 .36}
AUD Impact in INR [decreaze by 1096)

Impact on profit or loss for the year {672 136
Imypact on tolal eguity as at the end of the reporting perod (672 128
SGD Impact in INR (increase by 10%)

Impact an profit ot loss for the vear [T4.62) (0.7
Impact on total eguity as at the end of the reporting period flé .62 (D79
SCGD Impact in INR (decrease by 10%)

Impact an profit or loss for the yaar 4 BE2 073
Impact on total equity as at the end-of the reporting period 148 075
IPY Impact in IMR (increase by 10%)

Irmpact an prafit or loss for the year (a4 220 {68.32)
Impact on total equity a5 at the end of the reporting period (6420 {4832
IPY Impact in INR (decrease by 10%)

Irmpact on profit or loss for the vaar ¥ e ) 483
Impact on total equity 25 at the end of the reporting period L4772 4837

The far=lgn exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rais exposure of a
currency and a simultaneaus pargliel foreign edchange rates shift in the forsian exchange rates of sach currency by 0%,
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[wi) Interest rate risk managemaeant

The Company i= sublect to varlable Interest rate on its intersst bearing lishbllities. The Company's interest rate esposure s mainly
related to debt obligations. The Company's exposure to interast rates on financial abifities are detalled In the lguidity risk managemeant.
(vi}{a) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyzes below have been detarrnined bazed on the sxposure 1o interest rates 3t the end of the reporting period. Far
floating rate barrowings, the analysis is prepared assaming the amount of the borrowings outstanding 2t the and of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whele yaar, A 50 basis point increase or decrease s used for disclosing the semsitivity analysis.

IF interest rates had beer 50 basie points higharlower and all othor variables were held constant, the Company's |oss for the vear

ended December 31, 2023 would Inarease/decrease by Rs Nl {for the year ended Decernber 3, 2022 Increasefdecrease by Rs Nill, This
Is mainly attributable to the Cornpany’s expasure Lo interest rates an its variable rate borrowings.

[vii) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finarncial [oss to the Company.
Trade Receivable and other inancial assets
The company has adopted & policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining deposits whers sppropnats, as & means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults, Before accepting any new customer, the Company assess 1he potential custormearns
credit quality and defines cradit limit by customers. Limits attributed to custorner are reviewad annually, Ongoing credit evaluation is
performad an the fimancial conditien of accounts receivable. Concentration of credit rick 1o any counterparty did not exceed 10% of total
rroretany ascets at any trme during the year,

o Lilyal and b deposiis
The Comparny maintains its cash and cash eqguivalents and bank deposits with reputed banks, The credit risk on these instruments |5
lirmit=d because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencles,

[wiii) Liquidity risk management

Ltimate responaibilny for hquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate [lguidity
fisk management framework for the management of the company's short-teem, madiume-tarme-and long-term funding and liguidity
rmanagerment recuirements The company manages ouidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,; banking facilities apd recarne
borrowang facilities, by continuously rmonitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

Tha table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial lizbilities based an contractual undiscounted payments:

Az at December 31, 2023 At at Decermnber 31, 2023
Particulars Carrying Due in Dus in Carrying Dug in Due in
amount 1 year after 1 year amount 1year after 1 year
(2] Trade pavakles 67026 NEeTzs - 1532263 1532263 -
|1 Orher financial liabllities 346533 R AEDED - 355856 3558 58 .
e} Lease lisbilities 458 43 18878 106183 2404 52 685218 230582
[d) Borrowlings 1,500,000 150000
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This note provides Infarmation for l2ases where the Company 5 a lessee. The Company (2ases variaus lands, culldings, plant and
gquipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed perinds of 2 years 1o § years except in case of leasehold
land whera It s bpto 99 years, but may have extension options as described in {g] below

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets are as follows:

Category of ROU Asset
e Leasehold Plant and
Description of assets Building Vehicle Total
land equipment
l. Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2002 36162 188573 2936 B535 256213
Add: Additions during the year 4040 156557 - E o698
Less: Deletions durimg the year Ti4-32 - - - .32
Balance as at December 37, 2022 125148 3,451.30 2336 8535 &, 817.49
Balance as at January 1, 2023 125148 345130 2336 85,35 & Bi7.49
Add: Additions during the year To48 75,89 - - 15537
Less Deletions during the year 576,45 1.572.01 2936 A535 228317
Balance as at December 31, 2023 T54.51 1,955.18 - - 2,709.69
il. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2022 50527 45 7% 1258 55.26 525.82
Add: Depreciation expenss 23413 ns61 978 F2 a0 IE2
Less Ellminated on disposal of assets 5902 - - - (S 02
Balance as at December 31, 2022 870.38 161.32 29.36 T7.8B6 538.92
Balance asat January 1, 2023 57038 151.22 2936 7786 93892
Ass: Depreciation-expense 20367 5617 - .50 2054
Less: Ellminated on disposal of assets #5497 13763 2935 TB36 Tins2
Balance as at December 31, 2023 409.08 79.86 - - 4BB.94
Net block (I-11)
Balance as at December 37, 2023 34543 187532 3 . 222075
Balance as at December 31, 2022 S0 328998 - 745 387857

The aggregate depreciation expense on Bight-OfUse assets is included under depreciation and amortization expensa in the

staterment of profit and loss, [refer nate I5)

(a) The brealk-up of current and non-current leasa lizbilities s as follows:

As at Az at
FParticulars December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022
Current eE36 EBLE]
Mon-current I02.07 20227
Total 4E8.43 250652
(o} The movement in lease labilities is as follews
As at As at

Particulars

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Opening abiiities as on January
Add; Addition

Add: Interest expense [refer note 34(c))
Lass Liability an discontinued lzased assets

Less Payrnent of lease liabilities
Less: Lease written back
Clasing liability as an December 31

2.404.52 544 87
151.05 196968
12689 26037

- (54.72)

(567:32) (205.62)
(164671} 3

468.43 2,404.52
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[k The details of the contractual maturities of lzase liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows

Particulars As -k e
December 31,2023 December 31, 2022
Lecs than one year 18878 65218
Cneto five yaars 26256 97040
hMare than fivie years 7a9.27 133542
Total 1,250.61 2,958.00

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabiities as the current aszets are sufficient to
mest the abligations related to lease liahilities as and when they fall dus.

{d) Rental expense recorded for short-term leases and low value lease’

Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Short term lease L0495 E5.07
Lo value leass 4B 3256
Total 519.43 397.23

£

Extension and termination aptions

Extansion and termipation options are included In a number of [eases scross the Company, These are used to maximise
‘operational fiexibility in terms of managing the assets used |n the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and
termination options hald are exercizable only tﬁy the Company and not by the respective |essor

iff In respact of two leasehold lands on which Kolkata Plant s located, the lease sgreements with Kaolkata Port Trust: Autheority
{KOFT] expired on March 132021 and August 13, 2021 respectively
Im respect of leasehold iand whose lease agreement expred on March 13, 2021, as per the communication received from KOPT, a
frash lease was offered by KOPT for 30 vears on certain terms and canditicns, which was under pegotiation,
Consequent to the decision of the board to close the plant subject to necessary approval {refer note 50 below) the management
has requested KOPT w allow the Company continue possessing the premise untll clesure of the plant, Accordingly, the Right of
use and ease liability recognized earlier, based on the offered lease terms has bean reversed during the yaar and net gain of Rs
9328 lakhs has been recognized az an exceplional [tam in current year.
Furthar, the Company has clearad all duss for rental demand till Barch 13, 20246

In respect of leasshald land whose fease agreement aexpirad on August 13, 2071, the Company had vacated the said land and
handead it aver to KOPT on January 02, 2023, The Company had earlier accrued for lease rent payable amounting to Rs. 4674
lakhs, for the period from August 13, 2021 to December 3, 2022 on an estimated basls During the year, the Company hacl
recenved a demand from KCPT for the above-mentioned period fior Rs 13293 lakhs and has paid the said demand

The Company further recelved two letters from KOPT on the aforesaid land, in which additional compensation has besn
demanded. On prudent basis; a provision of RS 14218 lakhs has been made and balance amount of Rs 14217 lakhs, based on
legal opinion assessment, has not beon acknowledged as debt by the Company. The Company is actively engaging with KOPT
afy the matter and will address it appropriataly.

42, Expenditure on Research and Development

Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Capital Expenditure includes on aocount of Research and Developmient 2559 Taa?
Total 24.59 TE4T
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£3. Related Parties Disclosures
i} Related Parties :

Names of Related Parties

(a) Where control exjsts

DT Corporation, Japan
DIC Asia Pacific Pta Ltd, Sihgapore

DIC (VIETHNAM) COLTD.

DIC Graphics (Thalland) Co. Ltd.
DIC (Malayzia) Sdn. Bhd.

Sun Chemical AC

DT Australia Py Ltd

DIC Bangladesh Pt Ltd,
CIC-Philippines, Imc.

DIC Graphics Chia Lung Corp
OIC Fine Chemicals Private Limited
DIC South Asia Private Limited
DIC Graphics Corporation
DHCAP Jurong - Graphics

DIC Lanka (Private} Lid

CHC Mew Fealand Ld

Mantong DIC Color Co, Lid.
Sun Chamical Corp,

Sun Chernical UK

Sun Chemical SAU, Spain

Sun Chemical Sroup SmbH
Sun Chemical Group S oA,
Sun Charnical NV S8
SunChamical AG [S.4, Ltd )
Sun Chemical S.A.4

sun Chemical Limited

Bun Chemical 345

Ideal Chemi Plast Private Limited
Missin Trading Co, Lt

Sun Chamical Sraup Smibi-
BT DIC Graphics

Sum Chamical Turkey

DIC Craphics Chia Lung Carp.
P.T. Pardic Jaya Themicals

BT 0 Graphics{Pulo Sadurg)
Sun Chemical Saudi Arabia Lrd
BT DIC Tracing Indonesia

[c} Key Management Personnel

mir. Manish Bhatia

hir. Taishi Mojima

pdr. Rajeey Anand

bis Pritha Dutt

Mr. Partha Mitra

M. Paul Keek

Mr. Prabal Kurmar Sarkar
Mir Adnan Walhat Ahmad
Mt Ryohel Kehashi

tir. Maszahiro Kikuchi

Relationship

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

[b) Others with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Fallow Subisicjary
Faliow subsidiany
Faliow subsidiary
Feliow Subsidiary
Faliow Subsidiany
Fedlow Subsidiany
Failow Subsidiany
Fellow Subsidiary
Feliow Subsidiary
Feliow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fallow Subsidiany
Fellow Subsidiarne
Faliow Subsidiary
Fallow Subsidiary
Feliow Submsidiany
Faliow Subsidiany
Fellow Subsidiany
Fallows Subsidiany
Fallow Subsidiany
Foellow Subsidiany
Faellow Subsidiary
Follow Subsidiany
Fellow Subsidiany
Fallow Subsidiary
Feflow Subsidiary
Fallow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Feliow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsicliary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fallow Subsidiany
Fellow Subsicliary

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Whole time Director (upto May 71, 2023)
Indepandent Director

Independant Director

Independent Director (upto March 23, Z023)
Mar-executive Diractor

Independent Director

Inclependeant Director (since February 8, 2023]
Mon-executive Director (since Fabruary 8, 2023)
Man-executive Director (upto January T, 2024)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
All amounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
%3, Related Parties Disclosures (Cont'd)
(d) Employes benafit trusts
I India Employess Sratuity Fund

CHE inchia Management Staffl Pensian Fund
CHE incha Staff Provident Fund

{iiy Disclosure of transactions with related parties during the year and outstanding balances

Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
(a) Transactions during the year
1. Revenue from sale of goods
Ultimate Holding Conmpany o7 -
Holding Cornpany 2197 21084
Fallow Subsidiary
DIC Australia Py Lrd. 1,380.62 258836
Sun Chemical Russia FR599 134645
PFT iC Trading Indonesia 24559
Others 431,28 Be4.79
2. Management/ service fees income
Uitimate Holding Company 125 04 17830
Holding Compeany 20432 20756
Fellow Subsidiary
DIC South Asia Private Limited 2242 2252
Ideal Chemi Plast Pyt, Lid, 1588 1716
3. Purchases of goods
Uitimate Holding Company TIZA43 9&6508
Holding Cornpany 33510 4.BE0.55
Falfew Subsidiery
DIC Fine Chemicals Private Limitec 264020 384422
Mantang DIC Colar Co, Ltd, AFAE 43101
Mis=in Trading Co. Lid. 5a8.81 -
Cihers GB09s 1,890,564
4. Purchase of MEIS Scrips
Fellow Subsidionys
DIC Fine Chemicals Private Limited - 81.49
5. Salaries and wages, Travelling expense and IT handling charges
Utimate Holding Company 510,41 Bt T
Halding Company 24768 25T
Fetlow Subsidiory
Others 5338 -
B. Royafty expense
Uftimate Halding Company 99997 102583
7. Remunercation expenses
Shart Terrm Benefits 34276 Igang
Past - Emplayment Bensfits 1397 1240
Other long tarm emplayee beneafits 272 045
Sitting fees EIRE 18,20
Cirector's Commilssion - 1600
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

All amounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
%3, Related Parties Disclosures (Cont'd)

(i} Disclosure of transactions with related parties during the year and outstanding balances

Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31,2023 December 31, 2022

Reimbursement of expenses
Liltfmate Holding Company

Galaries & wages 240313 2276

Travalling Exparises 906 152

Miscellansous Expenses 7389 145
Holding Company

Salaries & wages 10183 &2.07

Travelling expenses 497 14,09

IT handling charges 2097 19443
Fellow Subsidiony

Salaries & wages

T(awlling Expenses -

Miscellansous Expensas 2863 18.20
Contribution to Funds
DIC India Employess Gratuity Fund 14533 16635
DIC Indiz Management Stalf Pension Fund 752 B
DIC India 5taff Pravident Fund 25405 25704
Outstanding as at year end:

Particulars As at As at

Decembear 31, 2023

Decembor 31, 2022

Trade payable

Ultimate Haolding Company

Haofding Company

Fedtow Subsidicry
DIC Fine Chermicals Private Limited
Chers

Employee related liabilities

Key Managsment Personnel
Past Emplayment Benefits
Short Term Benefits
Director's commission

Trade receivables
Uftimate Holding Compory
Holding Campany
Fallow Subsidiany
[HC Australia Pty Ltd
thers

Other Current financial assets
Liltimate Holding Company
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiany

Cthers

Other current financial liabilities
Fallow Subsiaiany
|deal Chermi Plast Private Limited
DI South Asia Private Limied

1115
22374

545,92
23203

1Za%
272

oy
52T

29872
21850

16255
9458

.71

50038
TR

BEG6.I]
Hah 53

G4
Tde
iR

13257
161,24

ARTIE
18535

X728
12323

116

453
079
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

All amounts in Bupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated
%3, Related Parties Disclosures (Cont'd)

6. Provision for employee benefits

OIC India Employess Sratuity Fund 19532 B9.45H

DIC India Management Staff Pension Fund T894 0,78
7. Other current liabilities

DI India Staff Frovident Fund 26121 a0.45

&4, Segment Information
The Comipany’s oparations are predominantty manufacture of 'Brinting Inks' and according te the managerment this is the single

segrment at envisaged in tnd AS-I0B-Opeérating Segments. Aceordingly. ne operating segment disclosurés including
comparatives are required to be made In these financial statements

Refer note 28(1) for revenue from external customers.

The Company donot have any customer from whom thay have 10% or mote revenue,
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45, Financial Ratios as per the Schedule Il requirements

December December 31,

Particulars MNumarator Denominator Variance Reason of variance
31, 2023 2022
Current ratic Currentassets Current liabilities il 230 -3.4T% Variance below 75% threshold
; ) Sharehaldar's
Debt-equity ratic Total dabt - 005 0.0a SI2T8% Varlance below 25% threshold
equin
Dabt sarvice coverage  Earnings available ) ) ) Due to working capital loan taken
tatlo for debt service Toa) et jo0z} 242 I0065% if eurrent vear for oparaticns and
lmgs incurred [N curent year.
Average
Due Lo joss incurred In
Return on equity ratio Net profit after tax  sharsholders 1.39% Z54%  <154.63% e
. Current }"EF.!I'
equIty
I amE T CUFroner Ayerage
; o Costof goods sold 9 585 523 N7E% Wariance below 25% threshold
ratio irvertony
Trade recaivables
_a ' Total sales Avermge tiade 351 359 ~218% Variance below 25% threshold
turroer ratio receivables
Trade payables Average trade
) Total purchases £E0 313 23.0% Varianece below 258% threshold
turnaver ratio payalkles
Met capital turnover . . )
it Total sales Working capital 274 33 14.31% Variance below 35% threshold
) Diue 1o loss incurred in
Met profit ratio Met profit after tax Totalsales {00 005 -158.21% 7 : 3
current year
Return on capital Earnings before Ca p?tal 10,001 o5 02,004 Drie Lo |oss incurred in
employed imterest and tax employed current year
Due 1o loss incurred in
Returm on Investment  Met profit after tax Total assets 1004 06 -lal a8l
current Year
Mote:

(i} Total debt = total borrowings + Lesse fiabilities
(i} Earming available for debt service = Profit after tax + Flnance costs = Depreciation and amortization expense
fiii} Total purchases = Purchase of stock-in-trade + Purchases of raw materials + Purchase of containers
(iv] Total sales = Reveriue from operations
v} Working capital = Current assets - Current liahilities
(Wi} Earming bafore interact and taxes = Profit before tax = Finance cocts
fwii) Capital employed = Tangible networth « Total debt « Deferrad tax assets (net)
[wiil] Wihersvar the tarm "average’ |5 used, the average has been computed as follows: {Balance as at beginning of the yvear + Balance as
at end of year)/2,
&6, Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financials statements
a) Details of benami property held
Mo proceedings have been initiated on ar are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thersunder,
b} Willful defaulter
The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by ary bark or financial Institution or other lender,

¢} Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2003 or Companies Act, 1956

d) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

The Company has a charge of Fs, 30.00 lakhs with DB bank wef February 5 1992, which is yvet to be satisfied with the registrar of the
companies beyond the statutory pericd due 1o unavailabiliog of sufficient documents for satisfaction.

&) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under the Companies Act, 2012,
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f) Compliance with approved schema(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any schenre of- arangement which has an accounting impact-on current of previous financial vear.

g) Undisclosed income
Thereg ie no income surrendered or disclozed as income during the current or previous wear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
At 1861, that has not been recorded inthe books of account

h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company hasnot traded or invested in crypto curreney orvirtual currency during the current or previcus financial year.

i} Valuation of property, plant and equipment. intangible asset and investment property

The Company has not revelued its property. plant and equipment [including right-of-usé assets] or intangible asséts or both during
the current ar previows financial year

i) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(i} The Campany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personls) or entity|ies), including foretgn entities
(Imterrmedizries) with the understanding that the Intermedlary shall;

(8] directly or indirectly lend or Imvest in other persons or antities identified in any mannsr whatsoever by o on behall of the
Company [Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

(B] provide any guarantes, security or the'llke ta oF on behall of the ultimate beneficiaries

(ii} The Company has not received any fund from any persanis] or entitylies), including foretgn entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recerded in or otherwlse] that the Company shall:

(@] directhy or indirgctly lend or irest i other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by Gr on behali of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Berneficlaries) or

() prowvide any guarantea, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

k) Fund based and non fund based working capital facilities extended to the Company ame secured by hypothecation of the Company's
imventories and book recervabiles, both present and future; by way of first charge in favour of State Bank of India and Stanclard chartered
ranking par passyu.
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46. Additional reguiatery infarmation not disclosed elsewhere Iin the financials staterments (cont'd)

I} Reconciliation of stock statement

The Company has been sanctionad working capital faciiitiss from Ganks on the basis of security of current assets The company has filed
guarterly returng statemeants with such banks which are not in agreement with the audited books of account, however such differences
betwesn the amounts disclosed to the banks and those as per the books of accounts have been reconclled. Refer table below for summany
af reconcilation and reasons of material discrepancles.

Mature of Amount
Marme of current Assets [/ disclosed as P
the Bank/ e oriing Liabilities per booka nrp. Amount of Reasons for material
Financial where guarterly i difference difference
Institution differences return/
were observed — statement
Stack 5,581 10,429 [B40) Nete-]
tecember 31, 2003 Debtor 23,050 22,015 1835 MNote-2
Trade Payables 9,197 NE70 12.473) HNote-3
Stack 1659 1% 562 (1,553 Mte-]
Septermber 30,2023 Debtor 26,632 24,288 2384 MNote-2
Trade Payables 227 16,830 {5, B1T) Kote-3
Standard Chartered
Stock 1370 13,677 (2.307) Mote-]
June 30, 2023 Debtor 26292 23554 2738 Nota-2
Trade Payatsles 12,840 16242 (%402 Mote-3
Stock 12309 14,135 1.827) Wote-l
March 31, 2023 Dbt 25209 24931 2288 Mote-2
Trade Payakles 158,164 17,924 285 HNote-3
Stock EYE 0429 [B40) Nota-]
Satarabisr 31 5028 Debtar #3850 22,015 1835 Mote-2
Trade Payables o197 N,670 12473 Mote-3
Stack 1639 13582 {1553} fote-1
= i g
Septarmber D, 20zs  DooMG 26632 24,288 2344 Note-2
Trade Dayables 207 16,8350 {4, B13) Mote-3
State Bank of India
Stock TIEZ73 13677 |:2;3D'?:| Mote-1
Jurie 30,2023 Drebaar 26,292 23554 2,738 Mote-2
Trade Payabkles 12840 16242 (34602 Mote-3
Stock 12309 14,136 [.827) Note-]
March 31, 2023 Drebtor 25209 22,920 2288 MoLe-2
Trade Payables 15,162 17 3 12832 Maote-3

Motal Impact af slow misving/non-moving pravision, net realisable value provision of finished goods, sales revarsal whearsin risk/rewards
ware not transfarred to the customers within period end, goods purchased but not received wherain riskfrevwards warne transferred 1o
the Company within period end; adjustrments related to physical counts and Inventary of stores and sparss are not considered inthe
staternentssubmitted to Banks:

Note 2 Impact of sales reversal wherein risk/rewards were not transferred o the customers within percd end, adjustments arising out of
provision for debit and credit notesfexpectad credit inss provision/nan-adjustment of advance recaived from customens and farsian
exchange rejnstatement galnfiloss) are not considered In statementssubmitted to the Banks,

Mote E: Impact of accrued expenses, lability for goods received but invoices not accounted for, goods purchased but not received wherain
riskirewards were transferred to the Company within period end, adjustments arising outof provision for debit and credit notesinon-

adjustment of advance given to vendors and foreign exchange reinstatermeant gainf{less) are not considered 0 statements
submitted tathe Banks,
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47. Below is the title deed of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

Gross carrying value

Reason for not

— As at As at Whether promoter,
:mﬁﬁ-ﬂ:fm % December 31, Decamber 31, H:I::TI: i;‘hn director or their Pariod held since :::_:: ::Id =
2023 2022 relative or employes Company
Freshold land - . "
Channal ius 2495 193] Thia CoRveyance
Bulldiries - Channal 336 336 1951 deed
Building .67 .67 Caates of — are erstwhils
#hmedabad imcdia Lirm lted e nam=af
Leasehald fand - 1.2 41,21 1995 the Cormipany.
Maida
Leasehald famd - 161,24 16154
Abmedabad 1923

48, Computation of Earnings per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (2,267.62) 4,098.41
Welghted average number of equity shares in Lakhs 17.90 S17.90
Basic and diluted earning per share (Rs) (24.70) £ G5
Face value per egquity share {Rs.) 10.00 10.00

49, Sale of land
On June 18, 2020, the Conveyance deed was executed in respect of the sale of Land of the Company located at
Chandivali, Mumbal to Godrej] Properties Limited (GPL). The Company received Rs 1200000 lakhs from GPL
towards fixed consideration. As per the Convevance deed, an additional consideration amounting to Rs. 3300.00
lakhs was cantingant on achieving certain milestones with respect to height clearance, to be cbtained by GPL, from
the appropriate autharitias,

During the previous year, CGPL had recelved necessary helght clearances from the apptoprlate authorities and
accordingly, the contingent censideration of Rs, 3300.00 lakhs has been recelved and recognised as an exceptional item,

50. Exceptional item - Kolkata Port Trust matters

Dwaring the current year, the Board of Directars of the Company in their mesting held on Septembear 06, 2023
decided to close the manufacturing plant of the Company located at Kolkata, subject 1o requisite statutory and
regulatory approvals and duly intimated the same to the Stock Exchanges The management had also filed an
application with the Secretary, Covernment of West Bengal, Labour Department on September 11, 2023, seeking
approval Tar closure of the Plant. ©n Novemizer 7, 2023, the Labour department passed an order wharein it has not
approved the Company's request for closure of Kolkata plant and requested the Cornpany to run the said plant. The
Company filed a writ petition on December 4, 2023 to Hon'ble Caleutta High Courtchallenging the said order and
the matter is sub judice. Further, without prejudics to the said writ petition and on the request of the woarkmen, the
Company Introducad Voluntary Retirement Schemes ("Schemes"] for the workmen of the Kolkata Plant and
Honorable High Court was duly updated. All the workmen employed at the Kolkata Plant applied under the
Schemes and the Company duly accepted their applications and pald benefits accordingly. The Production at the
Kolkata plant has been stopped and the Company s awalting the outcome of the judicial and administrative
procesdings before Tormally vacating the premises.

The rmanagerrzant has assessed/ostimatad the potential financial impact of closure amounting to Rs. 2 378 89 lakhs and
disclosed the same as an exceptional iterm In these fimancial statements, The estimated impact includes Provisian. for
Impairmeant of Property Plant and Equipment [net of gain on lease modification of RBs 9328 lakhs) Rs. 57628 lakhs,
Staff Separation Costs Rs. 146655 lakhs (excluding Ps, 94 86 lakhs related 1o remeasurament [ass af the defined hanefit
liakilities which has been considered under Other Comprehensive Incomel and other legal and ancillary costs relating
to closure amounting to Rs. 336.06 lakhs (including site restoration cost armmounting to Bs, 78,93 lakhs).
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51. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has reclassified following comparatives, These reclassification
ara primarily ta canform to the current years classification, which do not have material impact on the financial statements;

Note . Previously reported Revised

Mo. Note Description amount amount Change Purpose
Balance sheet

26 Provisions {current liabilitias) 20904 279,00 &9.95 Far better prasentation
25 Other current labilities BZ4 45 R4 B0 [H9.946) Far better presentation
23 Trade payables 16,919.56 15322 83 1.596.93) For better prezentation
24  Other financial liabilities 1,861.63 355856 1,596.93 For better presentation

fcurrent liabilities)
52. Transfer pricing

The Company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the
transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961 Since the law requires existence of
such Information and documentation to be contemporanecus n nature, the Company appeints independent
consultants far conducting a Transfer Pricing Study to determine whether the transactions with associaté
enterprises are undertaken, during the financial year, on an "arrms length basis". Adjustments, if any, arising from the
transfer pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the study |5 completed for the current financial vear.
However, the management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's length so that the
aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial staterments, particularly on the amoeunt of tax expense
and that of pravision for taxation. The transfer pricing study for the vear endad March 31, 2022 did not result in any
adjustrment.

&

During the year, the Company has capitalised a manufacturing plant in Saykha, Bharuch, Gujrat (Project “"Optima’”}
amounting to B 8,520.89 lakhs including preoperative expenses of s, 51489 lakhs as follows:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
Cost of material used 27 44 =
Employee benefit expanses 2734 19537
Other expenses 4835 216,59
10293 4196
Add: Brought forward from previous year L1196 -
Total 51489 41186
Less: Capitalised during the year (514.8%) -
Balance under capital work in progress - 411.96

54. Approval of financial statement
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on February 22, 2024,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm's Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 DIC India Limited
Rajib Chatterjee Prabal Sarkar Manish Bhatia
Partner Driractor Managing Director & CEQ
Membership Number: 057134 DN 031247712 DIN; 08310936
Raghav Shukla Gagan Deep Singh
Company Secretary  Chief Finance Cfficer
Place: Qurugram Place ! Naida
Date: February 22, 2024 Drate: February 22, 2024



| dic|

Color & Comfort

Corporate Office

DIC India Limited

Fusion Square, Sth Floor,

5A-58. Sector- 126, Noida- 201303
Uttar Pradesh, India

Phone: +91 120 6361 414

Email: investors@dic.co.in

Registered Office

DIC India Limited
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